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ISSION STATEMENT

To provide a fair, efficient, ethical
and transparent medium for the conduct
of aviable securities market
that facilitates the mobilization of
capital to finance the growth and

development of the nation.
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UR CORPORATE OBJECTIVES

The Jamaica Stock Exchange was incorporated as a

private limited company in Augus 1968, with the

stock market commencing operationsin February
1969.

Its principal objectives are:

To promote the orderly and transparent development
of the stock market and the stock exchange in Jamaica.

To ensure that the stock market and its broker members
operate at the highest standards practicable.

To develop, apply and enforce the rules designed to
ensure public confidence in the stock market and
its broker-members.

To provide facilities for the transaction of stock
market business.

To conduct research, disseminate relevant
information and maintain local and international
relationships which can enhance the development
of the Jamaica stock market.
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NOTICE OF 36" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICEISHEREBY GIVEN that the Thirty-Sixth (36") Annual General Meeting of the Jamaica Stock Exchange will be held at
the Jamaica Stock Exchange, 40 Harbour Street, Kingson on Thursday, June 20, 2013, commencing at 1:00 p.m. for the
followingpurposes:

1. To Adopt the Audited Financial Statements

To receive the Audited Group Financial Statements for the year ended December 31,2012, together with the Directors'
and Auditors' Reports.

To consider and (if thought fit) passthe following Resolution:

Resolution No. 1

“That the Audited Group Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012, and the Reports of the
Directors and Auditors be adopted.”

2. To Elect Directors
The Directorsretiring from office by rotation pursuant to Article 103 of the Company's Articles of Incorporation are:
Mr. Christopher Berry, Mr. DennisCohen, Mrs. Jane George, Mrs. RitaHumphries-Lewin and Mrs. Janet M orrison.

Allthe Directors, beingeligible, offer themselvesfor re-election.
To consider and (if thought fit) passthe following resolution:
Resolution No. 2

(i) “That Director Christopher Berry, who retires by rotation and being eligible for re-election be and is hereby

re-elected a Director of the Company.

(i) “That Director Dennis Cohen, who retires by rotation and being eligible for re-election be and is hereby
re-elected a Director of the Company.

(iii) “That Director Allan Lewis, who retires by rotation and being eligible for re-election be and is hereby
re-elected a Director of the Company.

(iv) “That Director Rita Humphries-Lewin, who retires by rotation and being eligible for re-election be and is
hereby re-elected a Director of the Company.

(v) “That Director Jane George, who retires by rotation and being eligible for re-election be and is hereby
re-elected a Director of the Company.

3. To Appoint the Auditors and Authorize the Directorsto Fixthe Remuneration of the Auditors.
To consider and (if thought fit) passthe following Resolution:
Resolution No. 3
“That Deloitte and Touche, Chartered Accountants, having agreed to continue in office as Auditors, be and are

hereby appointed Auditorsfor the Company to hold office until the conclusion of the next Annual General M eeting
at aremuneration to be fixed by the Directorsof the Company.”

(Cont’d on next page)
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NOTICE OF 36" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (Cont'd)

4. To Fix the Feesofthe Directors
Tofixthefeesofthe Directorsorto determinethe mannerin which such feesareto be fixed.

To consider and (if thought fit) passthe following Resolution:
Resolution No. 4

“That the Directors be and are hereby authorized to fix their fees for the fiscal period 2013/2014.”

5. To Transact any other Ordinary Business of the Company.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Marlene J. Street-Forrest
Secretary
Dated: April 9,2013

IM PORTANTNOTEFORM EM BERSWHO ARENOTABLETO ATTEND:

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting can appoint a Proxy to vote on his behalf. The person so
authorized shall be entitled to exercise the same powers as the member whom he represents.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors submit herewith the Audited Financial Statements for the Jamaica Stock Exchange and its wholly owned
subsidiary, the Jamaica Central Securities Depository for the year ended December 31, 2012 along with the accompanying
notesasfollows:

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Consolidated Statement of Changesin Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

W~

Income forthe year was $504.3 Million compared to the Income of $256.3 Million for 2011; an increase of 96.8%. Investment
Income was $38.2 Million, compared to $24.9 Million in 2011 representing an increase of 53.4%. Other gainsof $5.9 Million
representsawrite-off of professional feesfor which provision wasmade in aprior year.

Total Expensesfor the year, (inclusive of finance cost) increased by 33.4%to $362.8 Million in 2012, with the most significant
absoluteincrease that of Securities Commissionsfees. Profit before taxation was $185.6 Million compared to $37.6 Million in
2011.

Consolidated Total Assets of the Group as at December 31,2012 were $789.4 Million compared to $645.4 Million for 2011.
Total Equity increased from $473.9 Millionin 2011 to $581.5 millionin 2012, up 22.7%.

The auditors, Deloitte and Touche have signified their willingnessto continue in office.

Donovan H. Perkins
Chairman
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
PROFILES OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Donovan Perkins - Chairman Mr. Allan Lewis - Deputy Chairman

Donovan H. Perkins, BA (Hons.), MBAs the Mr. Allan Lewis is the Senior Vice President,
President & CEO of Sagicor Investments ~ Group Strategy, of the Victoria Mutual Group
Jamaica Ltd (formerly PanCaribbean).  Limited where he has served for the past 6
Priorto joining Sagicor, he worked with Bank years. Prior to this, Mr. Lewis served as

f America in C te Banki | Managing Director of Prime Asset
of ‘America In Lorporale banking. - In Management Limited, where he is currently a

addition to serving on the Board of the  pirector. Mr. Lewis has had a distinguished
Exchange, he sits on the Boards of Pan  careerin life insurance and pension fund risk
Jamaican Investment Trust Limited and management, asset management, and
Jamaica Producers Group. strategic planning. He achieved the

He previously served the public sector as designation Associate of the Society of
Deputy Chairman of the National Water Actuaries in 1986, and a Masters in Business
Commission, and as a director of the  Administrationin1987.

National Insurance Fund and Jamaica Notwi . . .

: C otwithstanding his professional
Socw.tllnyest.mentFund. H|spr|vgtgsector accomplishments, he is committed to
cqntnbunon_ includes lobby agsomahons as supporting the wider community. His passion
V|Ce PI’eSIdent Of the Pr|Vate SeCtOI’ for primary and Secondary education
Organisation of Jamaica and the Jamaica motivated him to obtain a Masters in
Bankers Association. Education in 2002. Allan is a member of the

Mr. Perkins holds a Bachelor's Degree in Kiwanis Club of North St. Andrew; a mentor

Finance (Hons.) from the University of for students at the University of the West
South Florida and an MBA with Indies and is a member of the Board of the

Mona Preparatory School Foundation.

concentrations in Finance and Marketing
from the Darden School at the University of
Virginia.

Mr. Curtis Martin

Mr. Curtis Martin is the former Deputy Group
President of Capital and Credit Financial Group,
as well as the former CEO of Capital & Credit
Merchant Bank (CCMB) and Capital & Credit
Securities.

He has over 30 years experience in the financial
services sector and served as Chairman of the
Jamaica Stock Exchange from 2006 t0 2011.

Mr. Martin holds a MBA in Finance from
Columbia University and a B.Sc. (Hons.) in
Management Studies from the University of the
West Indies.

He is married with two (2) children and is very
keen on spending time with his family. His
interest includes Bee Keeping and International
Finance

Mrs. Rita Humpries-Lewin, C.D.

Mrs. Humphries-Lewin is a past Chairman
of the JSE and is the Founder and
Chairman of the Barita Companies, which
includes Barita Investments Limited and
Barita Unit Trusts Management Company
Limited. A pioneer in stock broking in
Jamaica and the wider Caribbean, her
sterling contribution led to her being
conferred with The Order of Distinction,
Commander Class by the Government of
Jamaicainthe year2000.

A philanthropist in many areas of the
Jamaican society, her passion continues to
restin the field of early childhood education.
She was honoured in 2012 with a
Doctorate Degree of Education in
Leadership by Mico University, for her
contribution to early childhood
development.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
PROFILES OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Edwin McKie; C.D.

Mr. McKie is the Chairman and Managing
Director of M/VL Stockbrokers Limited.
He is a former Trade Administrator and
Chairman of the Trade Board Limited. He
also served as Chairman of the
Agricultural Credit Bank, the Agricultural
Credit Board and the College of
Agriculture. He served as Board Member
of the National Investment Bank of
Jamaica, Bank of Jamaica and National
Water Commission. He served as a
Board member of the Development Bank
of Jamaica.

Mr. McKie was awarded the Order of
Distinction, Commander Class, in the
field of Banking.

Mr. Christopher Berry

Christopher Berry has been the Executive
Chairman of Mayberry Investments Limited
since 1993. A former Deputy Chairman of the
Jamaica Stock Exchange, he sits on several
boards, including the Jamaica Central
Securities Depository, Access Financial
Services, Apex Health Care Associates
Limited, Apex Pharmacy Limited, Air
Jamaica Limited, Rose Town Foundation for
The Built Environment and St. Edmund Trust.

He has over twenty years experience in the
securities industry, having joined Mayberry
Investments Limited in 1987, when he was
responsible for corporate planning and
information technology. He subsequently
led the company's listing on the Jamaica
Stock Exchange in 2005.

Mr. Berry has a Bachelor of Industrial
Engineering (Hons.) from the Georgia
Institute of Technology,Atlanta, Georgia.

Interests are tennis, sailing, basketball,
computers and economics.

He is married to Dr. Patricia Yap-Berry with
two (2) children

Mr. Mark Croskery

Mr. Mark Croskery has been the President & CEO of SSL since 2007. He serves as an Executive
Director on the Board of Directors. SSL has grown into a leading provider of wealth management
solutions and provider of investment banking advisory services under his stewardship.

Before joining SSL, Mr. Croskery was a leading Wealth Manager and Equity Trader at NCB.
Previously, Mr. Croskery interned at Prudential Financial, Inc. (now Wachovia Securities) in Miami,
Florida.

Mr. Croskery received an M.Sc. in Global Financial Analysis and a dual B.Sc. in Corporate
Finance/Accounting from Bentley University in Boston, Massachusetts.

Mr. Croskery is a Director of Island Ice & Beverage Company Limited (IIBC) and is a Member of
Young Presidents' Organization (YPO). Mr. Croskery is the Second Vice President of the Jamaica
Securities Dealers Association (JSDA) and was also appointed to the Task Force of Caymanas Track
Ltd for recommendations for the divestment of this Entity.

Mr. Croskery previously served as Chairman of the Fisheries Management & Development Fund
and as a Director on the Boards of Land Administration & Management Programme, the Sugar
Company of Jamaica and the Jamaica Racing Commission.
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Mr. Robert Drummond

ANNUAL
REPORT 20 12

Mr. Garth Kiddoe

Mr. Kiddoe is Chairman of the Professional
Engineers Registration Board (PERB). He is a
Project Supply Chain Manager in the Project
Management Unit for the UTech Enhancement

Mr. Robert Drummond has been President of First Global
Financial Services Limited (FGFS), the securities trading
and asset management subsidiary of GraceKennedy
Limited since November 2008. Since joining
GraceKennedy in early 2005, his other roles include that of

Project, a US42.6 Million project funded jointly by
the Government of Jamaica, the Caribbean
Development Bank and the University of
Technology, Jamaica (UTech). He is a former
Dean of the Faculty of Business and Management
(now College of Business and Management) at
Utech.

Mr. Kiddoe is also deputy Chairman of the Greater
Caribbean Regional Engineering Accreditation
System (GCREAS), an independent accreditation
agency involving representatives from the
Dominican Republic, Panama and Jamaica. He is
amember of the Board of Directors of the Jamaica
Stock Exchange (JSE), Chairman of the Board of
the Jamaica Central Securities Depository Ltd, a
subsidiary of the JSE and a member of the Public
Accountancy Board. He is a past President of the
Jamaica Institution of Engineers, the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Jamaica and the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of the

Principal of GK Investments, executing acquisition strategy
and the development of new businesses within the financial
services and retail division.

Mr. Drummond's career has included appointments in
general management and strategic planning for Fortune
500 companies such as American Express, ITT and Nike.
Additionally, Mr. Drummond has spent several years as a
management consultant assisting Caribbean and U.S.
companies with strategy implementation and business
process improvement. He began his career in public
accounting with PricewaterhouseCoopers in New York City.

He earned his MBA Degree at the Harvard University
Graduate School of Business Administration in Boston,
Massachusetts and his Undergraduate Degree in Business
from Pace University in New York.

He also serves as a member of the Board for First Global
Financial Services Limited and is currently the President

Caribbean.

Mr. Lissant Mitchell

Lissant Mitchell has over 18 years experience in the
local financial industry. He joined Scotia
Investments in October 2007 as SVP Treasury &
Capital Markets and was promoted to Chief
Operating Officer in October 2010, and appointed
Senior Vice President Wealth Management -
Scotiabank Group Jamaica & Chief Executive Officer
— Scotia Investments Jamaica Limited in November
2011.

Lissant has served as the President of the Primary
Dealers Association and is currently the Secretary of
the Jamaica Securities Dealers Association. He sits
onScotiabank's and Scotia Investments' Asset &
Liability Committees as well as the Group's Managed
Funds Investment Committee. He is also a director of
Scotia Investments Jamaica Limited, Scotia Asset
Management Jamaica Limited, Scotia Caribbean
Income Fund, and the Jamaica Stock Exchange.

Mr. Mitchell holds a MBA from the University Of
Manchester, and a BSc in Accounting and
Economics from the University of the West Indies.

Mr. Julian Mair

Mr. Julian Mair is the Chief Investment Strategist at
Jamaica Money Market Brokers Limited. Julian
brings a wealth of experience to this position, having
played a critical role in the development of Jamaica's
capital market for over 19 years. Prior to his
appointment, the firm benefited from his wealth of
knowledge when he served as Senior Trader and
Cambio Manager. He has consulted with various
international financial institutions in structuring global
issues, primarily for the Government of Jamaica.

Before joining JMMB, Julian worked with some of the
island's leading financial institutions in key positions,
including Dehring, Bunting and Golding (now Scotia
Investments Jamaica) where he headed the Treasury
and Investment arm and Lets Investment Ltd. where
he was Managing Director. Under his leadership, that
boutique operation became a global player in the
trading of internationally issued securities.

Julian is a founding member and executive of the
Jamaica Securities Dealers' Association and serves
as a director of JMMB Securities Limited, JMMB
International, JMMB BDI America and the Jamaica
Stock Exchange.

Elect of the Rotary Club of St. Andrew.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mrs. Marlene Street Forrest; J.P.

Mrs. Marlene Street-Forrest is the
General Manager of the Jamaica
Stock Exchange.  Mrs. Street-
Forrest has a B.Sc. in Management
Studies and an MBA. She has over
twenty five years of combined
experience in financial and general
management.

Her mandate as General Manager of
the JSE is to continue the process of
developing the Exchange, ensuring
that cutting edge technology is used
to assist in providing the greatest
level of efficiencies in the market.

Mrs. Street-Forrest, who is a Justice
of the Peace, serves as Secretary of
the Board of the JSE and a Director
of the Jamaica Central Securities
Depository Ltd.

PROFILES OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Dennis George Cohen

Dennis Cohen is the Deputy Group Managing Director for National Commercial Bank Jamaica Limited
and CEO of NCB Capital Markets Limited.

Mr. Cohen joined NCB in 2004 as Group Chief Financial Officer after a decade of experience gained at
Citibank N.A. Jamaica, serving as Country Treasurer for the local branch and its affiliates. He also
served as head of Citibank's Relationship Management Group. Prior to commencing his career in
banking, Mr Cohen was employed to Price WaterhouseCoopers as a Senior Accountant.

As Deputy Group Managing Director, Mr Cohen is charged with oversight of a number of the Group's
business segments including retail, corporate, insurance and wealth management. As CEO of NCB
Capital Markets Ltd., he has responsibility for the day to day management of the Group's securities
dealership and stock brokerage business, which forms a major part of the wealth management
segment.

Mr Cohen is the Chairman of Advantage General Insurance Company Limited. He is also a director of
National Commercial Bank Jamaica Limited, NCB Capital Markets Limited, NCB Insurance Company
Limited, NCB (Cayman) Limited, West Indies Trust Company Limited and Chairman for Mutual Security
Insurance Brokers Limited. He is also a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Jamaica
(ICAJ).

Dennis obtain his bachelors degree at the U.W.I. before qualifying in areas as a chartered accountant.

There are six alternate Directors' who have been
approved by the Directors of the Exchange. These are:

1. Mr. Dylan Coke NCB Capital Markets Limited
2. Mr. Phillip Armstrong Sagicor Investments Limited
3. Mr. lan McNaughton Barita Investments Limited

4. Mr. Gary Peart Mayberry Investments Ltd.
5. Dr. Derrick McKoy MV/L Stock Brokers Limited

6. Mr. Jason Chambers First Global Financial
Services Limited
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INDEPENDENT MEMBERS OF THE JSE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Miss Dian Black

Mizs Dian Black is the Director of Securities
tanagement (Debt Management Unit) in
the Ministry of Finance & the Public Service.
In this capacity she has responsibility for all
activities related to the registrar and
payments functions for government
secirities and provides the necessary
interface between the JSE and the
Government.

Sher is the Chairman of the Audit and
Finance Committee of the Board of the JSE.

Mizs Black obtained her first degree from
the U.W.I. And her MBA in Banking &
Finance at the University of Wales &
hanchester Business School.

Mr. Livingstone Morrison - Chairman

Regulatory & Market Oversight Committee (RMOC)

Mrs. Jane George

Mrs. Jane George assumed the role of
Corporate Attorney-at-Law and Head of the
Legal Department of The Lascelles, deMercado
Group of Companies in 2001, becoming the
Company Secretary and head of the Corporate
Secretariat in 2005. She was admitted as a
Solicitor in England and Wales and as an
Attorney-at-Law in Jamaica and is a member of
the Law Society of England & Wales and the
Jamaican Bar Association.

Mrs. George, who has approximately 26 years
experience in the legal profession in Jamaica
and England, joined the Board of the Jamaica
Stock Exchange in 2008. She sits on the
Regulatory and Market Oversight Committee,
the Corporate Governance and Nomination
Committee, the Audit and Finance Committee of
the Board and the Member Dealer Admissions
Committee.

Livingstone Morrison is the Deputy Governor of the Bank of
Jamaica with responsibility for Administration and Technical
Services, Finance and Technology and Payment System
and Risk Management.

Mr. Morrison joined the staff of the Bank of Jamaica in 1982
and worked for several years in the Financial Institutions
Supervisory Division. Between 1998 and 2002, Mr. Morrison
served as the Division Chief of the Finance and Technology
Division, with core responsibilities for strategic management
of the accounting, finance, and information and
communication technology functions of the Bank. In 2011,
Mr. Morrison assumed responsibility for the Administration
and Technical Services Division in addition to the Finance
and Technology and Payment System and Risk
Management Division.

Mr. Morrison Chair the Regulatory & Market Oversight
Committee and is also a Director of the Jamaica Central
Securities Depository. He studied at the U.W.l. And
University of Oxford and holds a masters degree in
Accounting.
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INDEPENDENT MEMBERS OF THE JSE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
= (Cont'd)

Mrs. Janet E. Morrison

Janet Morrison was called to the Jamaican Bar in 1978 and has been a partner at DunnCox since 1995. Her
practice is primarily in the area. She is listed in IFLR 1000 as one of the world's leading lawyers.

A graduate of the University of the West Indies and the Norman Manley Law School, Janet also holds a
Masters Degree in Commercial and Corporate Law from the University of the West Indies.

Janet is a member of the council of the Jamaican Bar Association and the Commercial Law Sub-Committee
of the Bar Association and acted as one of its representatives in deliberations before the Jamaican
Parliament in the drafting of the Companies Act. She is also a member and former chairman of the
Publications Sub-committee of the Bar Association. She has presented at several conferences on Corporate
Governance, the Pensions Act and the Companies Act and has contributed many legal commentaries and
articles in the Jamaican press. She is an Associate Tutor at the Norman Manley Law School. Janet is also
chairman of the Justice Reform Committee of the Private Sector Organization of Jamaica and is a member of
Jamaica Institute of Arbitrators Limited, a charitable organization. Janet became a member of the Chartered
Institute of Arbitratorsin 2011.

JSE BOARD COMMITTEES 201172012

LISTING COMMITTEE REGULATORY & MARKET OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
Chairman: Mr. Donovan Perking Chairman: Mr. Livingstone Morrison Chairman: Mr. Donovan Perking
Mr. Allan Lewis Miss Dian Black Mr. Allan Lewis
Mrs. Rita Humphries-Lewin (Alternate Mr. lan McNaughton)  Mr. Garth Kiddoe Mr. Christopher Berry (Alternate Mr. Gary Peart)
Mr. Livingstone Morrison Mrs. Jane George Mr. Ed McKie (Alternate Dr. Derrick McKoy)
Miss Dian Black Mrs. Janet Mortison Mr. Julian Mair
Mr. Dennis Cohen (Alternate Mr. Dylan Coke) Mrs. Janet Morrison
AUDIT COMMITTEE Mrs. Marlene Street Forrest (Co-opted)
MEMBER DEALER ADMISSION COMMITTEE Chairman: Miss Dian Black Mr. Robin Levy (Co-opted)
Chairman: Mr. Livingstone Morrison M. Garth Kiddoe
Miss Dian Black Mr. Ed. McKie (Alternate Dr. Derick McKoy) RULES COMMITTEE
Mr. Garth Kiddoe Mr. Allan Lewis Chairman: Mr. Allan Lewis
Mrs. Jane George Mr. Livingstone Morrison Mr. Dennis Cohen (Alternate Mr. Dylan Coke)
Mrs. Janet Morrison Mrs. Jane George Mr. Christopher Berry (Alternate Mr. Gary Peart)
Mr. Mark Croskery Mr. Garth Kiddoe
COMPENSATION COMMITTEE Miss Dian Black
Chairman: Mr. Donovan Perkins CORPORATE GOVERNANCE & NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Garth Kiddoe Chairman: Mrs. Janet Morrison
Mr. Mark Croskery Mr. Garth Kiddoe
Mr. Dennis Cohen (Alternate Mr. Dylan Coke) rs. Jane George
Miss Dian Black r. Lissant Mitchell

Mr. Ed McKie (Alternate Dr. Derrick McKoy)
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THE MANAGEMENT TEAM

- -
Michelle Josephine Doreen Marlene Suzette Wentworth
Sirdar Lewis Parsons Smith Street Forrest Whyte Graham
Manager, M anager, Human General Financial Chief
Registrar Trustee Resources Manager, Controller Regulatory

Services Services Manager JSE Officer
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THE MANAGEMENT TEAM

Suzette Riccalya Robin Levy Kadyll Neville Ellis
M cNaught Robb General M cNaught Marketing

M anager, M arket Manager, JCSD Hermitt Manager
Information Operations & Deputy General M anager,

Technology & Trading Manager, JSE Equity

& Systems Manager Operations
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Mr. Donovan Perkins
Chairman
Jamaica Stock Exchange

From the Chairman's Desk

On behalf of our Directors, | am pleased to report on the Group's
performance in 2012. Given the challenges facing the Jamaican
economy, the Jamaica Stock Exchange reported positive results
with Profit after Tax of $128.7 Million compared to $33.9 Million in
2011.

These strongresultswere positively impacted by two acquisition transactions
during the year: Campari's purchase of the ordinary and preference sharesin
LascellesdeMercardo, and IMMB Group's successful offer for Capital & Credit
Financial Group. Both deals were seamlessly conducted over our Exchange,
influencingthe doubling of our revenuesto $504 Million.

Globally, signs of economic recovery were signaled by the number of equity
marketsthat showed signsof improvement asmany indicesrose. However, in
Jamaica our main market index reflected a 3% contraction while the junior
market index posted a contraction of 13%. Within the region, both the main
index of Trinidad & Tobago’s and Barbados increased by 5.15 % and 1.10%
respectively.

Junior M arket

The Junior Market continued to be a growth driver with continued its positive
development,with four new companieslistedin 2012. These were KLE, Purity,
Paramount Chemical and C2W and we welcome these new entities and their
shareholders. We expect thistrend to continue with additional listingsin 2013.

Main M arket

Despite a contraction in the fourth quarter, equities showed signs of recovery
in expectation that an IMF Agreement would be signed and reduce deep
concernsemerging that began to be reflected in the currency marketslocally.

New Member Dealers

The JSSE'sstrategicfocusin 2012 wasto increase listings, attract new investors,
broaden the number of number of stockbrokers and develop more products.
We believe that this will help to drive our shareholder value in the future.
Accordingly, in fulfillment of these objectives, we invited Proven Investments
Ltd.tojointhe JSEasour newest gockbroker. We expect Proven, alongwith all
our existing stockbrokers, to compete and play an important role in growing
our market and itsprospects.

We also expect another new broker in 2013 to bring additional energy and
customerstothe equity markets.

(Cont’d on next page)
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From the Chairman's Desk (Contd)

2013 OUTLOOK

With an IMF Agreement expected in 2013 and continuing uncertainty regarding Jamaica's growth prospects, our stock
exchange must play an important role in supplying capital that creates wealth and supports Jamaica's development,
economicgrowth and an expandingtaxbase. Without growth and economicrecovery, it will become increasingly difficult for
our listed companies to improve their earnings, pay decent salaries and reward investors through dividends and capital
appreciation.

We count amongst our shareholders, some of the largest and most successful companiesin Jamaica, and the Jamaica Stock
Exchange will use its influence as well as that of our shareholders, to ensure that steps are taken to further encourage
efficient, transparent capital marketsand abusinessenvironment that promotesdevelopment of Jamaica.

THANKS

In closing, | wish to thank my fellow directorsalong with the executives of the Exchange for their support and advice during
2012. |l also acknowledge the work of our Committee Chairmen, who do much of the work behind the scenesto make our
jobseasier whenwe meet asdirectors.

The JSE's performance last year was also supported by a wider Team that getsthe job done and is supportive of the listed
companies and their shareholders. Their efforts deserve to be recognizd and | express my appreciation on the Board's
behalf.

Mr. Donovan Perkins
Chairman
Jamaica Stock Exchange
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Chairman's Report
Regulatory & Market Oversight Committee

In2012 Jamaicacelebrated its Golden Jubilee, aswell asthe historic achievements
of its athletes at the London Summer Olympics. Both events gave Jamaicans, at
home and in the diaspora, an opportunity to highlight and reflect on the country's
achievements. The year 2012 also marked the fifth anniversary since the Board of
the Jamaica Stock Exchange (JSE) ceded its regulatory responsibilities to the
Regulatory & Market Oversight Committee (RMOC). This report provides an
opportunity to review and reflect on the Committee's performance since
inception and during2012in particular.

Principal Activities

The RMOC operates on core principles of being independent, accountable,
transparent and of high integrity. Since its establishment, the Committee has
demonstrated independence with it being comprised of only Independent
Directors of the JSE's Board, and having all its decisions final and binding on the
Exchange. The RMOC's accountability and transparency are demonstrated with
the provision of monthly reportsto the Board of the JSE, as well as providing the
Financial Services Commission with advisoriesfrom timeto time, and seekingtheir
review and approval for rule amendments. The Committee prides itself as
operatingon high integrity standardsbased on its Terms of Reference, and againg
the background of anew undertakingin 2012 where membersagreed to endorse a
conflict of interest declaration statement to disclose whether they may be
conflicted in fulfilling their responsibilities. Thisendorsement will be done at the
beginning of each year, and asthe need arises.

Duringthe course of the year,the RMOChad one (1) Special Meeting and ten (10)
Regular Meetings. All Committee members attended the Special Meeting, and
members' attendance at Regular Meetingsispresentedin Table 1 below:

Table 1 RM OC Regular M eeting Attendance in 2012

Mr. Livingstone Morrison
Chairman

RMOCMember s Number of meetings out of 10
Livingstone Morrison (Chairman) 10
Dian Black 9
Jane George 8
Garth Kiddoe 10
Janet Morrison 8

Functional Deliverables

In reviewing the activities of the RMOC it will be highlighted that one of its
mandatesisto adopt measuresand rulesnecessary to strengthen market integrity.
In thisregard, since inception the Committee hasreviewed and introduced seven
(7) market rulesand guidelines, and of the set four (4) were donein the year 2012;

they are asfollows:

(Cont’d on next page)
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Chairman's Report
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JSERule 402 C& 402 D Minimum Issued Capital;

JSE Rule 215 Advertising;

JSE Rule Appendix 3, Section 18 Listing Agreement; and
JSE Junior Market Rule Appendix 2, Part 4 (1a)(i)& (ii)

® Ongoing Reporting Requirements.

In addition to the above mentioned rules the RMOC is
forecasting the introduction of five (5) rules amendments
during the course of 2013. The rules in progress are as
follows:

e Jamaica Stock Exchange Model for Securities
Transaction by Directors and Senior Executives of Liged
Companies - Main Market;

e Jamaica Stock Exchange Model for Securities
Transaction by Directors and Senior Executives of Liged
Companies - Junior Market;

® JSERule 228 Disciplinary Proceedings;

® JSERule Appendix 1 Takeovers and Mergers; and

® JSE Rule Appendix 14 Fines and Penalties.

One of the objectivesof the RMOCisto monitor the conduct
of Member-Dealers and Listed Companies, and where
necessary take steps to enforce compliance of market
regulations. Over the past five (5) years the RMOC has
reviewed and decided on thirty-three (33) regulatory cases
involving Member dealers and Listed Companies, and of the
set seven (7)weredoneduringthe course of 2012.

Another responsibility of the Committee isto create policy
direction of its operational arm, the Regulatory and M arket
Oversight Division (RMOD). Given this undertaking, it can
be reported that since its establishment the Division has
operated within budget. The Division has also instituted
operational procedures for reviewing prospectuses,
circulars, corporate communications, preparing regulatory
reports and assessing Listed Companies' and Member-
Dealers' financial statements. In overseeing the policy
development of the RMOD, the Committee has been very
keen on building itsinstitutional framework, and that of the
wider JSE. In thisregard, in 2012 on behalf of the Exchange,
the RMOC signed a Memorandum of Understanding with
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Jamaica (ICAJ),
which is expected to enhance information sharing between
both institutions, while providing the staff of the RMOD with
accessto relevant training opportunities offered bythe ICAJ.
The RMOD is responsible for the implementation of the

Exchange's oversight responsibilities; a depiction of the
Division'soversight performance activitiesover the pag five
(5) yearsispresentedin Table 2 below:

Table 2 Performance Indicators

Activity 2012 | 2011 | 2010 | 2009 | 2008
Member - dealerstimely filing of Monthly Statements | 97% 99% | 97% |95 | 95%
Member - dealerstimely filing of Quarterly Statements | 93% [100% | 95% | 93% | 95%
Member - dealerstimely filing of Audited Statements 9% [100% |73% |73% | 64%
Member - dealers Indemnity Insurance Renewal 100 | 100% |100% | 100% | 100%
Listed Companiestimely filing of Unaudited Statements | 80% | 76% | 72% | 77% |75%
Listed Companiestimely filing of Audited Statements 5% |64% | 61% |76% |47%

Listed Companiestimely filing of Annual Reports 49% | 43% | 49% |48% | 46%
Total Number of regulatory/ compliance issues 128 (127|125 (123 |86
Percentage of regulatory/ compliance issues closed 9% |98% | 98% |95% | 96%
Total Number of Enforcement Actions 9 | 9 |6 |8
Total Enforcement Charges ($000) 55 |5 380|720 1400

Based on the above performance indicators it is recognized
that Listed Companies’ timely filing of Audited and Annual
Reports require urgent attention. It is further recognized
that there are deficiencies in the existing rules to address
these issues. The pending implementation of JSE Rule
Appendix 14 — Fines and Penalties is intended to assist the
RMOC in promoting improvement in the compliance
indicators.

Closing Remarks
In closing, | wish to express gratitude to all members of the

RMOC and the RMOD for the very fruitful year and note my
expectation of continued intensity in the regulatory
activitiesin 2013. It isalso fitting to use this opportunity to
urge members of the RMOC and RMOD to recommit to the
task of solidifying the benefits of the separation of the
regulatory functions of the Exchange from its commercial
activities, as a critical step in the process of promoting the
highest standards of market efficiency, transparency and
integrity.

Mr. Livingstone Morrison.
Chairman
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Audit and Finance Committee Report
The Jamaica Stock Exchange and Its Subsidiaries

During the year under review the Audit and Finance Committee of the Jamaica Stock Exchange (The Exchange) was
successful inthe fulfillment of itsmandate to assist the Board with the oversight responsibilitiesregardingthe integrity of the
Company's financial statements, compliance, legal and regulatory requirements, and to serve as the conduit of
communication between the Board, the management team and the internal and external auditors. The Committee'smain
focus for 2012 was on the viability and sustainability of new products launched especially JSE e-Campus, the Group's
investments in light of lower than expected revenue inflows in the firgd half of the year that could impact cash flow and
interestincome, thebudgetary process, financial controls, efficienciesand internal audit reviews.

The Committee focused on compliance with the Company's policy guidelines in respect of effective management of the
company'sresourcesand within each periodit tookameaningful look at the outturn of the Group'sfinancial performance for
the period under review in the context of the Group's budget. Given the introduction of new trading and settlement
platformsin December 2011, the Committee conducted a comprehensive post implementation review to ensure that the
systems were functional, srengthened operating control and improved on the Group's risk management capabilities and
service delivery. Memberscontinued to review the level of internal audit observations and examined the responsiveness of
management to effect recommended changes. The Committee was pleased with the level of responsiveness by
management and their effort in ensuring that the sandards set, as outlined by the policies relating to operational controls
and risk management strategies, were maintained and improved. Further, the Group's responsiveness to queries and
recommendationswasrated asexcellent by the Committee and the Internal Auditors.

The Committee continued its review of management accounts and the quarterly financial statements to ensure that the
information released to the Board and or the general public was consistent with proper reporting standards and the rules of
the Exchange. Another primary objective of the review of the Group's financial reportswasto ensure proper and efficient
cash flow management, expenditure controls, management of invesgment portfolios, receivables and new products. A
considerable amount of time was spent in examining all aspects of the e-learning programme. The review will continue into
2013, when the Committee will examine a revised business plan for the ECampus programme. Given the state of the
economy which reflected in generally poor market conditions; the Committee conducted asix-month review of the financial
projectionsaspresented by management in order to keep atight focuson both revenue and expenditure and ultimately the
Group'sprofitability.

The Committee's effort in reviewing, evaluating and assiging in developing the methodology and policy framework for the
admission of new member dealersto the Exchange resulted in the admission of one new member-dealer. The process of
review now continuesto further streamline and improve onthe procedure where necessary.

Therequirement isfor the Committee to meet at least four (4) times per year. However, nine (9) meetingswere held during
the year with satisfactory attendance from allmembers. There wasadecrease in the number of meetings, down from sixteen
(16) in the previousfinancial year. The decrease wasdue to the fact that the budgetary processwas not asextended asthe
previousyear and the policiesand proceduresfor tradinglicense, which were deliberated onin the prior year, were approved

bythe Board.

The current membersofthe Committee are:-
¢ Dian Black (Chair) e Mark Croskery
¢ Jane George * Garth Kiddoe
* Allan Lewis e Ed McKie

¢ Livingstone Morrison

B7an Black
Chairman
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Compensation Committee Report
The Jamaica Stock Exchange and Its Subsidiaries

The Compensation Committee of the JSEismade up exclusively of non-executive directorsand ischaired by the Chairman of
the Board, Mr. Donovan Perkins. Other membersofthe committee are:

*  Mr. Mark Croskery

*  Mr. Garth Kiddoe

*  Mr. Dennis Cohen

The committee's mandate is to make recommendations on the Company's framework of executive remuneration. The
Committee reviewsand approvescorporate goalsinrelation to the CEO'scompensation; evaluatesthe CEO'sperformancein
light of the company's goals and objectives and makes recommendations to the Board with respect to executive and non-
executive compensation. The Committee had one meetingin 2012 to review incentive payment proposal for non-executive

staff.

Directors' fee, which is normally paid to non-Executive Members of the Company, totaled $6.8 million in 2012. Thisis $0.8

million declinefrom 2011, whichwas$7.6M. Thiswasdone asameansto assist in cost reduction.

21
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The JSE GROUP
2012 Management's Discussion and Analysis

Executive Summary

The Jamaica Stock Exchange Group comprises of the Jamaica Stock Exchange Limited (JSE), Jamaica Central Securities
Depository Limited (JCSD) and JCSD Trustee ServicesLimited (JCSDTS). ThisManagement Discussion and Analysis (M D&A) of
the JSE Group's financial condition and results of its operations is provided to enable stakeholders to assess the financial
health, material changes and results of its operation for the year ended December 31, 2012. It provides information on
liquidity and capital resources and gives a comparative examination of the current year under review against the previous
year's performance. The MD&A should be read in conjunction with our Audited Financial Statements and must be
considered ascomplementary information to that which isprovided in the audited statementsand the accompanying notes
thereto. Theinformation presented isbased on the best judgment of management, takinginto consideration all our internal
systemsand controls,our plansand the present programmesand policiesthat are being pursued.

The JSEisapublicly listed company, having listed variable preference sharesin June 2008. Itswholly-own subsidaries Jamaica
Central Securities Depository, along with its subsidiary JCSD Trustees Limited, complete the companiesreferred to asthe JSE
Group. Within 2012 the Group continued to develop and sustain programmes in order to increase revenue and optimally
utilize the assetsof the Group. Onthe other hand, we have sought to manage our expenditure. The focuswithin the financial
year wasthat of ensuring that proper attention wasplaced on the strengthening of the new productswhich were previously
launched and on the completion and proper execution of projectsthat were started in the prior year. Consequently, the JSE
delivered on a major strategic objective of inviting new member/dealersinto the market by the sale of new licencesin the
form of permanent or annual renewable trading licences by selling, for the first time since itsdemutualization, a permanent
licenceto Proven InvestmentsLid.

The e-Campus, another key strategic objective aimed at improvingrevenue, isconsidered awork-in-progress. It returned less
than a satisfactory result, however the JSE is determined to nurture this new product with the clear mandate that there
should be a significant improvement in 2012. The process of external registration and accreditation of the e-Campus will
result in greater market acceptance and the expected revenue inflow from thisproduct. The Group'srevenue from Cess and
Fee Income were positively impacted by two transactions which are respectively, the acquisition of Lascelles de Mercado
(LdM) by Campariand the sale of thetradinglicence.

Despitethe effort to control expenditure, the Group recorded an increase in expenditure inclusive of finance costsof $91m or
24.3%. All expense areas showed upward movements which reflected increases associated with goods and services,
additional expenditure caused by needed repairsasin the case of property expensesor depreciation and amortization costs
which bear reference to capital acquisitions. The most significant increase in expenditure was associated with the securities
commission feesarisingfrom the LdM/Camparitransaction.

The profitability of the Group improved over the prior period. Profit before taxation reflects increased income of $148.0m
which wasbuoyed by improved operatingincome due mainly to the improvement in Cessand Fee Income. The net profit for
the year of $128.7m reflectsthe significant one-off transaction, but also an improvement in market conditionsin 2012 which
saw anincreaseinthevalue of ordinary transactionsacrossthe main and junior markets.

For further information and in keeping with the JSE Listing Requirement, financial information is also available on the JSE
Website www.jamstockex.com.

(Cont’d on next page)
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2012 Management's Discussion and Analysis (Cont'd)

Executive Summary of Vision, Strategies and Priorities:

The vision, strategies and priorities of the individual companies that comprise the JSE Group, namely the Jamaica Stock
Exchange, Jamaica Central Securities Depository and JCSD Trustee Services, are complementary and aligned to the
overarching objective of facilitating capital market growth and development. The JSE Group companies ensure that the
tradingand settlement of different typesof securitieson asecure and efficient platform are realized.

Our Vision: Tobethepremier capital marketsinstitutioninthe Caribbeanthroughwealth creation and economicgrowth.

Our Priorities:

e  Grow Core Businessthrough Innovation
We continue to pursue a path of growing the Group by our thrust into market education, the development of new
products, the opening of new markets and the provision of better service to our customers and stakeholders. In
keepingwith our vision of being the premier securities market in the Caribbean, the Exchange will vigorously target
the Region for new listings on the main and junior markets. The Group aims to examine market opportunities
whereverthey are.

Through market educationthe Group aimsto retain current investorsand attract new investors, aswe recognize that
expansion will not be successful inthelong-term without an expanding pool of educated investors. Recognizingthat
attracting new players to the market must be supported by new and existing products which are driven by
customers’ demand, the JSSEistreating asan imperative, the development of sustainable products and the delivery
of servicesto our customers. Industry collaboration, stakeholder inclusion and effective lobbying are the conduits
through which theinnovationsinthe market will be best facilitated. While we believe that the Group'sinitiativeswill
result in more vibrant trading of securitieson the stock market aswell asamore diversified revenue sream that will
augur well for the medium to long-term growth and profitability of the Group, we understand that these initiatives
cannot be pursued unlessthey aredriven by external demand.

¢ Continued Diversification in Related BusinessLines
Over the past few years, the Group has diversified into related business lines. The decision taken by the Group to
diversify itsrevenue stream isbearing fruits. New product offeringsby the JCSD's Registrar Services Division and the
JCSD Trustee Services have met with success and continue to make significant contributions to the bottom line.
These product lines are still in their early stages and have the ability to grow even further. The provision of superior
products and services compared to that of our competitors are the avenues that are being pursued to arrive at
market penetration and growth.

Summary of Long Term Vision includes:

Offering regionally and globally diversified capital market products

Commitment to high standards of transparency and governance

Continuously improving shareholders' value

Setting a strong foundation in all critical divisions and subsidiaries to allow for long-term growth and
development

Enhanced attractiveness of the equities market to investors and businesses

Participation in the development of the Fixed Income Market

YV VY

vV V

(Cont’d on next page)
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2012 Management's Discussion and Analysis (Cont'd)

Strong internal competences

Being among the top employers of choice in Jamaica

To be considered a partner that is essential to Nation building

To forge key regional and global partnershipsin furtherance of these goals
Consistent operational and overall profitability

VVVVYYVY

Summary of Our Performance M easurements

»  High customer and employee satisfaction

» Financial measurement including growth and profitability targets, net profit and return on equity

» Diversification of products and services scoring at 50:50 split with progressively less emphasis on
equities contributionsin each year

> Increase in listingson the Main & Junior Markets

M arket Conditionsand Outlook

While many regional and global capital markets are still grappling with the decline in their markets arising from the financial
crisis that started in 2008, locally the market continued to be affected by these external factors as well as internal issues.
Accordingly, though showing some signsof recovery, the market isexpected to be characterized by choppy performance and
will be quickly impact negatively to any negative market signal. There has been a level of renewed interest in the stock
market which we believe is a direct effect of the listings on the Junior Market and the performance of that market. Other
companiesare however stillin a'wait and see mode' before venturingto take their companiesto market.

The market in 2012 displayed mixed market statistics. For both the main and junior markets, the total volume and value of
thetransactionsimproved whilethe number of transactionsdeclined when compared with the previousyear.

The Junior Stock M arket continuesto enjoy successin listingcompaniesto thismarket. For the period under review four (4)
new companieslisted onthe market for 2012. The market will continue to experience excellent prospectswith the continued
support of the Government and the brokerage community.

The JSE Group's normal operating revenue is highly dependent upon the level of market activities on our Exchange.
Measures of these activitiesinclude volume and value traded number of transactions, market capitalization of the securities
and number of listings on the Exchange. Aswe had indicated last year, for the JCSD and the JCSDTSthe business linesin
respect tothediversificationstrategy continueto grow.

Our expectationisthat 2013 will be adifficult year locally and any growth will be dependent on the ability of the economy to
maintain stable fundamental economic indicators. Investors and businesses will also be watching the regional and global
economies for signs of recovery and within Jamaica, whether the right infrastructure isbeing edablished and cultivated to
foster agood businessclimate. A positive result will translate to areturn of confidence in the market and translate to a good
year. Short of that, most of our revenue will possibly come through mergers and acquisition, new listings and new member
dealersto our market.

(The M arket Conditionsand Outlook section above containscertain forward-looking statements)

(Cont’d on next page)
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2012 Management's Discussion and Analysis (Cont'd)

M arket Operations & Trading

Considerable improvements were realized in the overall market activity of 2012 in comparison to the previous year 2011.
Market activity of the main market, includingtradesin the block market, amounted to 19,515 transactions, volume traded of
2.6 billionunitstraded valued at $61.1 billion. Incomparisonto the previousyear,thiswasanincreaseinthe volume traded
and value traded of 41.9% and 191.1% respectively, while the number of transactions declined by 16.3%. For the period
under review, market statistics, excluding the block market, recorded declines for the number of transactions and volume
traded of 16.3% and 7.7% respectively while the value traded increased marginally by 1.1% when compared to the market
activity of 2011. The total number of transactions (excluding blocks) amounted to 19,492 transactions; the volume traded
(excluding blocks) amounted to 1.4 billion units and value traded amounted to $18.3 billion for 2012. The charts below
reflect the trading activity on the main market (excluding blocks) for 2012 compared to 2011. Market activity on the block
market in 2012 increased significantly when compared to the activity in the previous year. On the block market, volume
traded amounted to 1.15 billion units, an increase of 327.2% and valued traded amounted to $42.8 billion, an increase of
1,380%. However, for 2012, block tradesdeclined by 11.5%to amount to 23 tradesin 2012 relative to the 26 block tradesin
2011.

Chart 1
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Market capitalization of the main market amounted to $590.6 billion at the end of 2012. Thiswas a decline of $28.8
billion or 4.6% from the start of the year. Please view the chart below.

Chart 3
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The performance of the market was negatively impacted by economic conditions which are reflected in the declines
experienced by all indices, with the exception of the JSE Cross Listed Index, when compared to 2011. Asat the end of 2012:
the JSE Index declined by 3,195.98 points or 3.4% to close at 92,101.22 points (view Chart 4 below); the All Jamaican
Composite Index declined by 11,017.19 points or 10.8% to close at 91,161.60 points; and the JSE Select Index declined by
384.34 pointsor 13.4%to close at 2,489.67 points, while the JSECross Lised Index advanced by 79.38 pointsor 10%to close
at 873.93 pointsincomparisontothe 2011 year end closingindices.
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The lackluster performance of the market for 2012 was also captured in the advance/decline ratio and price depreciation.
The advance/declineratio indicated that atotal of six ordinary stocksadvanced while twenty-sixdeclined. For 2012, the price
depreciation of the ordinary stocksin the main market was 14.9%. The six companiesthat appreciated during the year are
presentedin Table 1. Table 1 (below) showsthe ten advancers and declinersfor 2012, while the succeeding Chartsindicate
therecent five yearsof JSEtrading history of the main market.

(Cont’d on next page)
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Table 1 - Top Advancers and Decliners for 2012

WINNERS % | LOSERS %
Guardian Holdings Limited 67.88% Caribbean Cement Company (66.67%)
Lascelles, deMercado & Co 33.33% Pulse Investments (59.18%)
Palace Amusement 20.00% Hardware & Lumber (42.37%)
Scotia Investments Jamaica 5.57% Barita Investments Limited (41.40%)
Sagicor Life Jamaica 1.10% Ciboney Group (40.00%)
Trinidad Cement Limited 0.11% Gleaner Company (36.36%)
Jamaica Money Market Brokers (33.79%)
Seprod Limited (81.17%)
Jamaica Producers Group (25.86%)
Mayberry Investments Limited  (23.31%)
Charts - Recent Five Year History of Trading Data
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Junior M arket

Despite thelisting of four additional companieson the Junior Market, bringingthe total listingsto sixteen companies, the JSE
Junior Market Index experienced adecline when compared to the JSEJunior Market Index at the end of 2011. The JSEJunior
Market Index declined by 101.08 pointsor 13.5%to closethe year at 647.78 points. Table 2 representscompaniesthat were
listed duringthe year,the amount raised from these listingsand the closing prices asat December 31,2012 alongwith listing
prices:

Table 2
Company Amount Raised | Listing Close Price % Change
Price Dec 31,2012 | since listing
C2W Music Limited $129 Million $1.29 $1.21 (6.20%)
Consolidated Bakeries Limited $97.34 Million $1.88 $1.88 0.00%
KLE Group Limited $97.86 Million $3.70 $3.70 0.00%
Paramount Trading Limited $74.87 Million $2.43 $2.79 14.81%

As at December 31, 2012, market capitalization of the Junior Market amounted to $22.10 billion. This was a decrease of
$1.49 billion or 6.3%from the start of the year. Market volume in 2012 increased significantly by 86.1%t0 569,866,235 units
relative to the 306,220,533 unitsrecorded in 2011. Market value also rose significantly to $5.18 billion from $1.25 billion in
the previousyear. Onthe other hand, the number of transactionsdeclined by 36.0%t0 5,047 tradesin 2012. There were 250
days of trading in 2012 compared to the 252 trading daysin 2011. The chartsbelow reflect the trading activity in the Junior
Market for the year under review compared to the previousyear.
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In the USDollar Equities M arket, the total volume amounted to 7,155,710 unitsvalued at $633,960.46 in 2012. Thiswasan
increase of 6.4%in the volume traded and a decrease of 26.2%in the value traded when compared to the market activity in
2011. The number of tradesamounted to 123 in 2012 down by 15.8% when compared to 2011. The JSSEUSD Equities Index
declined by 10.71 pointsor 13.6%to close at 67.86 points. M arket capitalization declined by $4.4 million or 15.8%to end the
year at $28.02 million.

Overview of the Business

Both the Jamaica Stock Exchange and its subsidiary, the Jamaica Central Securities Depository, are licensed to operate by the
Financial Services Commission. The JSEand JCSD operate electronictrading and settlement platformsrespectively through a
service licensing agreement with Trayport and Percival Limited. The trading and settlement platforms allow for greater
product offering and will enable usto maintain competitive pricingfor the servicesthat we provide to the market place. The
JSEboaststhe most listingsof equity securitieswithin the English-speaking Caribbean.

* 62 listed companies offering fifty (50) Ordinary Securities (33 listed on the JSEMain Market, 16 listed on the JSE Junior
Market and 1 listed on the USDollar Equities Market) and twelve (12) Preference Securities. Trading activities are
concentrated mainly around the Ordinary Shares.

* The JSEisthe primary venue for the raising of equity capital in Jamaica. The total market capitalization (main and
junior markets) as at December 2012 was J$612.74 billion. The top five stocks were in the banking and insurance
sectors and represented 65.2% of overall market capitalization.

* The JSEmaintained seven indices during 2012:

) The JSEMarket Index
) The JSE All Jamaican Composite Index
) The JSE Select Index
(iv) The JSE Cross-Listed Index
) The JSE Junior Market Index
) The JSECombined Index
)  The JSEUSDollar Equities Index

The JSE Main Index is a market-weighted index comprising ordinary shares of all listed companies. The All Jamaican
Composite Index measures the performance of Jamaican companies only while the JSE Select Index measures the
performance of the JSE's 15 most liquid securities. The JSE Cross-Listed Index measures the performance of the
companiesthat are also registered outside of Jamaica and the JSEJunior Market Index measuresthe performance of the
companieslisted onthe Junior Market. The JSSECombined Indexmeasuresthe performance of allthe companieslisted on
the main and junior marketsthat issue ordinary shares. The JSEUSDollar EquitiesIndex measuresthe performance of all
the companieslisted onthe USDollar EquitiesM arket.

* The JSElaunched its Junior Market for small and medium sized companiesthat are seeking to raise between $50 million
and $500 million via the market and whose stated capital will not exceed $500 million. This exciting proposition has
enjoyed the full support of the Government of Jamaica as evidenced by Cabinet approval of atotal of up to ten (10) years
of tax exemptionson the corporate profits of these companies. An amount of $399.07 million was raised on the market
during 2012 and a total of $2.35 billion has been raised by the companies listed on the Junior Market since inception in
2009.

(Cont’d on next page)
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Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared with Year Ended December 31, 2011

Net Profit

The Net Profit of the JSSEGroup for the year 2012 of $128.9 million represented an improvement of $94.8 million against
the previous year. Income before expenses of $504.3m was higher than the previous period's $256.3 million. With the
exception of e-Campus, all areasimproved over the previousperiod. However the most significant movementswere Cess
and Fee Income which recorded increasesof $177.6 million and $69.5 million respectively. Within the groupingofincome,
only e-Campus showed a marginal decline in income over the previous year. Improvement in the Cess fees due to
acquisition of LdM by Campari and the sale of the permanent member/dealer licence buoyed the performance of the
Group. The Registrar and Trustee Services which are still considered relatively new revenue areas also improved their
performance when compared to the prior year. Investment income improved over the previousyear. The decline which
began in 2010 due to reduced interest rate was halted in 2012 despite the continued decline in rates. The investment
income of $38.2 million represents an improvement of $13.3 million and isdue to an increase in the overall investment
portfoliodueto higher levelsofincome earned.

Profit & EarningsPer Share
Net Profit derived from Operations was $128.7 million in 2012 up from $33.9 million in 2011. Thistranslatesto earning
per share of $4.59 per common share ascompared with $1.21 per common sharein2011.

Revenue

O  While cessrevenue hasshown animprovement for the last three years, with the 2012 revenue returningto the level
of 2008, the Group iscontinuingto actively pursue the diversification of the revenue stream. This effort isnecessary
as the cess revenue in 2012 is in part attributed to the large one-off transaction of $149.8 million. The effort at
diversification of therevenue stream isprovingto be successful in providing a steady and predictable revenue source
and a significant portion of the Group's revenue. New diversified revenue represents 26.2% of total revenue,
outstrippinginitial and annual listingfeesand just 5%below cessrevenue.

O  The following table and charts provide a visual representation of the revenue structure of the JSE Group, which
primarily derivesincome from trading and settlement, listing fees, pledge fees, investment income and other related
activities.

(Cont’d on next page)
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Table 3 JSE Group Revenue 2008 through 2012 ($'000)

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Cess 265,164 87,564 82,624 50,240 260,273
Fee Income
Annual Listing 43,969 41,373 37,957 40,806 36,085
Initial Listing 584 2,148 810 563 3,652
Supplementary Listing 209 308 218 155 700
Members & Attorney 56,390 10 8 8 18
Transaction 31,630 28,957 2,522 16,417 111,428
Maintenance 3,424 3,268 3,021 1,391 1,401
Trade Data 3,789 4,147 10 2,662 2,975
Registrar 20,954 17,313 11,975 6,374 4,410
Trustee 26,429 19,157 10,514 5,566 1,145
Membership Fee 1,854 1,792 1,179 1,325 1,124
Other Operating Income
Regional Conference 9,421 11,128 9,777 12,180 13,255
Other Income 40,483 39,124 38,764 21,285 33,806
Investment Income 38,166 24,863 33,159 104,416 91,027
TOTAL 542,466 281,151 232,537 263,387 561,297

J5E Group's Revenus (2012} I5E Group's Revanuae [2011)
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The Group is organized into four main business segments, namely:

(a) Exchange operationswhich deal with the operations and regulation of the exchange.

(b) Depository Services which isinvolved with the transferring and holding of securities, shares, stocks,
bonds and debentures.

(c) Investment: Thisrepresentsincome derived from investing activities of the Group with the exception
of Compensation Fund

(d) Other- Registrar and Trustee services, custodianship and other activities.

The Trustee Servicesrepresentsone of the latest additionsto the number and typesof servicesoffered. JCSDTS
now ranksasthe number one service providerintheindustry and isthe lending provider of servicesto the Unit
Trust market. Thereforethedecisiontakento moveintothisareaofthe market, haspaid dividends.

Expenditure

The Exchange continuesto monitorexpenditure by applying tight procurement guidelines. Despite this, however, the
increase in the level of expenditure has been directly affected by the increase in the price of goods and services. All
areas of expenditure increased. Staff costs and Securities Commission fees recorded the most significant increases of
$19.5 million and $35.4 million respectively. The 15.3% increase in staff cos was mainly triggered by year-end
incentive payment made in keeping with the incentive policy. The increase in securities commission fee is directly
proportionaltothelevel of cessrevenue recorded.

SecuritiesCommission Fee

Thisisafunction of the level of Cess Revenue earned and service fee from the JCSD. The Exchange levies 0.393 of 1% of
the value of each transaction on the market and the Financial Services Commission (FSC) earns 0.08% of thisamount.
Onthe other hand the FSCreceives 5 % of the income earned by the Depository. In 2012, with the increase in the Cess
Revenue of $265.2 million compared to $87.6 million in 2011, and the increased fee income from the JCSD, this
resulted in an increase in the amount paid to the FSCfrom $19.0 million in 2011 to $54.4 million or 186.3% for the
current year under review.

Total Expenditure in 2012 of $362.8 million inclusive of the finance costs of $6.4 million was higher than the 2011's
$272 million (inclusive of finance cost). Thisrepresentsa 33.4%increase when compared with 2011. All expense areas
increased over the prioryear. Keyhighlightsarebelow:

O Staff Costs
Staff Costs of $146.9 million in 2012, increased by $19.5million or 15.3% over the previous year's expenditure of
$127.5million. The primary reason wasan increase in salariesof amaximum of 8%.

O Propertyexpenses
Property expensesof $57.9 millionin 2012, increased by $10 million or 20.9%over the previousyear'sexpenditure
of $47.9 million. The primary reason wasan increase in maintenance cost.

O Professional Fees
Professional Fees of $28.1 million in 2012, increased by $8.4 million or 42.9%over the previous year's expenditure
of $19.6 million. The primary reasons were an increases in legal cost and services rendered in respect to the
preparation of the Jamaica Stock Exchange’sinitial public offering of itsordinary shares.

(Cont’d on next page)
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O Allowance for Doubtful Debts
Allowance for Doubtful Debtsof $3.4 millionin 2012 increased by $2.1 million over the previousyear'sprovision of
$1.3 million.

O e-Campus
The full impact of the expenditure for the programme was experienced in 2012 resultingin an expenditure of
$12.5m compared to $5.6m in 2011. There was also increase in the cost of delivery of the programme. Changes
have been made to reduce cost by ensuring that where possible the Group's facilities and expertise is employed.
Further asmost of the costsarefixed, the effort now isto drive revenue.

O Revenue Reserves
The Group's Revenue Reservesimproved in 2012 to $412.5 million from $298.0 million in 2011 or 38.4%due to a
net profit of $128.7 million derived from operations.

Five Year Financial Highlights

The table below showsthat after consecutive declinesin revenue between the periods2009-10, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income showsthe second year of improved performance. The year under review shows an improvement
of 92.9%over the prior year.

Withthe exception of 2008,2012 returned the highest performance measured in respect to Net Profit and Earningsper share.
The surplus was $128.7 million or 279% above the previous year's $33.9 million. Earnings per share of $4.59 were 279%
higher than the previousyear. In 2012 asin the year 2008 the Group enjoyed the benefit of a large one-off transaction but
therewasalso asteady growthinrevenue from operation. Pleasereferto table and graphsbelow:

Table 4 Five Year Financial Highlights

($000) 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
Income 561,297 263,387 | 232,537 | 281,151 542,467
Net Profit 173,589 -17,033 8,735 33,919 128,705
Earnings per share $ 6.19 -0.61 0.31 1.21 4.59
Revenue (2008 - i Met Profit (2008 - 2012) Earnings Per Share
51030{?330 - 561,2012} 542, = 173,589 heUge s <8 )
s50.000 - 7 a6 | S8.00 -
| =000
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e RiskManagement
Areview of The Group'soverall risk management drategies showsthat JSEcontinuesto be responsive to changesin our
environment, both internal and external, and that our practices, policies and procedures are robust. We continue to
update our overall risk management systemsand our internal auditorshave commended the level of responsivenessto
theirrecommendationsforimprovements.

Our diversification strategy which garted in 2005 with the introduction of the JCSD's Registrar Services continued with
our foray into the offering by the JSE of workshop training and other educational offerings. Trustee Services, e-Campus,
creation of the Junior Market and the US Denominated Securities Market are other areas in which the diversification
strategy has helped. The Group depends far less now on interes income, which continues to decline. The aim is to
continuetodiversify the stream toimprove the bottom-line. Additional strategiesto diversify the revenue stream will be
putinplaceinameasured andtimely manner.

Investments

Management, through the Group's Investment Committee, continuesto manage itsinvestment portfoliosin line with
the Investments Policy Guidelines, which are periodically reviewed by the Audit & Finance Committee of the Board. The
Investment Committee receives and review data on current market conditions and economic outlook; reviews various
risk including fair value, interest risk, liquidity risk, currency risk and market risk from reports submitted and generally
available market data. Analytical skill and financial nimblenessare increasingly important for the effective management
of portfolios, especiallyinan environment of interest rate volatility.

e Other Operational Risk Mitigation Strategies

O ITRiskManagement and Compliance
IT governance, risk management and compliance and are areas that are critical to the support of business
processes, enable effective management and control and align business with IT. Through continued audits, risks
are continually managed to ensure compliance with established policies and international standards.
Additionally, we continue to enhance the capabilities of system redundancies, dataprotection, businesscontinuity
and physical and virtual security measures in place to ensure the gystems are resilient, allowing for 100%
availability duringbusinesshours.

These controls are reviewed quarterly to ensure they provide effective governance and compliance, especially
giventherapid changeintechnology.

The Group continues to enhance its governance dructure through review of the latesd standards. With the
introduction of Cobit 5,the Group will review thisframeworkto ensure:

IT and business strategies are aligned to achieve strategic goals and realize business benefits
Maintenance of effective controls and adherence to policies

IT-related risks are maintained at an acceptable level

IT infrastructure is optimized to minimize costs

Employee training and continuing to increase awareness and ensure compliance

kN

Business Continuity:

Business continuity is an essential element of the Group's risk management strategy and consequently the Group
continuesto enhance itsdisaster recovery and continuity capabilities. Within the year 2013, the full development
of abusinesscontinuity programme will be complete.

(Cont’d on next page)
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Thethrust thereforeisto ensure commitment to developing abusiness continuity culture within the organization,
particularly sincethe businessreliesheavily oninformation technology. Thisinitiativeissupported by

1. Business Continuity Policy
2. Business Continuity Investment
3. Employee Training

Group M edium and Long Term Strategies

Not much has changed in respect to the behavior of the markets regionally, globally or in the domestic sphere. Markets
globally continueto behave erratically, with good periodsand bad periodsand thismirrorsthe current state of the economies
of many countries, regardless of size and perceived economic strength. In instances where there are appearances of market
recovery, the fragility of the movement impacts on the ability of investors and companies to properly plan. While this
patternimpactsonthe Group, there are many opportunitiesfor us. The Group'smedium and longterm strategiestherefore
are to engage and encourage investorsto the market by market education and providingthe best medium for the transaction
of our services. While the Exchange continues to be faced with the significant challenge of attracting new entrantsto the
market and retaining current market players, we believe that potential companieshave seen the positive resultsof the more
recently listed companies while investors have benefited from investing in these companies. We intend to continue
encouraging business owners to raise capital through the market and to provide the level of float to sustain a vibrant
secondary market. Our expectationisthat the Exchange must remain poised to fill those needs, provide new and interesting
productstothe market, bringglobal and regional marketscloser home and to capitalize onrenewed interest inthe market.
We also expect that with the addition of one new member-dealer and othersin the future that there will be greater vibrancy
tothe market asthese new memberscompete and bringnew productsand servicesto the market.

To ensurethat the Group isproperly positioned for growth, the focuswillbe onthe followingactivities:

e Increased market educational activitiesthrough companies' and investors' outreach, school programmes and training
of market intermediaries

e The continued focus through the JSEindependent Regulatory and Market Oversight Division of market surveillance
and member dealer inspection. The revision and or addition of new rulestowards greater market efficiencies.

e More product offeringsthrough the sae of market data; the development of and maintenance of new indices; and

derivative products.

Growing the Junior Market for the Small and Medium Sized Companies.

Expansion and growth of Registrar and Trustee Services, to possibly include Corporate Secretarial Services

The operational integration of our regional exchanges through the Caribbean Exchange Network

Utilization of Information Technology to facilitate greater efficiencies in cost reduction and new product introduction.

The introduction of new member dealersto assist with the creation of new products and the servicing of the market.
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he Jamaica Stock Exchange Group experienced mixed fortunesin
what could be considered adifficult economic climate in Jamaica
for 2012. Arising from the protracted discussions for Jamaica to
arrive at an agreement with the International Monetary Fund
(IMF), confidence and optimism were subdued despite the celebration of the
country's 50" Anniversary. The amaica Stock Market mirrored the sentiment
of the population, where the questions that had to be asked and answered
were, 'to list or not to list?" and to invest or not to invest? These were difficult
questionsfor invesors and were as challenging for us at the Exchange, aswe
triedto encourage businessesandinvestorsof positive long-term prospects.

The Exchange Group itself continuesto take the longview in respect to market
growth and development. Hence we continued to pursue the major plans
which were earmarked in order to ensure that the Exchange serves Jamaica
and resulted in our addition of a new broker member, Proven Investments, to
further deepenthe servicestoinvestorsand businessesalike.

ENVIRONM ENTALFACTORS

The global and especially the local economic conditions created the climate
for many market participants to retreat and for potential participants to shy
away from or delay activities in the market such as listing, investing or
pledging of their securities. Uncertainties about employment, the stability of
the Jamaican dollar relative to the USdollar and other hard currenciesaswell
asinflation, stacked the deck away from decisionsbeing made in term of long-
term investments, whether viewed from the lensof businessesor individuals.

Despitethe downsidesthat were experienced, some companiesand investors
recognized the opportunities that existed in the market where there was
either value to be had based on the price of particulars stocks on the market,
the investment in new growth companies or the capital that can be still be
raised by businessesfrom investorsseeking solid companiesin whichto invest.

It is anticipated that 2013 will be another challenging year. While some
confidence will return with the signing of an IMF agreement, this must be
followed by aproperly structured and well-articulated economic plan backed
by sustainable economic policies. We wish to record our appreciation to the
Government for itsconfidence in the equities market, which isdemonstrated
by their continued support of the Junior Market, and their encouragement
which has raised awareness in small and medium sized companies of the
importance of equity financing especially in our current economic
environment.

JSE PERFORM ANCEIN 2012

Inlight of environmental factors, the stock market achieved mixed results. The
value of ordinary transactions on the main market increased by 1.1%; moving
from $18.1b in 2011 to $18.3b in 2012 but when compared to 2011, the
number of transactions and volumes traded declined by 16.3% and 7.7%
respectively. While the value of ordinary transactions increased, block
; transactions increased significantly; moving from $2.9b in 2011 to $42.8b in
Jamaica Stock Exchange 2012. The acquisition of Capital & Credit Group by JM M B Group and Lascelles

(Cont’d on next page)
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General Manager
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2012. The acquisitions of Capital & Credit Group by MMB
Group and Lascelles deMercado by Campari presented the
market withtwo major block transactions.

The main market retreated by 3.35% over the previous year
evidenced by adecline in the main index which moved from
95,297.20 pointsto 92,101.22 points. Market Capitalization
also declined by 4.7% which resulted from generally lower
share prices and the delisting of Capital & Credit Financial
Group, Montego Freeport and Pegasus.

Our Junior Market also suffered mixed fortunes. When
compared with the previous year, the number of
transactions on the market, declined by 36 %. However,
volumes and value increased by 86.1% and 315.5%
respectively. M arket capitalization also decreased by 6.3 %,
whiletheindexdeclined by 13.5%.

Overall four (4) companieswere listed on the Junior Market,
which wasbelow our target but still significant in light of the
persistent economic malaise. As with every year since the
inception of the market, invegdors remained enthusiastic
andreceptivetoinvestingin new companies.

Intentionally, no new product or service was offered to the
market, as strategically the Exchange took the opportunity
to streamline and improve upon the new products or
services offered in prior years with a view of ensuring their
acceptance, usefulness and viability. We also took the
opportunity to begin working on other products and
services and infrastructural improvements and are as
successful asthe market players who take advantage of the
infrastructure that which we expect to roll out for the
ensuingyear.

We will continue our thrust to educate the market, utilizing
print, electronic, face to face outreaches, seminars and
interactive products.

OPPORTUNITES

There are many opportunities to grow the market. We
believe that with the collaboration of all our member-
dealers we should be able to develop new products and
services aimed at different investor types. The newly
introduced trading and settlement platforms provide the
infrastructurethat can be leveraged for fixedincometrading,
futures and options, closed end funds and depository
receiptsamongother productsofferedin other markets.

Even where focus is placed primarily on the products and
services currently offered, there isroom for further growth.
The eagerly awaited FSC regulation in respect of Collective
Investment Schemes will make it easier for more personsto

accessour market. Onthe other hand we expect that assoon
as more confidence isrestored to the market, in light of the
National Debt Exchange (NDX) more persons will be
encouraged to explore other options of investments rather
than aconcentration of investingin Fixed Income Securities.

New companies, listing ordinary or preference shares either
on the main or junior market, have the opportunity, of
accessing equity capital which providesthe investors with a
larger pool of securitiesin which to invest. Thisalso provides
an opportunity for the Exchange Group to deepen our
market. We believethat thereisstillthe opportunity through
the pricing of our service, incentives given and the empirical
dataonthe growth and expansion of companies post listing,
to encourage more companiesto list on the Exchange.

Thereisalwaysmeritinintroducing new blood to the market
place through additional member-dealers. We will continue
to pursuethisimperative for 2013 provided that thetimingis
right.

Thelisting of the JSE'sOrdinary sharesisanother deliverable
slated forthe upcomingyear.

STAYING THECOURSE

Our vision remains focused on improving the capital market
by creating products that will enhance investment
experience and encourage new companies to list on either
the Main or the Junior Market, thus creating new marketsin
which investors can participate. We understand and
appreciate that thismust be achieved in order to create real
returnsto our shareholders. This must however be pursued
in conjunction with all who have a stake in ensuring that the
market serves the purpose of mobilizing capital and
providingan avenuefor long-term investment.

JSEOPERATING PLATFORM S

Our trading and settlement software and hardware
platformsremained robug in 2012 and we are now focused
on leveraging the platformsintroduced in 2011. In 2012 we
introduced the ISIN Generation service and are now focused
on streamlining the platforms to ensure that there is full
utilization in the areas of Trustee and Registrar Services. The
technical capabilities of the system will also allow us to
introduce other servicessuch asOnline Trading.

During the year 2012, we experienced no significant
downtime. This was evidenced by the fact that during the
Hurricane in October 2012 our systems were not affected.

(Cont’d on next page)
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The market opened, closed and settled on time every day
afterresumingnormal operations.

Aswe seekto enhance our capabilities, the JSEwill continue
to ensure that we take advantage of available market
technologies.

JSECORPORATEACTIVITIESAND NEW INITIATIVES
On-going Activities

<» Upgrades and enhancement of trading platform for
efficient market delivery

«<» Upgrades of other supporting sysems to ensure
relevance and compliance

«» Website enhancement including Stock Market Game
geared at market education at high school & tertiary
level

< Safftraining

«» Continued development of internal processesfor CXN

“* Preparationfor Futures& OptionsMarket

** JSEe-Campus

«* PublicStock Market Game and

«» Development of the Fixed Income M arket

DEPARTM ENTALHIGHLUIGHTS

M ARKETING ACTIVITIES

The Stock Exchange Group continues to be driven by the
research data and information received from the JSCD that
although more personsareinvestinginthe market, we need
to double our effort at growingthe market. We are sensitive
to the fact that while we add new investors, we have to be
sensitive to the needs of existing clients in order to
encourage them to continue to participate in the market. To
this end the Marketing Department is developing
programmesto engage all our constituentsand at the same
time grow the number of investors.

Some of the programmesbeing pursued are:

Capital M arket Conference

The Regional Conference on Investments and the Capital
Market Conference, hosed by the Jamaica Stock Exchange
celebrated its seventh year in 2012. There is no better
testimony to the success of any Conference than the fact
that the major sponsors remain on-board year after year.
Overtheyearswe have sponsorssuch asOppenheimer & Co.,
Inc. which is based in USA as our lead sponsor. TVJ and
Jamaica Observer as our major local sponsors have

partnered with us in advertising and providing coverage of
the Conference. We have had tremendoussupport from our
repeated sponsors who have time and again signaled their
willingness to continue to participate in this important
Conference. Our new sponsorshave now shared inthe vision
of the Conference of this nature and the benefits to be
derived from having this important calendar event which
kick- startsand helpsto set thetoneforthe New Year.

Every year the Conference focuseson areasof local, regional
and global interest to discuss how economies can position
itself to capitalize on any opportunities that presents itself,
but most importantly how organizations can facilitate the
growth and development in Jamaica. The JSE has been able
to interest some of the world's leading experts as well as
local resource persons to dimulate thought provoking
discussions and postulate solutions and directions in which
organizations can position themselves to ensure continued
positivereturnontheirinvestments.

Stock M arket Game

The Jamaica Stock Exchange's Stock Market Game for High
Schools ended its fourth season on April 30, 2012. In this
season,therewerefour first time entrants, namely, Guy's Hill
High, Holy Childhood High, York Castle High, and Ocho Rios
High.

This website-based simulation game allows studentsto buy
and sell stocks traded on the JSE Stock Market. Each
participating school is comprised of two students who will
trade and compete againg each other and students from
other schools over a seven month period. Each student is
given a portfolio with JA$100,000.00 to invest and the
students with the highest portfolio value at the end of the
period are declared the winners. The school with the highest
aggregate portfolio value will be crowned the JSE School
Champion.

Calabar High School after winning their first JSE Stock Game
for High School title in 2009-2010, made it two in a row in
2011.In 2012, their centenary year they once again won the
JSEStock Market Game for High Schoolstitle, makingit three
inarow.

The Calabar High pair of Lavois Cruickshank and Jevaughn
Leon placed their school first with an aggregate portfolio
value of $1,714,920.00. Kingston College placed second with
an aggregate portfolio value of $269,577.80. In third place
was Kingston Technical High with a portfolio value of
$200,818.50.

(Cont’d on next page)
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M arket Research Competition

For every quarter of the year, the JSE invites analysts from
the securitiesindustry, tertiary institutionsand the mediato
submit analyses based on the past performance and future
expectationsof listed companies.

Participants conduct research, perform analyses and
prepare submissions on the selected company, using the
JSE'srequired format.

A select panel (drawn from academic institutions, the
financial services sector, the investing community and the
media) judges these submissions based on gsated criteria
and determines the winning entry and runner-up for each
quarter. The panel conductsbriefings periodically to provide
feedback to participants. At year-end, the panel will
determine the top two winners who will make final
presentations (written and oral) for a select panel of judges
todeterminetheoverallwinner fortheyear.

Throughout the year, winning analyses are published.
Quarterly and overall winners receive cash prizes. In
addition, winning entrantsmay be submitted for publication
inthe print and electronicmedia.

The 2012/13 winner of the Market Research Competition
was NCB Capital Markets Limited’s Shellon Williams, while
Scotialnvestments’ Najja Daley wasthefirst runner up.

High School Education Programme

The JSE continues its drive towards assisting High School
students, who are pursuing the CSEC and CAPE exams, to
understand the roles and functions of the Stock Exchange
and to allow students to develop an appreciation for
investments. In summary the programme aimsto introduce
studentsfrom an early age to:

v' Therole & functions of the stock market
v' The importance of Savings & Investments
v Investing using stocks and

v' The importance of financial literacy
Workshops

The JSE's workshops provide an avenue for complex
matters to be addressed in an interactive and supportive
environment which is conducive to positive learning
outcomes. Participants of these workshops are usually
drawn from Listed Companies, Member Dealer firms and
persons in the related field, based on the material to be
explored. The JSE's workshops seek to introduce new
concepts aimed at stimulating individuals towards further

research and or application. These workshops also
demonstrate and encourage practical and current
techniquesto help spur participantsto remain current with
the latest trends and for them to take back to their business
places.

The JSE's Workshops are an ideal way to teach hands-on
skills because they offer participants a chance to delve into
new methodsand share experiences.

JSE'sPubliclnvestor Outreach

The Jamaica Stock Exchange (JSE) continues to reshape the
financial landscape with our informative and engaging public
awareness programmes. We aim to transform how people
view the stock market by enabling them to embrace
investing in securities on the Exchange as a viable medium
for wealth creation. The Exchange hosted three Public
Investor Outreachesin 2012. These were held in Kingston &
St. Andrew and Manchester. They were well received and
built awareness in respect to raising capital through listing
onthemainandjunior marketsand the creationof wealth by
investingin equities.

Based on our success to date, the JSE will continue to hogt
our branded Public Education Outreach Forum. Through
each of these events, which enable a partnership between
the JSE and our associates drawn primarily from our
member-dealer firms, major towns across the island are
visited. We engage in honest discussion with enthusiastic
and sometimes skeptical participants, on the role of the
stock market and introduce to them to waysthey can benefit
from investment opportunitiesinthe stock market.

Corporate Outreach

Asapart of the SSE'sthrust to educate the market on how to
invest in the stock market, the Group offers an exciting 30-
minute presentation geared towards employees in the
Jamaican workforce. The aim of the programme isto present
simple and concise information about how the stock market
works to benefit Jamaicans. In 2012 the Stock Exchange
visited 24 institutions, ranging from top corporations to
tertiary institutions. This represents a fifty percent (50% )
increase over 2011, when the Exchange visited 16
institutions.

National Investor Education Week
In 2012, The Jamaica Stock Exchange in association with its
partners, Supreme Ventures, Financial Services Commission,
the Gleaner Company, JN Fund M anager, Sagicor, RBC Bank,
First Global Financial Services and Barita Investments Ltd.
joined forcesin hosting the 4th National Investor Education
Week from October 1-4, 2012 under the theme “Securing
(Cont’d on next page)
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your Financial Future over the next 50 Years”. This was a
part of Jamaica's50th anniversary celebration.

The objectivesoftheweekwereto:

Be apart of the 50" anniversary celebration

Bringinto focustheimportance of the EquitiesM arket
Educate the inveding public in these towns about the
benefits of listing on the market, investing in equities
and the regulatory framework that isin place to protect
theirinvestments

Increasethe number of equity investorson the market
Reconnect with existing investors and business
associates

The major highlights of the week were the contribution of
$50,000.00 to 10 companies which was aimed at assisting
them with their business development plans. The JSE with
the partnership of First Global, Sagicor and RBC Bank was
able to make the contribution to these fledging
organizations. Ten Companies that were listed on the
Exchange from theinception of the JSEwere also recognized
at aLuncheon.

Best PracticesAwards

National Commercial Bank walked away with four of the top
awards including the Governor General's Award for
Excellence at the Jamaica Stock Exchange's eight Best
Practices Awards, which was held a the Jamaica Pegasus
Hotel on December 5,2012. National Commercial Bank beat
the 2011 winner PanCaribben Financial (Sagicor) into
second place.

The JSE Best Practices Awards were established in 2004 by
the Jamaica Stock Exchange asamedium to encourage listed
companies and stockbrokers in the securities industry to
adopt and uphold best practices standards and to enhance
the relationship between the JSE and its stakeholders. The
JSE has over the yearsrefined these awards and has added
several new awards since its inception. Chief among these
are:

v Junior Market Awards 2012
v' The Member Dealers Awards category in 2011
v' The PSOJAward for Corporate Governance in 2008

Each year these pregtigious awards are now seen as a listed
company or amember-dealer'smark of excellence.

Publication

The Exchange publishes a number of publications aimed at
assisting investors, potential investors and the investment
community to make more informed decisions and generally
to provide market updates. These publicationsare:

1. The Stock Market Review

2. The Pocket Book

The Year Book

CEO's Report

A Guide to the Jamaican Securities M arkets

ok w

E-Campus

In the face of a changing global economy and evolving
technology, the Jamaica Stock Exchange introduced a game
changer: it recognized that personsin the financial services
industry needed to remain current and relevant within their
field, but without sacrificing family and social time, and
eliminating the hassle of frequent travel to brick and mortar
institutions.InMarch 2012the JSEintroduceditse-Campus.

The JSEe-Campusisaweb-based learning system that allows
students to attend courses online. Lessons are interactive
with video and audio clips of lecturers. Students are able to
view content material and e-books, do tests and interact
with lecturers, from anywhere, at anytime. In additionto the
online component, students are also afforded the
opportunitytointeract with their lecturersand peersin face-
to-face Sunday lecture sessions at least once during each
course.

INTERNALAUDIT

Our internal controls and procedures have improved
following our decision to outsource our internal audit
function to PriceWaterHouseCoopers. The JSEhas taken on
board the recommendations of our auditors and our
response time for implementation has been excellent. This
trend will continue and will lend itself to further gains in
respect to efficienciesand controls.

INFORM ATION TECHNOLOGY

The Group's technology unit continues the journey of
ensuring we keep current relevant areas of the IT
infrastructure. We have made significant progress in this
area to ensure the organization's strategic objectives are
met.

(Cont’d on next page)
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Successful initiatives during 2012 and continuing into 2013
were:

1. Replacing obsolete computers across the group

2. Introduction of a new service offering: ISIN
Generation, a direct result of our new settlement
system implementedin2011

3. Commencement of the implementation of a new
telephone system

4. Commencement of activities for the imple-
mentation of an Online Trading System

5. Commencement of activities related to continued
improvement in our Business Continuity planning
process

6. Commencement of activities geared towards the
JSEestablishingamobile presence

7. Commencement of the implementation of a
Business Process Improvement and document
management systems

8. Launchofthe Stock Market Gameforthe public

In the area of Risk Management and Compliance we
continue to enhance and maintain syssem redundancies
which allows for 100% availability during business hours.
Our risk management policies and procedures ensure that
we are compliant with established policiesand international
standards geared towards ensuring compliance through
continued audits.

Our team remains committed to the initiatives to be
achieved in 2013 and will continue to expand its capacity to
ensure that the Group takes advantage of market
opportunities through the utilization of efficient and
effective use of technology.

HUM AN RESOURCE DEVELOPM ENT

The JSE Group continues to invest in various training and
development programmes to facilitate staff advancement
and development. Team members participated in different
workshops, seminarsin both operational support and other
courses specific to their respective areas of responsibility.
Our Chief Regulatory Officer, Mr. Wentworth Graham isnow
a Professional Member of the International Compliance
Association after successfully completing the ICA
International Diploma in Compliance. Additionally, Miss
Josephine Lewis, Manager Trustee Services Department,
successfully completed the JSE's e-Campus Post Graduate
Diplomain Financial ServicesManagementsand wasamong
thefirst graduatesof JSSE'se-Learning Cohort 1.

M iss Josephine Lewis

The JSSEGroup embracesstaff advancement, and in 2012 five
(5) team members were promoted, to managerial and
officer levels.

We continue to enable staff to have access to resources
which will allow them to make important personal lifelong
decisions. This is done through our Chat-In Sessions where
representatives from different financial institutions engage
staff in discussion on matters such as financial planning/
wealth management and health and gender issues.

Recognizing that good health and regular health checks are
of paramount importance, we continue to hold our annual
health fair in collaboration with the Heart Foundation of
Jamaica.

Safety is everyone's business and gaff members from
different departments participated in Safety Awareness
Training (includingthe matter of civil unred, fire and disaster
preparedness). These employeeswere appointed as Safety
Wardens with their main responsibilities being that of
identifying safety hazards and engaging their colleagues on
the matter of safety inthe workplace.

(Cont’d on next page)
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INTERNALCOM M UNICATIONS

While we have free flowing communications within the
Group which is aided by our Snap Communication tool,
going forward, we will be increasing internal
communications by having regular interface between
regular staff and membersof the Senior Management team.
These meetings which will be called 'Garden Chit-Chat'
would be one-on-one informal group meetings with the
General Manager and other Senior Managers. This will
facilitate improved staff engagement, employee feedback
on issues governing the Group and the building of more
effective rapport between Senior Management team and
Staff.

CORPORATE SOCIALRESPONSIBILITY

The JSEcontinuesto recognize the importance of Corporate
Social Responsibility and our major thrust isin the area of
education. To this end we continued the school-feeding
programme at S. Michael's All Age School which has
resulted in an improvement in both attendance and
punctuality of the students. It is our intention to become
more involved in the school through its PTA so asto improve
the prospectsofthe students.

FOCUS- 2013

2013 Initiatives Growing our business and improving
processes

In 2013, the JSE's primary main focus will be on the
implementation of the following:

* Business Process Improvement and Document
Management geared towards full process
automation

¢ Development of Stock M arket mobile application

e Enhancement of Disaster Recovery & Business
Continuity capabilities

* Improvementinourwebsite

* Improvements in our internal capabilities and
infrastructure for better service delivery

QOur team is committed to continuing the thrust to
implement solutions that are geared towards allowing the
Group to take advantage of market opportunities which will
increase revenue and improve quality of service. We will
also seek to leverage the existing technology and reduce
expensesbyrationalization of the ITinfrastructure.

In addition, the JSE and its subsidiary will look for
opportunities within the market to grow and expand our
services. We intend to listen to the market and provide
solutions in keeping with these calls. The focus will be on
people, place, productsand portal.

Our team is committed to continuing the thrust to
implement solutions that are geared towards allowing the
JSE and its subsidiaries to take advantage of market
opportunities which will increase revenue, improve
customer service and restore profitability. Anincrease in the
Return on Equity, efficient utilization of assets and cog
effective regulation of the market and maximizing the
Group'sinvestment portfolio willbe the major areasof focus.
Thiswas our commitment to you last year and we continue
toworktowardsimprovementsandrealizingour goal.

Finally | wish to take this opportunity to commend the
dedicated employees who, despite the tough economic
climate and sometimes limited resources, so ably perform
the tasks of developing new products, energizing old ones
and just simply maintaining them. The enthusiasm was
always on display whether to our internal or external
customers. Many thanks to the members of the Board and
the Committee who continue to play their part in ensuring
that the strategies and the underlying fabric of the Group is
current, modern and appropriate and that good governance
isnot just acatch-phrase butispracticed.

The Stock Market isrelevant, it istimely and, aswith all good
products and servicesit must be properly utilized. The team
stands ready to continue to deliver on the promise of
'providing afair, efficient and transparent market'.

: ! e ol %
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Marlene J. Street Forrest
General Manager, JSE
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The Regulatory & Market Oversight Division's
2012 Year In Review of JSE's Regulatory Activities

Mr. Wentworth Graham
Chief Regulatory Officer

Overview

In 2012 global economies placed emphasis on rebuilding their economic base
while bolstering systems to prevent deteriorated conditions that they
experienced during the World Financial Crisis; in realizing desired national
outcomesmost nation statesrelied on financial market oversight.

The Jamaica Stock Exchange (JSE) plays a pivotal role in Jamaica's economic
development and stability, and as a Self-Regulatory Organization its regulatory
responsibilities are critical and essential. The JSE's regulatory activities are
undertaken by its divisional unit: the Regulatory & Market Oversight Divison
(RMOD). The RMOD reportsto the Regulatory & Market Oversight Committee
(RMOC), the independent body of the Exchange's Board which isresponsible for
JSE's regulatory matters. During the course of 2012 the RMOD undertook
necessary engagements to ensure that JSE's oversight activities continue to be
adequate and effective; and in satisfying its regulatory objectives the Division
concentrated on the following core functions: Listed Company Compliance,
Member-dealer Regulation, Market Surveillance, Enforcement, Dispute
Resolution/Arbitration and Risk Assessment.

Listed Company Compliance

One aspect of Listed Company Compliance is Listed Companies' Financial
Compliance, which involves the RMOD's review of Listed Companies' financial
results before and after listing on the JSE. For the 2012 calendar year RMOD
reviewed the five (5) new listingson the JSEto ensure that their financial results
satisfied JSE'slistingrequirements;in 2011 seven (7) new listingswere reviewed.
Additionally, during the year the Division reviewed two hundred and forty-eight
(248) Financial Statements (Unaudited, Audited and Annual Reports) that were
filed with the Exchange to verify that continued listing standards were satisfied;
and of the set sixty-seven (67) had to be amended. In 2011 the Division reviewed
two hundred and sixty-four (264) Financial Statements, and of the set eighty-nine
(89) hadtobeamended.

Listed Companies' Corporate Compliance isthe other aspect of Listed Company
Compliance, and in thisregard the RMOD ensures that Liged Companies satisfy
the highest standards of accountability and transparency. For the year 2012 the
Division examined five hundred and seventeen (517) Corporate Notices, twenty-
nine of which were considered non-compliant. In 2011 the Division reviewed
five hundred six-five (565) Corporate Notices and twenty-three (23) were
determined asnon-compliant.

(Cont’d on next page)
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The Regulatory & Market Oversight Division's
2012 Year In Review of JSE's Regulatory Activities (Contd)

Member-dealers Regulation

Member-dealers regulation entails examinations,
monitoring, rules development and educating industry
practitioners. For year in review, as part of its member-
dealer examination, the RMOD reviewed one hundred
and eight-seven (187) financial filings (Monthly,
Quarterly and Audited Reports) that were made by
member-dealers. Equally, in 2012 the Division did two
(2) on-site member-dealer inspections, and two (2) off-
site inspection updates. The RMOD identified two (2)
issues as part of its monitoring of member-dealers'
activities during 2012, and it undertook one (1) rule
amendment for member-dealers. As it relates to
educating industry practitioners, in addition to
publishing two (2) issues of its newsletter entitled
“Inside the RMOD”, the Division had two (2) training
sessions for member-dealers; one which took the form
of a joint workshop with the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Jamaica, and the other as a member-
dealer'sorientation session.

M arket Surveillance

The RMOD market surveillance responsibilities take the
form of monitoring trading activities to identify market
infractions and irregular trading patterns. The Division
has direct access to JSE's trading and settlement
platforms which aid its market surveillance activities,
and given this access during 2012 nine (9) trading
exceptions were identified. All issues were thoroughly
investigated and requisite clarifications were provided.
In2011 the Division identified five (5) trading exceptions.

Enforcement

As a consequence of determining that there hasbeen a
violation of the JSE's Rules and other market regulations
the RMOD is required to administer enforcement
actions. During 2012 the number of enforcement
actions that were taken against member-dealers and
Listed Companies were seven (7) and two (2),
respectively. In 2011 one (1) enforcement action was
administered, and it wasagainst amember-dealer.

Dispute Resolution/ Arbitration

The Division has a duty to provide a neutral setting for
disputeresolution between investors, member-dealersand
Listed Companies. During2012the Division wascalled upon
to settle one (1) issue between an investor and a Liged
Company; in 2011 the Division also handled one (1) issue
between aninvestor and aLised Company.

Risk Assessment

In fulfilling its risk assessment objective the RMOD is
required to assess the risks in the industry as well as to
measure the efficacy of its own regulatory programmes.
Given the size of its operations, the RMOD treats with the
industry's risks by conducting Risk Based Inspections. In
satisfyingthe foregoing, during2012, the Division did onsite
and follow-up inspections as detailed above. In relation to
testing of the Division's inspection programme, during the
course of 2012, the JSE's Internal Auditors did an
examination of the unit and provided recommendations
that have been duly accepted.

ClosingComments
In addition to the above mentioned core activities, it is

suitable also to mention that during the course of 2012 the
RMOD reviewed twenty-seven (27) Circulars (Prospectuses,
Take-over Bids, Directors' Circulars) that were submitted to
the JSE; the amount equaled 2011's tally. The Division
attended 37 of the 45 Special and Regular meetings
convened duringthe year by Lised Companies.' In2011 the
Division attended thirty-seven (37) of the forty-three (43)
Special and Regular Meetings convened by Listed
Companies.

In closing, | wish to acknowledge the RMOC for its
indefatigable direction of the RMOD, as well as the
invaluable support and teamwork of the Division's officers,
and assistance provided by saff of the wider JSE. Given the
role and responsibilities of the RMOD, | wish to assure all
stakeholders that in the ensuing year every effort will be
madeto advancethe Exchange'sregulatoryresponsibilities.
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t was a night when National
Commercial Bank walked
away with four of the top

awards at the Jamaica Stock
Exchange Best Practices Awards, which

was held at the Jamaica Pegasus Hotel
on Wednesday, December 5,2012. The
event wasfully supported by corporate
Jamaica. This prestigious gathering
included the Honourable Steadman
Fuller, Custos Rotulorum of
Kingston,representing His Excellency,
the Most Honourable Patrick Allen-the
patron of the event, and the
Honourable Marigold Harding, Custos
Rotolorum of St. Andrew.

Mrs. Marlene Street Forrest, General
Manager of the Jamaica Stock
Exchange opened the event by
welcoming the guests. Mrs. Street
Forrest lauded the efforts of the
various companies throughout the
Jamaica and the Caribbean that have
focused on Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR). According to her,
“Many persons do not know that the
purpose, content and structure of a
company's CSRare reviewed as part of
these best practices awards. So often
persons speak to how much more
corporate Jamaica should or could be
doing for social development without
stopping to recognize the major
contributionsthat are already made by
these companies. Indeed, we shudder
to think what Jamaica and the wider
Caribbean would look like without
these contributions and those of civil
society. We wish to congratulate all
companiesthat are often tirelessly and
thanklessly doing their part and urge
youto continuetodo yourbest”.

Dennis Cohen, Deputy Group Managing Director of National Commercial Bank Jamaica receives the Governor
General's Award for Excellence from the Hon Steadman Fuller, Custos of Kingston at the JSE's Best Practices

Awards 2011 held December 5,2012.

The Guest Speaker for the eighth Best
Practices AwardswasDr. Claire Nelson;
Founder and President of the Institute
of Caribbean Studies, a think-tank
based in Washington DC. She gave a
riveting presentation advocating that
Jamaica as a country can achieve
excellence and Jamaicans in particular
have the ability to achieve excellence.
She spoke of Marcus Garvey, who had
no cellular phone and no Twitter
account, yet had over one million
followersin over twenty countries. She
told the audience that the four basic
and essential ingredients to achieve
excellence are vision, perseverance,
passion and love. The first ingredient is
instilled in us through our national
anthem, the second requires
determination or 'stick-to-it-iveness',
the third is energy or motivation and
finally love, which she described as all-
encompassing and holds everything

together. Love, she said, transcends all
boundaries and has the ability to lift
the spiritsofindividuals.

Professor Neville Ying, the Chairman of
the Best Practices Committee next
threw out an appeal to the Listed
Companies and Brokerage, to be the
best that they can be. According to
Professor Ying “ As we are living in a
global village where companies have
tocompete against the beg of the best,
itisveryimportant that we change our
mind-set in Jamaica and ensure that
mediocrity has no place amongst
institutions. The world is at our
fingertips; this means by the click of a
mouse, business can be done
anywhere in the world. Therefore, it is
imperative that companies have the
best Board of Directors, the best
management team, the best customer
service, the best products, the best

(Cont’d on next page)
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website ... and as a matter of fact
simply the best of everythingto be able
to effectively and efficiently compete
inthe global market place”.

It was now left to the Master of
Ceremonies, Mr. Michael Anthony
Cuffe, along with Dr. Nsombi Jaja to
announce the winners. They started
with the Member Dealers Awards. In
the category of Revenue Generation &
Market Activity, the JSE recognized
Member Dealers that, during the year,
“Traded the most value on the
Exchange” and participated in the JSE's
programmes:

2nd Runner up was JMMB Securities
Ltd., 1st Runner up was NCB Capital
Markets Ltd. and the winner in this
category was Pan Caribbean Financial
Services Ltd. for the second year
running.

The next category to be announced
was that of Investor Relations This
award recognizes the Member Dealer
that “consistently exceeds customers'
expectations by providing excellent
customer service.” The 1st Runner ups
were Barita Investments Ltd. & Capital
& Credit Securities Limited and the
winner for the second year running
was PanCaribbean Financial Services
Ltd.

JSE Member-Dealers Award for Best
Website was next. This award is given
to encourage member dealers to raise
the quality and efficiency of the
dissemination of information to the
investing publicviathe website. Stocks
& Securities Limited was the 2nd
Runner up, with the 1st runner up
being Capital & Credit Securities
Limited and the winner for the second
year running was First Global Financial
ServicesLtd.

). JSE CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS 2012 (Con'td)

Terry-Ann Jamieson
Warren (left), Research
Analyst - Pan Caribbean
Financial Services
receives the winning
award for JSE Member-
Dealers Investor
Relations Award from
Hon Marigold Harding,
Custos of St. Andrew.

Angeline Carr (left),
Compliance Officer,
Stock & Securities Ltd
accepts the 2" Runner
up prize in the JSE
Member Dealers
Website category from
Dr. Claire Nelson,
Founder & President,
Institute of Caribbean
Studies.

Lissant Mitchell (left)
Chief Operating Officer,
Scotia Investments
Jamaica Ltd accepts the
2" runner up award for

™ the JSE Member Dealers
. Expansion of Investors
& Listed Companies
base from Alvaro
Casserly, Director, JCSD.

(Cont’d on next page)
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The next category to be announced
was the “Expansion of Investors &
Listed Companies Base”. This award
recognizes the Member Dealer that
has; “increased the number of clients
in the JCSD and has listed the most
companies within 2011”. The 2nd
runner up in this category was Scotia
Investments Jamaica Limited, the 1st
runner up position went to JMMB
Securities Ltd. and the winner was
Mayberry Investments Ld for the
secondyearinarow.

The Jamaica Stock Exchange Member
Dealers Overall Winner went to
Mayberry Investments Ltd. for the
second consecutive year!

It was now time for the Best Practices
Awards 2011 for Listed Companies to
be announced. This year both Junior
Market and Main Market companies
were recognized. The first award in this
category was the presentation of the
Best Practices - Annual Report Award
for Junior & Main Markets Listed
Companies. This award is given to
encourage publicly listed companiesto
produce clearer, more reader-friendly
annual reports and to provide greater
insight into the companies' financial
affairs, governance practices and
business activities. General Accident
Insurance Company Ltd. was the only
winner in the Junior Market category.
While in the Main Market, 2nd Runner
up went to Sagicor Life JamaicaLtd. and
Joint Winners were PanCaribbean
Financial Services Ltd & National
Commercial Bank Jamaica Ltd.

Best Performing Company Award
seeks to identify and recognize
outstanding performance by Listed
Companies in enhancing shareholder
value in the areas of capital efficiency,
profitability and direct return on

JSE CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS 2012 (Con'td)

Lennox Channer (left),
Assistant General
Manager, Group
Managing Director's
Office, NCB receives the
award for Best Practices
Annual Report Main
Market (joint with Pan
Caribbean) from
Professor Neville Ying,
Chairman of the Best
Practices Committee.

Allan Lewis, Deputy
Chairman - JSE presents
the JSE Member-Dealers
Revenue Generation &
Market Activity Award to
Kirk Al Brown, Senior
Equity Trader, Pan
Caribbean Financial
Services Limited.

Odel Johnson, Financial
Controller of Jamaica
Property Company
Limited a subsidiary of
Pan-Jamaican Investment
Trust Ltd accepts the 2
runner up award for the
JSE Best Performing
Company (Main Market)
from Donovan Perkins,
Chairman - JSE.

(Cont’d on next page)
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shareholdings. In the Junior Market
category the 2nd Runner up was Lasco

Financial Services Ltd., while 1st
Runner up went to Lasco
Manufacturing Ltd. and Cargo

Handlers emerged the winner. In the
Main Market category the 2nd Runner
up was Pandamaican Investment Trug
Ltd., whilethe1st Runner up was Scotia
Investments Jamaica Lid. and the
winner wasCarrerasLtd.

Corporate Disclosure & Investor
Relations award serves to recogniz
companiesthat maintain good investor
relations with the wider investing
public and make timely and accurate
reportsand announcementsto the JSE.
In the Junior Market category, the 1%
runner up was Caribbean Producers
Jamaica Limited and the winner was
Honey Bun Ltd. The Main Market had
Joint 2nd Runner up in Grace Kennedy
Ltd. & Scotia Group Jamaica Ltd., while
the 1st Runner up was PanCaribbean
Financial Services Ltd. The Winner
was National Commercial Bank
Jamaica Ltd.

The Best Practices Website Award
seeksto encourage listed companiesto
raise the quality and efficiency of the
dissemination of information to the
investing public via their websites. The
Junior Market awardswere handed out
as usual with 2™ Runner up- Lasco
Manufacturing Ltd., 1° Runner up -
Honey Bun Ltd. and the winner was
Caribbean Producers Jamaica Ltd. The
Main Market presentation 2nd Runner
up went to Sagicor Life Jamaica Ltd., 1st
Runner up went to Trinidad Cement
Limited and Guardian Holdings Ltd was
thewinner for the second year running.

The penultimate award was the
PSOJ JSE Corporate Governance
Award which seeks to recognize
companies that demonstrate and
practice outstanding corporate
governance. The 2nd Runner up was
Pancaribbean Financial Services,
followed by the 1st Runner up - Scotia
Group and National Commercial Bank
emergedthewinner.

In_the end the .ISF'e

JSE CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS 2012 (Con'td)

Overall Best Practices Award had Joint
Overall Winners Caribbean Producers
Jamaica Ltd and Honey Bun Ltd.

The company to walk away with
Governor General's Award for
Excellence and the overall winner of
the competition was National
Commercial Bank Jamaica Ltd.

Patrice Gray, Finance Director Carreras Ltd., receives the winning award for the JSE Best Performing Company
(Main Market) from Donovan Perkins, Chairman-JSE.

Robin Levy, General
Manager JCSD
presents 2" Runner up
award for Best
Practices Corporate
Disclosure & investor
Relations to Ms. Gene
Douglas, Company
Secretary Pan
Caribbean Financial
Services.

(Cont’d on next page)
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JSE CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS 2012 (Con'td)

Custos Harding Rings Bell to
Mark The Opening of The Market
At JSE's Niew on October 4, 2012
and in the background is Mr.
Robin Levy, General Manager
JCSD and Deputy General
Manager; JSE.

From left Mr. Gary Peart, Mr.
Robin Levy, Mrs. Marlene
Street Forrest, Mr. John
Mahfood and Mr. Brian
George at the Gleaner
Editor's Forum as part of the
JSE National Investor
Education Week 2012.

(Cont’d on next page)
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Salada Foods Jamaica
one of the sponsors of
the JSE National
Investor Education

+  Week 2012.

Attendees at the
JSE/UMMB Investor
Forum speak with a

JMMB Representative ¢
the seminar held April
17, 2012.

From Left Mr. Roy Reid,
Mrs. Marlene Street
Forrest and Paul Gray
speak with participants at
the JSE/JMMB Investor
Forum held April 17, 2012.
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SHAREHOLDINGS
Top 10 for Jamaica Stock Exchange
As at December 31, 2012
Name
Account(s) Joint Holders Volume Percentage

FIRST GLOBAL FIN. SERV. LTD-TRADINGA/C

1,408.,803.00 4.27
1,408,803.00 4.27
DEREK DEMERCADO
1,254.,489.00 3.80
1,254,489.00 3.80
WILFORD REID
Ronton Constantine Schrouder 1,249,511.00 3.79
1,249,511.00 3.79
CHARLES LEIBA
1,200,000.00 3.64
1,200,000.00 3.64
VICTORIA MUTUAL BUILDING SOCIETY
1,011,747.00 3.07
1,011,747.00 3.07
WINSTON COLE
1,008,705.00 3.06
1,008,705.00 3.06
BERRIST ALFANZO PHILLIPS
Cherrie Evadney Phillips 1,000,618.00 3.03
1,000,618.00 3.03
VMWM CLIENT 1
918.,821.00 2.78
918,821.00 2.78
ONIS JOHNSON
Monica Johnson 751,725.00 2.28
751,725.00 2.28
LASCELLE LENFORD BROWN
Paula Ann Sinclair 627,278.00 1.90
627,278.00 1.90

Executives Holdings for Jamaica Stock Exchange
As at December 31, 2012

Name
Account(s) Joint Holders Volume Percentage

MARLENE STREET-FORREST

1656248 8.333.00 0.03
8,333.00 0.03

ROBIN LEVY
1903798 25,000.00 0.08
25,000.00 0.08

(Cont’d on next page)
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Executives Holdings for Jamaica Stock Exchange
As at December 31, 2012
Name
Account(s) Joint Holders Volume Percentage

SUZETTE MCNAUGHT

1300367 Minette McLeish 25,000.00 0.08
25,000.00 0.08
DOREEN PARSONS-SMITH
1902782 8.333.00 0.03
8,333.00 0.03
SUZETTE WHYTE
1902956 Felix Whyte 10,000.00 0.03
10,000.00 0.03
NEVILLE ELLIS
1902931 8,333.00 0.03
8,333.00 0.03
JOSEPHINE LEWIS
1303106 25,000.00 0.08
25,000.00 0.08

Directors Holdings for Jamaica Stock Exchange
As at December 31, 2012

Name
Account(s) Joint Holders Volume Percentage

RITAHUMPHRIES LEWIN

1012871 19,978.00 0.06
19,978.00 0.06

EDWIN MCKIE

1002955 Beulah McKie 49.846.00 0.15
49,846.00 0.15

(Cont’d on next page)
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SHAREHOLDINGS Contd
Ordinary Shareholdings for Jamaica Stock Exchange
As at December 31, 2012
Names Shareholdings
Barita Investments Limited 2,550,000
First Global Financial Services Limited 2,550,000
Jamaica Money Market Brokers Limited 2,550,000
M/VL Stockbrokers Limited 2,550,000
Mayberry Investments Limited 2,550,000
NCB Capital Markets Limited 2,550,000
PanCaribbean Financial Services Limited 2,550,000
Scotia DBG Investments Limited 2,550,000
Stocks & Securities Limited 2,550,000

VM Wealth Management Limited 2,550,000
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Deloitte & louche

D e I o i t t e ° Chartered Accountants

7 West Avenue
Kingston Gardens

P.O. Box 13, Kingston 4
Jamaica, W.I.

Tel: (876} 922 6825-7
Fax: (876) 922 7673
http://www.deloitte.com/jm

42B & 42C Union Street
Montego Bay
Jamaica, W.I.

Tel: (876) 9524713-4
Fax: (876) 979 0246

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'REPORT

To the members of

THE JAMAICA STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED
Report onthe financial statements

We have audited the financial statements of The Jamaica Stock Exchange Limited (the Company) and the financial satements of
the Company and its subsidiary (the Group), set out on pages 58 to 126, which comprise the Group's and the Company's statements
of financial position as at December 31, 2012, the Group's and the Company's statements of comprehensive income, statements of
changes in equity and statements of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and the CompaniesAct, 2004 of Jamaica and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with international Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant
to the entity's preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

(Cont’d on next page)
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Report on the financial statements (Cont'd)

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and the Company as at
December 31, 2012 and of the Group's and the Company's financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Report on additional requirements of the Companies Act, 2004 of Jamaica

We have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper accounting records have been maintained and the financial statements are in agreement therewith and give
the information required by the Companies Act, 2004 of Jamaica in the manner so required.

Chartered Accountants

Kingston, Jamaica,
February 27,2013

Audlev L. Gordon, Anura Jayatillake, Winston G Robinson, Fagan E. Calvert, Gihan C. DeMel Member of
Deloitte louche Tohmatsu Limited
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The notes on Pages 66 to 126 form an integral part of the financial statements.

JAMAICA AN 1
. STOCK Trangoarent Stock M arke” REPO qu}lgo i)
EXCHANGE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINAMCIAL POSITION AT DECEMBER. 31, 2012
Lecember 21, December 31, January 1,
. wAE. 2011 2011
Motes 000 000 H0C0
ASSETS
MNon-current assets
Properly and equipment 5 78,620 93,087 87,555
Intangible 2seats B 31 83K 24610 12,877
Fast emgployment benefits 8 B5 208 78,601 78,163
Investment in securities g 279,657 262,102 286 435
Long-tzrm receivables 16 B.YfT Fh24 6,935
Total non-current assets 481950 466,024 470,065
Currant aszsets
Irzoime tax recovarable 34 12,71 315,046 37,5498
Trade and olher receivables 11 £4,449 68,544 26,983
Imvestmeant in sacuritias 0 49,396 19,164 -
Cash and cash equivalents 12 180,766 £4.829 36,723
Total current assets 307,382 178,423 101,584
Tatal assats FEG 3T £45,407 £71.642
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and Reserves
Share capital 13 168,590 168,520 168,530
Fair vahm resarve 14 448 7,272 1,943
Fevenus resane 15 412 462 297,893 264 078
Total equily hE1,495 473 867 434 €049
Mon-current liabilities
Long-tarm lighililiss 16 14,334 BG,124 G9 487
Deoferred tax liabilities 17,34 a7 838 24181 25543
Total non-current liabllities 52272 110,305 _ 95,030
Current liahillties
Payahblas and accruals 15 i s 54,409 40 450
Currsnt portion of long-term liabilities 15 3129 &, 746 1,550
Total currant llabllities 125,602 £l s 42,310
Tatal equity and llabilities f88.52 845 407 071,049

The financial statements Pages 58 to 126 were approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on

February 27, 2013 and are signed on its behalf by:

i _\\
2 ] FT
e e e

e =

Diractor

Y ———— =

Diractor
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The notes on Pages 66 to 126 form an integral part of the financial statements.

JAMAICA N I
« mf STOCK Trangarent Stook M arket” REPO R%\IEO )
EXCHANGE
CONSOLIDATELD STATEMENT OF CONMPREHENSIVE INCOME
YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2012
2012 2011
Nohes F0H0 F000
Incorme
Cess 255,164 87,564
Fee income 189 232 119,754
E-campus 4,388 5,432
Qlher operaling income 19 45519 43,533
504 301 256,288
Expensas
Staff costs 20 146,929 127 4BT
Froperly expenses a7 5458 475949
Depreciation and amortisation 19 526 11.188
Advertising and promotion 20,782 2008492
Profassional fees 28 118 19,628
Securities commission fees 54 436 18.04%
Allowances for doubtful debis 11 3,300 1.324
E-campus 12 532 5.580
Cther operating expenses 12714 12617
306 376 265.381
Investment incomie 21 36,166 24,063
Other gains 22 5,931 20,477
Finanos costs 23 (6,382} [ BB}
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 24 165,640 37.558
Texation 25 i BE 935) [ 3.B7%)
NET FROFIT 26 128 705 33.51%
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Met fair value (loss) gain on available-for-sale
financial assets during the year 14 {__6.82/) 53759
Other comprohensive incame for the year, net of taxes ( B.82) 5.32%
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 121 875 20 248
Earnings per share 27 54.54 $1.21
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. EigﬁﬁNGE Trangarent Stook M arket” REPORT 20 12
COMSOLIDATED STATEMEMT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
YEAR EMDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

Fair
Share Yalle Fewenues Canlingency
Capilal R na e Eeserve Beserve Tetal
Mote FO00 FlAd FO Fol F o

Balencz at January 1, 2011 as provausly statod 162 540 1.04% 254,075 269,818 God 427
Fra- year restatenent ic” | _oEEE & & {C52.818) (539,57 5)
Balance at January 1, 2011 restaed TE2,590 1,843 264,075 - 434,509
Prafi: for tha woar 25 reslated 34 - - 32,879 - Jz.m4
Cither comprenensive noxme fos tha year 14 2,329 b,324
Taotel comerehenaive inceme for the year aa restaled - & 3£9 33,813 - 75,245
Belence at Ceczrmier 31, 2011 a3 resteced T, D90 TErZ 297,540 % 472,857
Praofi- far the year - - 128,705 - 125,706
Dl comgrenensive newne fo Lha yewr 14 L gEe : pL=R: s T - [ 8,525)
Tulel comprelemsive inzeme i lbe yaar = B 825 128,705 - 181,870
Pevment of divided i _ = (_14.225) R (_14.228)
Balance at Decamrber 31, 2012 S G850 &4t alz462 —_ Gl 408

The notes on Pages 66 to 126 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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EXCHANGE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

MNote 2012 2011
F000 000

OFERATING ACTIVITIES
Met profit 128,705 33,9159
Sdjustmants for;
Depreciation of property and eguipment %.619 8,627
Arnarlisalion of inlanaible assels a 90y 2551
Gain on sale of available-for-zales investments i 21 { o)
Gain an disposal of propety and equipment - (28477
Unraalized foreign exchange losses on invastments { 10.085) 1.723
Fost empleyment banafit (feradil) charge [ 103} 1,646
Allowancos for doubtful dobts 3,390 1,324
Ineoma tax axpansa Gl M 6T
Other gains R R ) -
Interast income i 28 330) (26.043)
[nberast sxpense £ 382 A635
Opcrating cash fows bofare movemaents in working capital 170433 5,589
Decrease {Incraasea)] in lade and olher recsivatbles 1.318 (43,024)
Increase in payakles and accruals 232,905 5,211
Fost ernployment banedit confributions (5504} L 5.084)
Cash utlised in operations 200202 (37.208)
Income lax paicd (16,5900 { 5.752)
Intarast paid {_ 8.382) ( 6,638
Cash provided by (used in) operaling aclivilies 177230 (48 555
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Invostment scouritios [net) othor ¢ 74053 (17,783
Froceeds from disposal af properly and eguipmernt 41,858
Proceads from sale of availablc-for-sale investments 28,450 32,234
Acouisitinn of properdy and cguipment i B.453) (27.514)
Soouizition of intangikble assats i1.m24} (14,184)
Lang-lerm receivables [ 1.868) ( 4558)
Interast received _25.863 31218
Cash (uscd i) provided by investing activities (_31.903% 46105
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid { 14,238) -
Froceeds from loans - 25,663
Loan repaid {5407} { 4.128)
GCasgh (uscd in) provided by financing activities i 12645} 21,535
MET INCREASE IH CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 125 682 18,041
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 54 824 36,721
Effect ol Toreign exchange rale changes 255 G5
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 12 E A v o LG

The notes on Pages 66 to 126 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AT DECEMBER 31, 2012

Dacamber 21, Decernber 51, January 1,
g 2011 - 2011

Mnles $000 $000 00y
ASSETS
Non-current assets . 1<z
Fropeaely and eguiprment 5 &67.154 85,806 79,382
Intangible assats B 20646 11,085 FEI.I'BE!
Investment in subsidiary 7 f1,000 E-J 0a 56,000
Post employment benefits g i 5oz 62,439 60,131
Investmenls n securties & 298,900 201,734 21 9.54:3
Lorwg-temn receivable 10 3,220 f11 _57rl
Total non-current assets 457 488 420,185 426,319
Current assets -
Income fax recoverakle G 10,240 3-1,11_-81? 3 1.25!.-
Trade and ather receivables 11 36,516 ﬁﬂ,ﬂ’f:t_l 16,051
Imvzstmonts in secunlies g 74,375 ?E.sz =
Ciue from related party 29 29,174 35,805 54.?55
Cash and cash enuivalants 12 157,741 40,652 _16,610
Total current assets 255045 160,742 128619
Total assets TOT,234 524,078 554,938
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Sharehalders' Equity y
Shara capital 13 168,580 166,580 168,580
Fair valun rasen 14 T 6456 . 2.345
Revenus reserve 255,305 276,653 263.968
Telal sharehalders’ equity 524,167 451 609 434,943
MNon-current liahilities )
Long-term liahiliting 16 14,334 BE, 124 nﬂ.ﬁz
Caferrad tax lianilitics 17,34 8.8 _157e4 s iy 0]
Total non-current lizbilities 43,022 101,888 90 645
Currant liatilities ;
Fayables and accruals 18 67,216 20645 27,808
Current portion of long-term lizhilitizs 16 73,179 __6.746 _1.550
Taotal currant liahilities 140 345 _3R,301 _29 359
Total equity and liabilitics 707534 5BE.U75 S04 530

The notes on Pages 66 to 126 form an integral part of the financial statements.

The financial statements Pages 58 to 126 were approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on
February 27, 2013 and are signed on its behalf by:

- o,
. —r z ; —_—
— r;’ifﬂ:’ e ﬁ
A T T T ET TR : Py o irector
Directar
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOGME

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

2012 2011
Motes F 000 3000
INCOME
Cess 229 B8O 85, 6D
Fee income 101,082 432 839
E-campus 4,386 b 432
Other oparating income 19 44 431 44 551
379 729 158 512
EXPENSES
Staff costs 20 106,978 o4, 087
Proparty expenses 34,388 27 420
Deprecialion and amorlisalion 13,830 T IRT
Advertising and pramotion 20,526 20,480
Professional fees 18,805 16,294
Securities commission fee 03,042 17,608
Allowances for doubtful dabts 11 519 955
Other operating expenses 5497 4 405
E-campus expenses 12,532 5580
286,317 194,586
Investment income 21 29720 18292
Oihexr gaing 22 - 28477
Finance costs 23 [ 6345 [ &480)
FROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 24 136,787 5,205
Taxation 25 [ 43 887 450
NET PROGFIT 92 850 12 B55
OTHER COMFPREHENSIVE INCOME
ket fair value{loss) gains on available-for-sale financial assets
during the year 14 [ 6184} 4111
Other compraehensive incaome for the year, net of taxes (6184 4111
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FIOR THE YEAR _BET08E _18 766

The notes on Pages 66 to 126 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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JAMAICA “Providing A Fair, Effident and ANNUAIL
. STOCK Trangoarent Stock M arke” REPORT 20 12

EXCHANGE
COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 21, 2012

MNote 2012 2011
2000 Fo0n

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net protit 42 BA 12,655
Adjustments for:
Depraciation of property and eqguipmeant 7.223 5,268
Amartisation of intangible assets &, 7oy 1,484
Gain on disposal of properly and eguipmentl ¢ 2B 4ATT)
Farewgn exchange gaindoss on investments [ 2,204
Fost employment bencfit (credit) charge i 2617 1,300
Allowances for doubttul debts 915 b55
Gain on sale of investments in available-for-sale financial assets I 2 I 12)
Income tax expensa charge [credi) 43 897 ro7.450)
Intarast income [ 2Z 842 [ 19,691
Intarast axpense G A445 & 480
Movements in working capital 127,344 i 24.475)
Decresss (Increase) in trade and ather receivables 1,562 | 22.561)
Increasc (Decrcase) in trade and other payablcs 37571 [ 6,892)
FPaost employment benefit contributions 3 HEZ) i3 B0
Cash used in oporations 162,615 boar.adn)
Incame tax paid i 3,638 i 3.232)
Inlarasl paid [ 8.345) [ 8480
Cash provided by {used in) operating activities 152 634 67 262)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
MNet acquisition of investments in securities | 45.574) [ 10,158)
Frocesds from sale of imvestments in availabls-fer-sals financial assets 10,017 20,0949
Invastment in subsiciany - i 5,000%
Fayments by relatad parties 7,631 27,900
Acguisition of propary and equipment [ 3872 [ 25,841
Met procesds on disposal of property and equipment - 41 828
Acquisition of intangible assets [ &7 [ 3,392)
Long-larm rereivable [ 1,680 [ 1,708
Interest recsived 182759 26 030
Cash {used in) provided by investing activities I_18.156) 69 755
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Chividend paid 04,238 -
Proceeds from loans - 25 BE2
Loan repaid 5407 4128,
Cash (used in) provided by financing activities 19645 21,6385
MET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 116 833 24,038
CASH AMD CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 40 652 16 610
Effect of fargign exchange rate changes 286 4
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 12 167 741 40 G52

The notes on Pages 66 to 126 form an integral part of the financial statements.

65



ANNUAL

JAMAICA “Providing A Fair, Effident and
- STOCK Y
F-aEXCHANGE Tranparent Stock M arket REPORT 20 2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

1 GROUP IDENTIFICATION

1.1

1.2

The Jamaica Stock Exchange Limited ithe Company) is incomporated in Jamaiza as a public limitad liakility
company. The main activities of the Company are the regulation and operation of a stock exchangs and the
developmeant of the stock market in Jamaica. The Company perferms the bwin role of regulating participants
in the stock market, and operating an efficient pladform on which that marker trades, which is the commearcial
arm of the campany. The regigtered office of the Company is 40 Harbour Strest, Kingston, Jamaics,

These financial statemeants are expressed in Jamaican dollars.

Principal Activilies

The Group comprigses Lhe Campany and ils wholly-owned subsidiary ae dekailad below:
Subsidiary Principal Activity

Jamaica Contral Seountios Dopositary Toestablish and maintain a Central Securitics Dopository
Limited [JOSOY ared ils wholly -ravriexd (CE0) in Jamaica o raansfer swnership ol securilies
subsidiary. JC30 Trustee Services "ty book entry”, including shares, stocks. bonds ar
Limited (Incorporated July 21, 2008) debentures of companies and other eligible securities. Its

subsidiary JCSD Trustes Sernvices Limited provides trustes
company managemant cuskodianship and relatsd senvices.

Bath the JGSE and its subsidiary are incorporated in Jamaica,

2 APPLICATION QF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIOMAL FINANCIAL REFORTING STANDARDS (IFR3s)

2.1

2.2

New and ravlsed Standards and Interpratations affecting the reported financlal performance and/or
financial pasition or disclosura

Thiere were na Slandards ar Inlerpretations eleclive in lhe currenl year hal allzcled he presantations or
disclosures in the financial statements ar the reported financial performance or pasition.

Details of other new and revised Standards and Intempretations applied in the financial stakements but whizh
had no effect on the amoeunts reported are set out in Note 2.2

MNew and revised standards appfied with o effect on the financial statemenis

Amendmants to IFRS T First-time Adoption of Intermational Financial Reporting Standards {annual
pericds beginning on or after Jufy 1, 2017]

The amandmeants:

« Replace references to o fixed date of January 1, 2004° with ‘the date of transition to IFRSs. thus
eliminating twe need for companies adopling IFESs for the first time to restate derecognition
transactions that occurred before the date of transition to IFRSs,

v Provide guidance an how an entity shauld resume presanting financial stataments in accordance with
IFRSE after a period when the entity was unable to comply with IFRSs because ite functional currency
was subject o severe hyperinflation.
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JAMAICA “Providing A Fair, Effident and
. STOCK Trangarent Stodk M arke” N 4
EXCHANGE 3L REPORT 20 12
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012
? APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRSs)

(Cont’d)

2.2 New and reviewed standards applied with no effect on the financial statements (Cont’d)

2.3

Amendments to IFRS 7 disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assels (annual periods beginning on or

after Juty 1, 2011)

= Tho amendments incroaso the disclosure requiremaents for ransactions invalving the transfor of financial
aszels n oorder e provide grealer ransparency aroond risk exposures when lingncial assels are

transferred.

Amendments to fAS 12 deferred Tax: Recovary of Undorfying Assats (annual perieds beginning on

ar affer January 1, 2012)

- Under the amendments investment, properties that are measured using the fair value model in accordance with
IAS 140 Investment Property, are presumed to be recovered entirely through sales for the purposes of measuring
deferred tax unless the presumption is rebutled.

New and revlsed IFRSs and Intarpretations in issue but not yet effactive

At the date of autharisation of these financial statements, the fallowing new Standards and Intarpretations
and amendmenis to those in issue were not yet effective or early adopted for the financial pericd being

reported Upon;

Mew Standards
IFRS 9

IFRS 10
IFRS 11
IFRS 12
IFRS 132

Revised Standards

1AS 1

IFRS 1

Financial Instrumenris

- Classilicaton and Measuremen! ol Tinancial
assets

- Accountng for inancial liabiltizs and
denrecognition

Consclidated Financial Statements

Joinl Arrangements

Cisclosures of Interests in Other Entitias

Fair Valus Measurament

FPresentation of Financial Statements

- Amendments o revize the way other

cormprehansive income is presented

Firse-time Adoption of Intemational Financial

Reporting Standards:

- Amendment addressing how a firs-time
adopler would account for a Governrmenl
[rzeary wiithe 7 hieslow market rate of intarest
whaon transitioning to IFRSs

EMerlive lor armual

perinds

bagnning on or after

Jarary 1, 2015
January 1, 2015
January 1, 2013
Jamuary 1, 2015

January 1. 2013
January 1. 2013

July 1. 2012

Janary 1, 2013
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JAMAICA “Providing A Fair, Effident and
: RS O Trangarent Stock M arke” aNIVL oo
EXCHANGE 3L REPORT 20 12

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

2 APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRSs)
(Cont'd)

23 New and revised [FRSs and Interpratations in issue but not yet effective (Gont'd)

Effeclive lor armual
pefads

Deqinning on or sfter
FRevised Standards (Cont'd)

IFRS 7 Finanuial Instrurments: Disclosures
- Amcndments requiring disclosures about the
initial application of IFRS 2 {i}
- Amendments enhancing disclosures about
offsatting of financial assetz and financial
lizabililiess (i)
IFRS 10 Conaolidated financial statcments
- Amendment to provide additional transiticn
reliaf by limiting the requirement bo provicde
adjusted comparative information to only the
preecding comparetive: period
- Amendment providing ‘investment antities’ (as
dafined) an exemplicn fram the consolidation of
particular subsidiaries and insteqad reguire: that
an invastmant entity measure the investrent in
each aligivle subsidiary at fair value through
profit or loss in accordance with IFRS 8
Financial instrurrzns of 1A 30 Financia!
instruments: Recagnition and Maasurament January 1, 2013
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
- Amendmant eliminating the requirarment to
provide comparalive informalion [or paricds prior
b the immediately preceding period January 102015
IFRS 12 Disclosura of Interest in Other Entities
- Armendmeant eliminating the requiremeant to
provide comparative information for paricds prior
lox the immedialely preceding period Janezry 1. 2013
- Amondmaont requiring additional disclosure
about why the antity is considerad an investment
entity, details of the entity's unconsolidated
subsidiaries. and the nature af relationship and
cerlain ransactions belwean the investment
cntity aind itz subsidiarics January 1, 2014
IAS 19 Employes Bencsfits
- Amended Standard resulting from the Post-
Employment Benefits and Termination Bensfits
projachs January 1, 2013
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EXCHANGE Trangarent Stock M arket REPORT 20 2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

2 APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRSs)
(Cont'd)

23 New and revised [FRSs and Interpratations in issue but not yet effective (Gont'd)

Effeclive lor armual
pefads

Deqinning on or sfter
FRevised Standards (Cont'd)

A3 27 Caonsalidated and Soparate Financial Statements
- RHeigsusd as l&S 27 Separats Financial
Statements January 1. 2013
- Amendmenl requiring an investment enlily 1o
account for its invastmeant in a relavant
subsidiary in the same way in ds consolidated
and separate financial statements (or to only
provide scparate financial statements if all

subsidiaries are unconsolidated’) January 1, 2014
A5 258 Imvaatmants in Associates
- Reizzuad a8 1AS 28 nvasimenis It Azsooiales
arid Jexient Vientroes Jarmary 1. 2013
IAS 32 Firancial Instruments: Presentation

- Amendmems to application guidance on the
offzetting of financial assels and financial

liaksililiess January 1. 2014
IFRS 1, |1AS 1, 16, Amendments resulting from Annal
232 and 24 Improvements 200%-2011 cycle: Repeat

application, bomowing costs; comparative

infarmation; servicing equipmeant; tax effect of

ety dislribulions; interim reporting af

sogment assots - respectivoly Jamoary 1. 2013
Mew and Rowisaed
[nterpretations

IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Fhasze of a
Surface Mine January 1. 2013

il Annual pericds beginning on or after January 1, 2015 (or otherwiss when IFRS 9 is first applied)

it Annual porieds hoginning on or afier January 1, 2013 and intcrim poriods within those periods
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JAMAICA “Providing A Fair, Effident and
: RS O Trangarent Stock M arke” aNIVL oo
EXCHANGE 3L REPORT 20 12

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

2 APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRSs)
(Cont'd)

23 MNew and revised [FRSs and Interpratations in issue but not yet effective (Cont’d)

Except as noted below, the Board of Dirsctors and management anticipate that the adoption of thess
standards and intermretations in the future periods at their effective dates will not ba relevant ta the financial
slaterments ol the Group in the periods ol inilial applicalion.

. IFRS 8 Financial insfrurments (effective for annual periods beginning on ar after January 1, 2015 with
garlier application permitted) issued in November 2008 introduces new requiremsnts for the
classification and maasumamant of financial assets. IFRS 2 amendad in Oetober 2010 includns the
requirgments for Lhe classilicalion and measuremenl of inancial lakililies and Tor derscognilion.

Key reguirsments of IFRS B are as follows:

] IFRE D reguires all recognised financial gssets that are within the scope of 1AS 29 Finanoisd
Instruments: Recagnition and Measurament 1o be subsequently measured at amonised cost or fair
value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business model whose objective is ta
collect the cantracloal cash Mows, and thal have contraclual cash lows hal are solely paymeants of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are generally measuvred at amortised cost at the
end of subsequent accounting periods, Al other debt investmenis and eguity investments are
rieasurad at their fair valuss &t the end of subsequant accounting periods, |naddition, under IFRS
9, entities may make an mevocable alecton o prosent subsequent changes in the fair valoe of an
enuity investment (that is not held for trading] i other comprehensiee income, with anly dividend
incoene generally recognised in profit ar loss.

4ii) The most significant efféct of IFES 2 regarding the classification and meéasurament of financial
liatilities relates to the accounting for changoes in the fair value of a financial isbilty (designated as
Al Fair walue throwgh pralit ar koss) atbibuolable ko changss in e oredil sk of that lbility.
Specifically, under IFRS D. for financial liakilities that are designated as af fair value through profil
or loss, the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liabiliy that is attributable to changes
in the cradit risk of that liahility is presented in other comprehensive inceme, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liakility's credit sk in other comprehensive income would create or
enlargs an accounting mismateh in profit or [oss. Changss in fair value attributable b a financial
liability's credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, Proviously, under 143 3%, tha
entire amaunt af the change in the fair value of the financial Gability designated s oat Tair value
twough profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.
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JAMAICA “Providing A Fair, Effident and AN
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EXCHANGE REPORT 20 12

NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

2 APPLICATION OF NEWY AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPOURTING STANDARDS {IFR3s)
(Cont'd)
23 MNew and revised [FRSs and Interpratations in issue but not yet effective (Cont’d)

-

Hew and revised standards on cansolidation, joint arrangsments, associates and disclosures.

In May 2011, a packaga of fiva Standards on consalidation, joint arrangemeants, associates and disclosuras
wis issued, including IFRS 10, IFRE 11, IFRS 12, 143 27 {as revissd in 2011 and 1AS 28 (a5 revised in

20711).

Key requiremants of thesea five Standards are descrined below.

IFRS 10 replaces the parts of 1AS 27 Conzolidated and Separate Financial Stafemeants that deal with
consclidated financial statements, SIC-12 Consolidation - Specis! Purpose Enfifes will be withdrawn
upon the effective date of IFRS 10, Under IFRS 10, there is only one basis for consolidation, that is
contral, In addition, IFRS 10 includes a new definition of control that contains three clements: (a)
power over an investee, {b) exposure, or rights, to wariable returns from its involvement with the
investae, and () the abiity to use its pawer ovar the investes to affect the amaurd of the investors
relurns. Exlensive guidanes has been added in IFRS 10 1o deal with comples seananios,

IFR3 11 replaces 1AS 31 interssts in Jaint Venfures. IFRS 11 deals with how a joint arrangement of
which bwo or mors parties have joint contral should ke classified. S1C-13 Joislly Controfled Entitias -
Mew-rmoretary Cornbolions by Verlurers will be wilhdrawn upon he eflective dale of IFRS 171, Under
IFRS 11, jpint arranpements are classtisd as joint operations o joint ventures, depending on the
rights and chligations of the parties o the arrangements. In contrast, under 143 31, thers are thres
types of joint arangements: jointly controlled entities, jointly conirolled assets and jeintly controlled
operations.

In addition, joint ventures under IFRS 11 are required to be accounted for using the equity method of
accounting. whareas jointly conlrolled entities under 1AS 31 can be accountad Tor using the egquily
methad af accounting ar proportionale scoounling.

IFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, asscciates andior unconsolidated  structured  entities. In general, the disclosure
requiresmisnts in IFRS 12 @ mors exdensive han those inothe currenl shandzards.

I June 2012, the amendments Lo IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 wers igeued Lo clarily cerlain
fransitional guidance on the application of these IFRSs far the first ime.

Thesa five standards together with the amendments regarding the transition guidancs are effective for
annual pericds beginning on or after January 1, 2073, Earlier application is permitted provided that all
five standards are applied at the same time.

The Diractors hawve not yet performed an assassmeant of the impact of application of these standards,
excepl for IFRS 10 for which the adoplion will have ne impacl on inilial agplicalion.
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EXCHANGE 3L REPORT 20 12
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012
2 APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS {IFRSs)

(Cont'd)

23 MNew and revised [FRSs and Interpratations in issue but not yet effective (Cont’d)

IFRS 13 Fair Valre Measuremont (effociive far annual periods oeginning an ar after Jandary 1, 2013,
wilh earlier application permillsd) eslablishes a single source of guidances lor [air value measuremasnls
and disclosures about fair value meaasurements. The Standard defines fair value, establishes a
framewark for measuring fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value measurements. The
scope of IFRS 13 is broad; it applies ta hoth financial instrument items and non-financial instrument
items for which other IFRSs reguire or permit fair value measurements and disclosures about fair
valug measurements, sxcept in specifisd circumstancas, In general, the disclosure requirements in
IFRS 13 are more extensive than those reguired incthe curent standards. For cxample. quantdative
and qualilalve disclosures basead an the hree-level [8ir valoe hierarchy correnlly required Tor linancial
instruments only under IFRE T Financia! instruments: Oizclogures will be extended by IFRS 13 1o
cover all assets and liabilities within its scope

The directors anticipate that the application of the new Standard will irmpact the amounts reported in
ther financial statomonts and will resolt in more otensiee discloseres. Howover, s detailed
assessmenl bas nal yel besn donea,

The amendments 10 |A5 1 Presentation of iterms of ather camprehenzive meame feffective for annual
pedods beginning o ar after July 1. 2012 with sarfisr epplication pemitfed) imtroduce naw
terrminoicgy for the siatement of comprehensive fnconre and incoimre statement,  Under dhe
amenditents (o 1AS 1, the ‘staiement of comprebensive income’ is renamed fthe ‘statoment of profit ar
fss and ofhor comprohonsive income’ aod the income stotemont' is renamed the statomont of prof
or foss' The amendments o AS 1 relain the oplion e present profil or logs and other comprehensive
income in either a single statement or in two separate butb consecutive statements. However, the
amendments 1o 1AS 1 require additional disclosures to be made in the other comprehensive income
gection such that itzms of other comprebensive income are grouped into two categories: (a) ikems that
will noct be reclassified subsequently o profit or loss; and (b} items that wil be reclassified
subsequantly to profit or loss when specific conditicns are met. lncome tax on items of aother
comprehensive income s requircd to be allocated on the same basis — the amendments do not
change the oplian lo prezent ilems of other comprebensive income sither befare tax ar nel of Lax

The amendments 1o A5 1 will result in the presentation of items of othar comprahensive income
being modified accordingly when the amendments are applied inthe future accounting periods.

Amendmenis fo IFRS 7 and IAS 32 Cffselting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities and the
refated disclosures

The amendments 1o 1AS 32 clarify existing application izsues ralating to the offzet of financial aszets
and Tinancial iabiliies reguirernenls. Specificaly, the amendments clarilfy the meaning of ‘currently
has a legally cnfarceable right of sckoff and 'simultancous realisation and scttlemeant”.

The amendments 10 IFRS 7 requires entities to disclose information about rights of offset and related
arrangements (such as collateral posling requirements) for financial instruments under an enfarceakle
master netting agreement or similar arcangement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

2 APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRSs)
(Cont'd)

23 MNew and revised [FRSs and Interpratations in issue but not yet effective (Cont’d)

The amondments to IFRS 7 are offoctive for annual periods beginning on or after Janoary 1. 2013
and intarim penods within thase annual perods. The disciosores showkd be provided retrospectivehy
for all comparatve pericds.  Howsver, the amendments o 185 32 are not effective until annual
perads beginning ¢n ar aiter January 1, 2014, with retrespective application required.

The direclars anlicipale thal the application of lhese anendmenls o 188 32 and IFRS T will nal haee
a signiicant impact but may result in more disclosures boing made with regard to offseting financial
assets and financial liakbilties in fulure periods.

. Anrua! Irorovemesnts ta FREs 2000 - 2071 Cyale fssued in May 2072

The Annual Improvements to IFRS 2009 - 2041 Gycle include a number of amendments [ various
IFR35. The amendments are effective for annual pericds beginning on ar after January 1, 2013
Amendments to IFRSs includs:

»amendments Lo 1AS 18 Praperd)y. Biaal s Equipmeant; ard

. amecndmenis to IAS 32; Financial instromeonis: Proscntation

- Anrua! Impravements to IERSs 2008 - 2011 Cyole lssucd in May 2012 (Conf'd)
Amendrments to |AS 16

The amendments o 1AS A8 olarnily lhet spare poarls. stand-by equipment and servicing equipmenl
should be: classificd as proporty, plant and cquipment when they mect the definition of property. plant
and equipment in |AS 18 and as inventory otherwize. The directors do not anticipate that the
amendments to AS 15 will have a significant effect on the Group's consclidated financial statements.

Amendments o las 32

[he amsndments to 145 32 clarify that income tax relating to distrioutions to holders of an eguity
instrument and to transaction costs of an equity fransaction should be agoounted for in accordance
with 1AS 12 incorme laxes. The directors anticipate that the amendments to 145 32 will have ne effect
on the Group's consolidated financial statements as the Group has already adopted this treatment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.4

L
Bl

3.3

3.4

Staterment of compliance

The Group's financial statements have beesn prepared i accordance, and comply with, [mternational
Finarcial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the Companiss Act, 2004 of Jamaica.

Basis of praparation

The Group's financial slalemenls have been prepared on lhe hislorical cosl basis. excepl Tar revaluation af
financial assots classificd as available-for-sale investments that are measored at revaluood amognts o fair
vAlues as explained in the aceounting policies at Note 393, Historical cost is genarally based an the fair
valus of the consideration given in exchange for assets.

Basis af consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and the entities
controllad by the Company ({its subsidianes). Control 2 achieved where the Company has the power to
govem the financial and operating pelicies of an ontity so as [ obtain bonefils from its activitios.

Incore and expenzes of subsidiates acquired or disposed of during the vear are included in the
cansalidated  statement of profit or loss and ather comprehaensive income from the affective: dates of
acquisiliocn and up to the effeclive dabe of disposal as appropriate. Total comprehensive inocome of
subsidiarias is aftributed to the owners of the company and to the non-conirzlling interest even if this results
in the non-controlling interest having a deficit balancsa.

Wi'hen necessary, adjustments are mads to the financial statements of subsidiaries 1@ bring their accounting
policias in ing with those used by other members of the Groug,

Allinlra-gredp transactions, balancas, incomes and expanses arg eliminated in lull on congsolidation.

Froperty and egquipment

Propery and couipment hold for use in the supply of scrvices, or for administrative purposes, arc statod in
the slalement af linancial posilion al cosl less any subsequent accomulaled deprecialion and sobseguent
accurulated impairment losses.

Froperties in the course of canstruction Tor supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impaiment |oss.  Cost includes professional fees, and for qualifying assets, bomowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group's sccounting policy.  Such propertes are classifisd o the
apprapriate categories of proporty and cquipment when comploted and ready for intended use,. Deprociation
of these asseis. on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

Freehold land, land improvements and work-in-progress are not depreciated,

Deprecialion iz recognised =o as o wrile off the cost af property and equipmenl {olher than reehald land,
land improvements and work-in-progress) less residual values, over their useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The astimated useful lives, residual values and depraciation methods are reviewed at the and of
each reponting period, with the ffect of any changeas in estimate accouniaed for on a prospective basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

3.5

36

An fem of praperty and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits ane
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The gain or loss arsing on the disposal or retirsment
of an item of property and equiprment is determined as the difference batween the sales proceeds and the
carrying amaunt of the amset and is recognised in profit or loss,

Intangible assels

3.8.1 Intangible assets aoquired separaiely

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acouired separately are carfed at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognizsed on a
gtraight-ling basis over their estimated uselul lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are roviewed at the end of gach reporting penod, with the effect of any changes in estimats
being accounted for on s prospective basis. Intngitile assets with incdefinite useful lives that are
acduired separately are caried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

L4
th
g |

Deracognitian of intangible assats

Ao intangible asset iz derecognised an disposal or when no future economis Benefits are egpected
fram use or disposal. Gains or losses ansing from derecognition of an intangible assst, measured
as the difference bebtween the net disposal preceeds and the camrying amount of the asset, are
recognised inprofit or loss when the asset is derccognised.

Impairenant of tangibile and Intangible assels

Al the end of each reparling period, the Group reviews lhe carrying amounls of ils tangikle and intangible
asszets o detennine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the aszet is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss (if any). When i is not possible io estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset. the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit ko which the asset belongs.
‘When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
1o individual cashgenerating units, or othenaise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-genorating
unils Torwhich a reasanable and consistent allocation basis can be idenlified.

Imtangible assets with indsfinite useful lves and intangible assets neot yet available for use are tested for
impairment at lsast annually and whenzver there is an indicatian that the asset may be impaired.

Racowarable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sall and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted b their present value using 8 pre-taxe discount rake that
raflecls currenl markel agsassmenls of the Une value of monay and (he risks spacilic 1o L gssel [or which
1he estimates of futurs cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset {or cash-generating unif) = estimated 1o be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset {or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognisad as an expense immediately in profit or loss.
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3.y

3B

3.9

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

Where an impaiment 1053 subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increaszed carnying amount
does not excesd the carrying amount that would have been datermined had no impaiment loss been
racogmised for the assct {or cash-gencrating unit) in prior years, & meversal of an impaiment loss is
rezogmized immediately in profit or loss.

Invesiment in subsidiary

Irvestment in subsidiary is staled al costin e financial shlemeants of the Campany.

Financial Instrumrenis

Finanzial aszszalz and inancial habillies are recognised when a group enlily becomes 8 oparly [0 (he
contractual provisions of the instrumenis.

Financial assels and financial liabilites are inilially measured al Tair value, Transaclion cosls thal are directly
attributable to the acquisition or Tssue of financial assets and financial liakilities are added to or deductad
from the fair value of the financial asseis ar financial liagilities, as apprapriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assels

Financial assets are classified into the following specifiod categories: “held-lo-maturty  investments’,
‘available-for-sale’ (AFS) financial asscts and ‘loans and rocoivables’. The classification depends an the
nalure and pumose of the inancial assels and is delemmined al the Ume of inital recognilion. Al regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecoanizad an a trade date basis, Reqular way
purchases or sales of financil assets thit reguire delivery of assets within the time friome established by
regulation or convendion in the market place.

3481 EMfeulive interast method
The effactive interest mathod is & methed of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and
of allocating interast income over the relavant period. The effective interest rate is the rata that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts {including all fess and points paid or received that
fenm an integral part of the effective interest rabe, fransaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) trough the expectad life of the debt instrument. or, where appropriate, a shorter period,
tz thax net camying amaunt on initial recognition,

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for the debt instruments.

592  Held-to-rmaturity investments
Held to maturity inwestments are non-derivative financial assets with fiked or determinabls
payments and figed maturity dates that the compensation fund has the positve intent and ability to
hold to maturity. Subsequent to initial recognition held-to-maturity investments are measured at
cast using the effective interest method less any impairment.
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349 Financial assefs (Cont'd)
4492 Svailable-for-sale financial assets (AF 3 financial assetsh

2.8.4

3845

&FS financial asscts are non-derivative that are either designatod as AFE or are not classificd as
fa) boan and receivables or (b held-to-malurily investments.

Listed redeamable nctes held by the Group that are traded in an active market are classified as
being AFS and are stated at fair valus at the end <f each reporting perod. Fair value is determined
in tho mannor described in Make 31,100 Changas in the carrying amount of AFS monctary finanzial
Assels relating o changes in Toreign corrency riales (see below), inberest income calcalated using
the effective interest method and dividends on AFS equily invesiments arg recognised in prafit or
loss. Other changes in the carrying ameunt of available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulaiad under the heading of fair value resarve. When the
inveshment is disposed of or s determined o be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the fair value resarve is reclassified o prafit or loss.

Dividends on AFS equily instruments are recognised inoprofit or loss owhen the Groop's right o
receive the dividends iz established,

The Tair value of AFS monelary financial assels denominaled in a foreign currency is datermined in
that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reparting perod,  Foreign
exchange gains and losses that are recognised in profit or loss are determined based on the
amortised cost of the monatary assets. Other foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in
other comprehensive inoome.

Loans and receivakles

Loans and other receivables are non-derivative financial assets wiath fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an actve market Loans and roceivables (ncluding trade and other
receivibiles, cash and eash equivilends and Iong-term receivable) are measored al amorlised oosl
using the effective inerest methad less any impairment.

Imterest income s recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for shark-term
receivables when the recogniticn of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of cach reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more evants that cocurad after the initial recogniticn of the financial assets. the estimated
future cash fows of the investment have beaen affected.

Far &F3 equity investments, a significant or prolonged decling in the fair value of the seourity below
ils cosl iz oonsidered L be objeclive evidence of mpainmnent.

Far all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could include;

= significant financial difficuity of the [25Uer or coUunterparty; or

+  breach of contract, such as a default or dalinguency in intersst or principal pavmeants; or
=l becoming probable thal e baorrover will enter bankmuplsy o inandal re-arganisalion; or

«  the disappearance of an active market for that financial assct because of financial difficultics,
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349 Financial assefs (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (cont’d)

Far certain cateqories of financial asszels, such as trade receivables, assels that are assessed not
Ley b irmpaired individueally sare inoaddibion assessed Torimpainnent on s collecive bagis. Objechive
evidonee of impairment for a parfolio of receivables could include the Group's past cxpericnee of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credi period of 30 days, as well 85 observable changes in national cr local economic
conditions thal comrelate with default on receivables.

Far financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amaum of the impairmant (085 recogrisad is the
differsnce betwaen the azset's camying amount and the present valua of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s criginal eflective interest rate.

For financial assets camied at cost. the amount of the impaiment loss is measured as the
difterence betwean the assebs carrying amount and the prasent value of the estimated future cash
Mowes discounted at the currenl marke] rate of relurn far @ similar financial assal. Soch impairment
Iiss will not bee reverrsed in subsequent penods.

The carrying amounl of the nancial assel is raduced by the impainment 1ess direclly for all linancial
assels with the exception of trade receivables. whers the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable is considered uncollecticle, it is written-off
against the allowance account.  Subseguent recoveries of amounts previously written-off are

credited againgt the allowance aceourd, Changes in the carmying amount of the allowance account
are recognized in pralil or loss.

Yhen an AFS financial asset is considerad to be impairad, cumulative gains or [o£s28 previously
recognised in other comprehensive incomea are reclassified o profit or loss in the pericd.

For financial asssts measurad at amortised cost, if. in a subseguent pericd, the amount of the
impainment lese decreases and the decreass can be related objectively to an event occurring after
Lhe impainmenl was racogrised, the previcusly recogmssd impairmenl less s reversed  lhrough
profit or Inss o the extent that the carrying amount of the: investmant at the date the impairment is
reversed doas not exceed what the amontized cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

In respect of AFS equity secunities, impairment losses previously recogrissd inoprofit or loss are nol
reverasd through prafit or logs.  Any increase in fair valua subsaquent to an impairment loss iz
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of tair valus
reserve. In respect of AFS debt securities, impaiment logses are subsequently reversed through
profil or loss i an increase in he fair valus of he inveslment can be objeclively relaled Lo an evenl
accurring after the recognition of the impairmant loss.
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3.9 Finanefal assels {Cont'd)

3.8.6

Derecoghition of financial agsets

The Groulp derecognises a financial asset anly when the contractual rights 1o the cash flows from
the asset expire; or when it fransfers the financial assets and substantially all the risks and rewards
of pwnership of the asset to anathar entity. |f the Group neither transfers nar retains substardially
all the risks and rewards of cwnership and continues to control the transfermed asset, the Group
recagnises its ratainsd intersst in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have o
pay. If the Group retains subsiantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transfarrad
financial assel, e Group conlinees 0 recognise he linancial assel and also recognises s
collateralized barrowing for the proceeds received.

On deracogniticn of a financial asset in its entirety. the difference between the asset's camying
amaunt and lhe sum of the consideration received and receivablz and the comuolalive gain or [oss
that had beon recognised in other comprehensive income and acoumulated inooouity is recognised
in profit or loss,

On derscognition of a financial as=set other than in ite entirsty (e.9. whan the Group rataine an
option b repurchase part of a transferred asset or retains a residual interest that doss not result in
the retenticn of substantially all the risks and rewards of cwnership and the Group retains control),
tha Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset betwocon the part it
conlinues o recognize under continuing invobverment, and the parl 6 ng longear recognises on the
basiz of the relative fair values of those parle on the date of the transter. The difference betwesan
the carrying amount allocated to the part that is ne longer recognised and the sum of the
consideration received for the parl no longar recagnised and any comulalive gain ar loss allocatad
to it that had been recognissed in other comprehensive income Is reccgnised in profit or loss. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocatad

bBebhwzen the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the
beasies aaf the relative: Fair walues of those prarts.
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ao

Financilal tiabllitles and equlty instriuments Issued by the Group

F3.40.1

3102

3103

Clasnificiation oz debt or enuily

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as either financial liabilities or as
couity in accordance with the substance of the contractual amangements and the definitions of a
financial liabiliby and an equity instroment.

Equily inslrumenls

An agquity instrumeant is any contract that evidencas 2 residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of ils liabilites. Equily inslruments issued by the Group are recordead st the proceeds

recaived, net of direct issue costs
Repurchase of the Group's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity.
Mo gain or 1055 s recognized in profil or loss on the purchase, sale, ssee ar cancelation ol Lhe

Group's awn equity instraments.

Financial liabilities

31031  Financial liakilities of the Group are classified as other financial liahilities.

Other financial labilites {inclding bomowings, trade and other payables] are iniially
measured at fair values net of transaction costs and subsequently measured at
amorised cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a methad of calculating the amorised cost of a financial
liabiity and of allocating interest expense over the relevant pericd, The effective interest
ratz is tha rate that exactly discounts astimated future cash payments (including all fees
ard paints paid or received that forme an integral parl of the effectve interest mate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liakility, ar, (where appropriate), 8 shorter period, b0 the net carrying amatint on
initial recognition.

3.10.3.2  Derecogrition of firancial fabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and anly when, the Groop's
chligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference between the
camying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideraticn paid and
payable is recoghised in profit or loss.
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311

Empiloyee benefit cosis

Prhsion alligations

The Group operates a defined benefit pension plan, The cost of providing banefits is determined using the
Projected Unit Credit Method with actuarial valuations being carmried out at the end of each reporting period.
Actuarial gains and losees that excesd 10% of the greater of the present valus of the Group's defined
bensfit obligation and the fair value of plan assets at the end of the prior year are amortised aver the
expected averags remaining working lives of the paricipating employeas. Past service cost 5 recognised
immediataly to the exient that the bansfils are already vested, and ctherwise s amortisad cn a straigh-line
hasis mwer the average perod until the amended benefils hecomes vested.

The post-employment benafit recognisad in the statemant of financial position represents the fair valug of
the plan assets, as adjusted for unrecogrised actuarial gains and osses and unrecognisad past senvics
coste. and as reduced by the present valug of the defined benefit chligation. Any aseet resulting from this
calculation is limited 1o the unrecogrised acluarial losses and pasl serice cosl, plus the present value ol
Awailabile refunds and reductions in fotures contrbitions to the plan.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum af tax currently payable and defarred 13
3121 Currsnt tax

The lax currznlly payable s basaed on Laxable pralil Tor the pear. Taxable profil dilfers frome Lhe
profit as reported in the consalidatod statorment of comprehonsive income because of toms of
ncome ar axpansas that are taxable or deductible in other yaars and itams that are never taxabla
ar deductible. The Group's lighility for cument 1ax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting pericd.

3122  Defarred tax

Defarred tax is oogniscd on tomporary diffcrences botween the carrying amounts of asscts and
iabilities in the consaolidated financial statements and the comesponding tax bases used in the
compidation of taxable profite.  Deferred fax liakilities are generally recognised for all taxable
termporary differences. Deferred tax assels are generally recognized for all deduciible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that kable profits will be auailable against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.  Such defzrred tax assets and liahilities are not
recognized if the temporary differances anse from goodwil or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liakilties in 8 transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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312 Taxation (Cont’d)

223

Defered Tax (cont’d)

Deferred (ax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differsnces associated with investments
in subsidianss excenl whars he Group is abls o contrel he reversal of the lemporary diference
angd it is probabile theat the tempaorary difforence will not reverse in the foreseeasble futuee. Deforred
tax assets arising from daductible temporary cdifferences associated with such investments and
interesiz are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
prefits against which fo utilise the bengfits of the tempcrany differences and they ars expectad to
reverse in the foreseeable futurs,

The camying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reparting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Ceferred tax liakilites and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected 1o apply in the
period in which the liability is scttled or the assct realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have besn enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting pericd. The measurement
of deferred tax liabilities and assefs reflacts the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting peried, W recover or setlle the
carrying amaunt of its assets and lisbilites,

Currant and daferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that
are rocogmised in ather comprehonsive income ar dircectly in couity inowhich casc the courrent and
defermed tax are also recognised in ather comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arizes from the inital accounting tor a business cembinaton, the
tax effect is included in the acccounting for the business combination.

3.13 Related party franisactions and halances

A party is related o the Group if

{1

fii)
i
v}

{viy

fwii)

direzctly, or indiraetly throogh one or more inbermediznes; the parky:

conlralz. is conlislled by, er s under camman contrel with. the Group {(lhis includes parent,
subsidiares and fallouw subsidiaras);

- has an interast in the entity that gives it significant influence over the Group; or

- has joint control over the Group;

the party is an associate of the Group;

the party is a joint venture in which the Group s a venturer;

thez prarty is @ member of the key manzgement persanned of the Group;

the party is a close member of the family of any individual refersed toin (i) or {iv);

lhe parly is an anlily thal is canbrolled, joinlly conlrolled or significantly inlluenced by, ar for which
significant voling power in such entity resides with, dirscily or indiractly, any individual refemed to in
fivor {v); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the banefit of employvees of the Group. or of any entity
that is a relgied parly of the Group.
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3.13

Related party transacfions and balances (Cont'd)

Related party transactions and balances are recognised and disclosad in tha financial statements.

Transactions with related parties are recarded in accardance with tha normal policies of the Graup at
transaction dates.

Revenue recognifion

3.14.1

1142

3143

Cass income

Cess income which is based on a percentage of the volume of business dane through brokers on
the Stock Exchange and derived from levies on investars, is accounted for on the accruals basis.

Fee income

Fee income derived from annual listing fess charged to listed companies is accounted for on the
avcruals basis. Fee income alse includes inilial lsling lees paid by enlibes wishing Lo be lisled an
the Stock Exchange. These are accounted for when they bacome due.

Fee income of the subsidiaries includs:

Membearship fees

These are annual fess charged 10 the brokers and instititional invastors whe participats in the
C30, and are accounled for on the acerual basis,

Account maintenance fees

Theses are manthly fees charged te the brokers and instituticnal investors who participate in
the G50, and are acceunted for an the accrual basis

Lgar feas

These include charges per transacton for depasits, withdrawals and delivery erders (tradas),
and are aecounted for an the aceroal basis

Trustee service fee

These include service fees charged for the provision of trustee services, company
management, custodianshin and related services and are accountad for on the accrual basis,

E-pampus income

This represants revenue generated from JIE offering of post graduate csrtficate and diploma
courses o professionals and is accounted for on the acoroal Basis
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514

2.15

3.7

Revenue recognitien (Cont'd)

3134 Members/dealers ligense fee

These are fees levied on membersideslers annually. Additionally, an initial fee determined on the
basis af a kid is payable by new dealers subject to approval by the Board af Direciors.

3145 Othor pperating incomea

These include income related o other services and events of the group such as website charges,
conferences and seminars, and are accounted for on the accrual basis.

3746 Investmont incoma

Interest income from a financial assel is recognised when i is probabla that the sconomic beneafits
will Fleyww 1ee thes Group And the drmount of the ncome can be meaasurend reliatsly.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis and is recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income, by reference to the principal outstanding at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts estimate future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that assets net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Foralgn currencies

The financial statements ars presentsd in Jamaican dollars, the cumrency of the primary  aaonamic
enyironment in which the Group cperates (its funstional currency’,

In proparing the financial statements of cach individual group cetity, transactions in currcnoics other than the
entity’s functional currency {foreign curmmenciss) are recognisad at the rates of exchange pravailing at the
dates of the transactions. At the and of each reporting pericd. monetary ibems denominated in faresign
currencies are retranslated al the rates prevailing at thal date. Nen-monstary itzms carvied at fair value that
are denominated in Toreign currenaies are relranskated sl the rales prevailing at the diale whien the Tain waloe
was dotormincd. Mon-maenctary itoms that are measured in terms of historical cost in & farcign currcney arc
nat retranslated.

Exchange differances an monestary items are recognised in prafit or lags in the perind inwhich they arze.
Dividands

Dividend dislribulicon o lhe Group's shareholders is recagnised as a liahilily in the inancial slalemeanls in e
poriad in which the dividends are approved by the sharcholdpes.

Borrowing costs

Borrawing costs directly atributabla o the acguisiton, canstruction or praduction of gualifying assets, which
are assets that necessanly take a substantial period of iime to get ready tor their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or Sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
3.17 Borrowing Costs (Cont’d)

Investment income earmed on the temnporary investiment of gpecific bormawings pending their expendiiure on
qualifying assets iz deducted fram the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing coste are recognised in profit or 108 in the pericd in which thay are incurred.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATICON UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting palicies, which are described in Motz 3, the directors are required to
miake judgments, estimatas and assemptions aboot the carmying amownts of assets and latilities that are et readily
apparent fram olher sources. The estimates and associated assumplions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considerad to ke relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are: revicowed on an ongaing basis. Revisions to accounting nstimates arc

recagnised in lhe period in which the eslimale is revised il lha revision alfecls only thal period, or in the period of lhe
revision and fulure periods if the ravision affects both current and future periods.,

4.1 Crifical fudgments In applying accounting poflcies

Management belicves that there are no judgmends meade that had @ significant offect on the amounts
recognized in he inancial slalemenls.

4.2 Kay sources of estimation uncerfainty

The following are the key assumpbions conceming the future and oiher key sources of estimation uncerainty
at the end of the reporling peried, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustmeant ta the carying
amount of assets and liahilities within the next financial yaar.

4.2.1 Fair value of financial instruments

Az described 0 MNote 31, management uses its judgment in selecting appropriate waluation
technigues 1o determine fair values of financial assets. Valuation technigues commonly used by
market practiticners supported by appropriate assumptions are applied by the Group. The financial
assits of the Group at the end of the reperting perod stated at fair valuz determined in this manner
armounted to $308.2 million (2011; $266.5 million) and the Company 5239.19 million (2011:
$201.734 million),

Had the fair value of thesa securitizs been 2%, higher or lower the fair value reserve for the Group

wolld increase/decrease by $6.168 milion, Company $4.78 milion. (2011: $5.33 milion, company
$4.03 million).

4.2.2 Post emiployment bencfit

As disclosed in Maote 8. the Group cperates a defined benefit pension plan. The asset amounts
shown in the statement of financial position of approximately S85.208 million {2011: 579.601 million}
for the Group and 566.562 million (2011; $&52.438 millian) for the Company is subject to estimates
in respoct of poriodic costs that are depeondent on future rmetums on asseots, fotre discount raies,
rales of salary increasas and infllalion rales.
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY {Cont'd)

422

423

Post employment benefit (Cont’d)

Ihe estimated returmn on pensicn assets assumplion = debtermined by considering long-term
histoncal returns, assct allacaticn and future ostimatcs of long-term investment roturns, The Group
eslimales the appropriale discount rale annually which rate is osexd o delermine the present vialoe
of eslimated cash outflows expected 1o be required to setfle post employment benefit obligations.
Actuaries are contracted in this regard.

To determine the appropriate discount rate in the absence of high guality corporate oonds, the
interest rates on government bonds that havs maturtes approximating the related pension
liabilities were used.

The: effct of pxpericnce adjustments on the plan assets and liabilitios are disclosed in Mote 8,

Income taxss

Estimates are requited in determining the pravisions for income taxes. Thers are some
transactions and calculations Tor which e ulimabe lax delemninalion is uncerlain during lhe
ordinary course of businoss. The Group recognises liabilites for possible tax issuss based on
estimates of whether additional taxes wil b2 dua. Whare the final tax cutcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were originally recorded, such differences will impact the income
tan and deferred 1ax provigions in the period In which such determination is made, isee Noles 17
anrl 25).
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5 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT [Cont'd)

The following uzeful lives are used in the calculation of depreciation of propeny and equipment

Euildings - A0 years
Furniture and fixturas - 1] yaars
Oificzer exquiiprmeznl . 5 years
Compuler hardveare - 5 years
Maotar vahicles - 5 vears

Mo deprecialion is provided on freehald Bed, land improvemeants and work-in-progress.

] INTAMGIBLE AZSETS
The Group The Company
Compuior Camputer
Software Sothware
Computer  Development Compuler Cevelnpmernt
Software Frojecl [otal Sobbware Froject 1 otal
$oca 000 000 & 000 E000 000
Cost
January 1, 2011 45 BEE &, 087 &0.943 29,1585 B 087V a4 242
Additions 3,582 10,752 14.184 3352 - 3,362
December 31, 2011 40 248 15,679 85,127 a2 L4y £.087v a7.e24
Transfor (Mot &) 27.671 {12,370 14,301 16,878 (1.578) 16,301
Additions ] a ) 1.2E1 1.824 T 410 BET
Decamber 31, 2012 FrAas8s 4770 82,2654 4349735 =818 52 8082
Amartisation
Jdanuary 1, 2011 aT oes - 379688 28080 - 25 080
Charge for the yoar 2,551 - 2,551 1,489 - 1.489
Dzcember 31, 2011 40,517 - 40 517 28.530 - AB.530
Charge for the year B.B07 - 0.807 B.707 - 8707
Decemper 31, 2012 S0.424 - 50.424 o5.24% - S3.248
Carrying amount
December 31, 2012 27088 4 770 41828 16,727 28139 20848
Cecemiwer 31, 2011 8,73 15,870 24,810 _B.005 =087 11088
Decemer 31, 2010 7.890 S.087 12,977 4,105 Rt D192

armotization of the comouter software is calculatad based on an sstimated useful lifs of 3 - 5 ysars.
Amoriisation is not calculated on computer software in developmont
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Fi

INVESTNMENT IN SUBSIDIARY

Imvestment in subsidiary, Jamaica Gontral Scouritics Dopository
Limited is as follows:
Decarmber 31, Decamber 31, January 1,

2012 2011 2011
$oon £000 Fooo
Shares - at cost 61,000 51,000 25,000

In lhe: year 2017 the Company invested an additional $5 million, Tor 5 million ardinary shares,

POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The Group operates a defined benefit pansion plan for i#s employeas. This scheme is open to all permanent
employess and is administered by Frime Asset Management Limited, The scheme is funded by employee
conlibulions of 8% of pensgionable salary, walhe @nooplion Tor addilional voluntary contribioliong al ap lo 5% of
penzianable salary. The companies in the Group contribule to the plan at rates determined perodically by external
actuarial valuations {ourrently 6.6% of pensionable salany) to meet the obligations of the schome, Ponsion bonefits
are determined on the basis of 29 of final pensionable salary iimes pensionahble vears of service.

Ther mest recent actuarial valuafion was caricd ot st December 31, 2012, by Duggan Consulting Limited, »
gqualified actuary. The present value of the defined benefit ohligation and the related current service costs and past
service c0sts have been measured using the projected unit credi method.

(a) Principal assumptions used for the pumpose of the actuarial valuations were ag follows:
The Group and the Company
December 31, December 31, January 1,
2012 2011 2011
Discount rats 10.3% 10.0% 11.0%:
Expected return on plan assets B % g4.0% 10.0%
Expected rate of salary increase T.0% . 0% 8.0%
Future ponsian increases 0.0% 3.0% 0.0%

b amaunt included in the staterrent o° financial position in respact of e poan 3 a3 Tollows:

The Cioap The Somipany
Deembar 31 Dwcamber 31, January 7, Cocember 3 DeGamber 31 Januay 1.
$000 $con S00 $000 0o E000
Presart value of defned bonef |
ozligatans V101 2850 B35 [ 7R [T " PR R a4
Fair value of plan asasts 171442 154 733 125 525 119,578 104,516 BT ME
70153 04T 52 804 45,324 47 BEL 3T 300
Urecognized actuaral gaine 16053 2,18 22 294 17.533 14.874 22 §a1
Het gssatin e staiement of
financal pasition _B5208 ra.501 JE 63 _Af.5E2 _f2.e38 B3
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£ POST EMPLOYMENT BEMEFITS (Cont'd)
13 Amounte racognisss in incoms in raspact o the schams ara 3s folows
Tha Gioug bt Clonnpary
seaznben 31, Crecanier 31, Jaruary Db 31, Dicezmbsn 31, Januaiy 1
2uid 2011 2011 2012 2071 21
foca 000 bl M £ 5000 #0000
Cur-znt senice cost 4734 4 84E 1,224 2622 3,308 130
Interast eost 4,144 3.814 B, 05 §21& A=) 0234
Expecizd return on plan assels V1,18 (12545 L [Ba0c: { BOBE [f2841)
Pest zemvies casts { 3] - 272 - - 21a
Fzeogriszd lnss TG 01 - =i A -
Incresase [0 UMESIC N SEl a53275 21.188% [166851)
Toialineludad in employer bensi:
coats 1033 _1B4E 28, 2B87 |25 1,306 (23 034
Acsual returs an alzn asscle 18,676 ok ksl 15400 b540 12224 ) 38)
id) Mowemarts in ire nel agsetin the oericd were az follows:
T Crows The Campany
Cecamber 31 Cazczmbser 21, Aandan 1, December 37, Decamiler 31, Janaany 1,
2012 2011 2011 202 2071 2011
S0 =600 £ni fouc Fnil S0
Ckag sing aakznce TEE TG A6 47 085 Gz 429 R HY P R
Aroaurt credifed [sharged) to incame 103 1 PR G AR 1 [ 13000 F3.038
Cnniribuitions paid & &Nd 0 O £ 00 A RC2 5 G05 A735
Clussig balenoe Hb 2 Se LB 183 B bR [0 K2 Bl
&) Uhangss an the presant vales o e dehned beea il obbgel ons were as loilows:
The Groug The Company
Dcsconer 31, Dizcomocr 31 Januany 1 Chcombor A7, Doccmber 31, Jamuary 1,
013 2 2011 s a1 Ly |
acy e Soug Soud Sacg Foan
Crmaning definad bansfit chligetiors a4.316 1,821 35 382 5 Q52 S0014E 20,0587
Sarvice coal LTH 4,828 1224 ZHCE 3508 a0
Inberssl coxl 5140 d.812 il 8215 GA8E 5,244
e benz coanbioubc s LU i o o Hd S pr e
R=nefila peid [ 55258 V2. TER {2334 [ Z.2658) [ 22%5% [ 2047
Acluanal {ea=gein 23R8 o A0T7 24970 _Z.219 I 5833 12802
Clesing defined benedi ahiigat ans 54,310 i Bl T EL.46% £0.045
i Changes in the fair value of plan assets sre as follows:
The Zreus The Ce rpansy
Lacarmber 41 Lecamber 51 Januay 1 Lecarber 21, Lazambe” 37, Januay 1,
m2 ann 201 2Nz o 011
Foan FO00 3000 a0 F000 500K
Dpening fair value of plan asssts 152 733 125,525 103,532 104,245 ZFM3 82826
Warnbe =’ corlnbulions H.CE1 b bl A4 3 0E 1.:5¥1 i daE6
Fmpkner's somrib.fiang I RS AEN0 3767 AL0H i |
Expeslze retimn of plan asscs 18167 T2,945 15980 I g.oap 12849
Bamafita paid [ 6887 [ 2.788) [ 2324 Lo IES) {2,335 i 20Ty
Achuar al {loss)igain {1,505 _ BAIT i BEET) 1 1242 1 13,876)
Zhasing folr val ue of plom essers T1 445 154 733 135 528 118578 04,515 072405
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L] POST EMPLOYMENT BEMEFITS (Cont'd)

i The fair vab. e of plar 8352ty i3 ana vaed as foll s

Tho Group Tra Sompany
December 1, Decebarlt, Janan 1, Dace~bar 11,  Desevbar 11, January 1.

2012 2001 A 2012 2011 2011

§'oac £ocn fand foca Lo f'eoc
Equily invezlment 15,604 12802 28,780 31.807 28,742 20252
aovernment of Jamaica securites d0261 22,243 a1 21,634 18,754 AGL76
Real patare AL 05 15 fel 210N .74 13442 14600
Orhers ThERD hz 878 24 230 A8 ROE 42 538 16,456
Falr value of plan aaaet 111448 154733 122 555 18,578 104,516 G

The cverall expected rate of return of 10% on plan asssts is a weighted average of the expected return of the
varicus categories of plan assets held. The directors' assessment of the expected retum is based on historical
trends and analysts' predictions of the market for the assats inthe next twelve months.

The histary of experience adjustments is as follows:

The Group

Defined Benefil Pension Flan

2017 2010 2008 2004
$000 $'000 000 $000

[ B4,318) [ T1.921) | 36362)  (30.963)
154,733 125,525 103,532 74 860

70,417 53,604 B7,170 43 906
4,077 [ 24270 6,251 { 1.243)
[ 8417 2847 [ 11.817) 16,232

The Cormprany

Crelined Benelil Pension Plan

2014
000
Fresant value of defined benafit obligation (101,285)
Fair valuz of plan gesats 171,443
Fund surplus FO183
Experience adjushments on plan liabilities | 2.588)
Experience adjustments on plan assats 3,275
2012
£1000
Fresant value of defined benafit obligation [ FO,649)
Fair valug of plan assats 115 578
Fund surplus 43 5248
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities [ 2918
Experience adjustmeants on plan assats | 1145]

20171 2010 2008 2003
000 £'000 3000 $000
[ 56,952 (50,048)  (29,080]  (24.770)
104,518 B7 348 B2 B26 55 895
47 554 37,300 53,736 35.125
3,853 {12,602} 5,025 { 1.265)
| 3.242) 13,878 [ 9,454 12,266

The Group and the Company expect to make contributions of $6.2 million and $4.2 million respectively (2011; 55.2
riillion and S3.7 million respectively) 1o Lthe defined benelil plan during the next financial year.

The plan assets do not include any of the Group's own financial ingtruments. nor any proparty occupied by of other

asnehs used by the Group,
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1]

INVESTMENTE IN SECLIRITIES
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Fawainl Curimsy ovsstmens
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trortleal walie LISES 0,050
arvsrmrrar | of Rrlan guamnteed moTgace Moles 2796
‘nTind el Usken 201 2 258
G PR B.73% and 7 US§ Bonc mark vacsimc:
Matee, 200 3204 irommesl vswe LESE1E,20D
A B akal Furn Bard 2010 (rarieal s i LISFST0 0000
A0 LIS3 Gabal hood 37208 Mamiazl v ar LISER0000)
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Laalgrs Bt Lecerrber 51

LONG-TERM RECENABLES

Iweees 1amesel oans Sanles o eonplipees

ThaGog The Comesy
D by 11, Ceuer zer 31 darasry |, Jacardm 31, Jazarbe 11, Janaary 1,
£l 1 ) iz 201 201
0 Fg HLLT 0 FLn
1,628 2,42 1,302 1,528 2042 TR
30 A48 iR ALy 3R 454 il RAT 15431
T2 A1.714 0y 102 A6 745 47 37 £ 988
4f 572 di 40 di A7l? LR R 474 41 17
iNEa 3427 1,300 20RE AL53 AN
19458 A6 5E2 14 Gel 20EI2 "AE0 ATE
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R NES 17 137 16 272
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303204 6,518 s 238,15 2 T 25643
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13 JEE et 2 -
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G [MEAEDN . 1_21.076) O EES -
219,857 2R2. 102 2BAAE o] a0 TH 25643
e Gradp Thes Gy
Decrmrbes 51 Fecerrher 5 Jawary Fecernber 5 resczmiber 211 Jemigary 1,
L b £} il Mz - Ml
2002 S0 002 $o00 41 £000
MEROE 236 A8 2,73 21563
v a2t 1418 14,47/ -

40831 e | -

- - 284 356 - - ' bgE
13 LN 1,84% TOHESE Bk 30
(R ] DR E L ; [ 1R AL 7
LM e Ll Piopts ) FEEAL . | PR
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11

TRADE &WD OTHER RECENABLES

| baer L5 caips Tl Ccemostiny
Lesamoet 31 Deoarrbar 3 Junuary 1 Cwneanbear 21, acambar 31, Jaroare 1,
anz M1 211 a2 2011 2011
Foao Fuou S HAH] Fooon oLy SU
Doss recdivalb o ‘0830 2ETTG G583 10,508 18,208 5Lz
Foos cocpanle A | 7.0 ERiTEY | - - -
E-campus 1,681 2. 7283 TE3 gy 2,723 TS
Cithar 48516 31,354 17,911 20 8BRS 20,052 T2.a4a
T3.045 57,50 25780 47,543 42181 -RE
Laza: Allewarass for doutfl
Dekls - cinct reccivabes (11 45T {2 057) . B743; I BA3Y {5080 [ & 83
1 .588 0EB25 22037 356,108 35,263 a3
Prapasmentr e il nria 41,825 1 ADF 1,760 2,800
G 448 fifi 4 26803 6576 3000 6.0

"1 sverage credil peood conoserrces s 30 days. No nleess! s chzeged on e rade and clhen rzeesables,  The Groop has oovced 100% o
receivables ower 150 davs [expept where these amounts B2 agdessed a3 recovereale by menagement;, because higloreal sxperience s s4ch that
receivables tha: are nas! due bevorkl 150 cavs aie genera ly not recoveralie.

naduded 0 alber receivabla: howewer, are delilors will a carving amonl of aparosimately: 55524 million e e Gioap @ $2E12 milion for the
Carnpany (2011 53338 mullan ko e Grouap and 1178 =il un lor the Company; U1 3587 millior far tha Goup ard $2270 modon Tor e
Campangl which ara pral due &t the reporting odale toe whizh sbe Graon bea not proviced =g thers bas not be2en & chenge inomedic ouality 2nd the
gmoumiz are 3 || considerec recoverdole.

&geing of recelvables that are
_kast duws bal ot smipairsc

The Grown Tha Company
Decembe- 37.  Decembar 21, January 1 Zecembar 21, Decamber 31, January .
2z 211 2611 01 EAHR| 171
F000 £'aca 570000 F00 ¥l Foan
160 - 360 days 2671 3352 7T gl 1,178 3TE
Orpeer 1 yoar 1,802 - A5 i - 1494
2524 1332 Flerd 612 1176 410
“Arwameanl ir allwianca for drobthal
geots an other receivables
Thae Geaup T Compans
Dzcemkbe- 31, Decs=—ker 31 Jan.ary 1 Cecemoer 31, Decenbzr 31,  Janvary .
ot 2 2011 23141 202 =014 2011
FOa0 Frao a0 socd 30 F'ocn
Lizlaum al beginirg ol yea H,05 ¢ [3, 743 H 248 o414 4 B 4504
Imnzirnert oszes recagnized
o7 receivables 3,330 s | 444 b 855 =
Razlaqre &t ard of yaar 11457 BAGT i (AT agin 4860

Ir celermining the recoverakility of a recefvasle, the Group cong darz any change in the credit cualizy of te receivable rom 172 date credit was cranisd
W b e resprenbirng dale. Concenlrabion of crecd fesk s roeleg s o the pglore of the costomesr base, Acoarding by, managemer] Galayes that Thees =
niz frther eredit provision recored in exeszs of the alloweance for deobib ] dekls ard that non-past due onimpeicen recersble are collackable e S0l In
2012, cass recevable at 1ne ard of 1 vear incliced 34127 milior, 31 451 milicn and 57 .44 milion and e Campany 54.1 millior, 1.3 milior ard
1256 milllen 22007 5105 milben 290 5197 =lllan tar tha Grsia. 578 milion 2nd 575 millan far tha Campary tue 13 ihras Drokers wAIch rmprasart
383, 12% and 13% for e Graon and 4108, 1535 ard 123% resnective y far the Coeepany (2001 29% and 385 for fw0 arakess af the Group and 41%:
and 8% regpactivaly for tha Company whict ane cumant.
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1 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

Anzing of impaired o &r reoaivanles

The Enoug The Compary
December 21, Decemder 31, Jarvary 1, Deza~ker Decembar 31,  Januasy 7,
LN Fooa §00D F000 S000 §0C0
180 + days 11.457 £.07 643 5437 5018 4563

12 CASH AND CAEH EQUIVALENTS

For the punpcse of the consolidated siatement of cash flows, cash anc cash equivalents ncluce ¢ast on nand and in banks. et of bank overcrafl and
investmenls in ~ensy market instnumeants witk an ariginal maturity of three montks or les2 from the date of acquisiion that are held o mast cash
racuiemens rather than o invesimanl poposes.

ral Cash and cazh equivalents ai the end of the repording nednd 2% shown in the consolidaed siztement of cazk fiows can o8 reconciled B the
redaed dems e 1he consel dated starement nf finare o position 0z follows:

The Soup “he Compay
December 31 Decerrserd,  January 1, Oecember 31, December 31, lanuary 1,
4213 201 2 @'z 2011 2011
&'100 ol &0 $000 &000 Pl
DA% AR raas 2ne in hat e 1257 16,231 1340 5100 & 517 4 13A

Woney ma-«zl irvesaretis denomitatzd in

Jamagan dzliars at 1erest rate of 6%

(2011 G.at) FraLlll J L R 12,450 2N S L Ll
Rluney ne szl irveedren | deonninales) i

farelgn enrrerey Sraup LRET ARG 2530 3 &% Oompty

LEp d23975 - 3.2% (200, Grouy U3FSS 476 - 4.25%,

Tompary B8 808 - 3.7) 146 256 - 1206 131,364 - A
140, T3 54 300 323 7741 40 352 15E10
i Cash ane rask equivalentz of 5170 milion A hypothecatan o zroume 2 lang-emn liabiliy (ot 18]
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SEHARE CAPITAL

Decsmbsr 31, Dear oer 31, Jdanuary 7, Zenar oer 37, Jaramasr 37, Januarg -,
e ) s bl i belg b el 0 vl B
Ma. of charse Yo.of sharas Mz of sharas Joac 00 IQLD
Airtherees atJarway | asd Peczmber 31
Ordinary sharss An pac ralne L0000 000 SO0 000 M0 GOCLCT0 D02
‘refarenoes $°BI23 - M par valus i 00,00 000 100,CC0 DO
|2 L Capiznl ob Jorua e 1 aod Lecsmber
Oy sl e pen viilu AN B ) A N}
Sralbacmsn 5= 20K - P [LAP AR Sy R00 0aG SO0 oSS 13 SO0 PN
Sleled capilal
Ar lanuar 1 amd Decambear 24
rdinary =hares =R H] SB.590 168,050
Fezes nablz prefersroe sharzg g 22 00 each
iz2s below) a0 55,000 56,200
34 byl 2254 byl Lod sl
Lz, Hoedwrzible oo ccrea shems dussl ol o
Habdlitle= Az racnired by IF3E (Moiq 16 e o[ ] 1 E3.008% o REGOO
8 530 55,930 168,250
Srofaroncs shares
. The prefcience shaes pay @ veriable camulglve oeferenlal dividend ey beee 185 monthes based on e gl of Sovemmearl 27 Jagicy

weighted averzga Treasury Bill yield havirg a tercr of belween 178 09¢ 124 davs! fixed ol the beginning of evev € merths peroc and imerest
e paid on open market ingirumonis iszeed by the Bans of Jamaica Tal have 183 cays oo,

. The areference shares ate rececmasklz 83 monil: Trom the catz of i2sue, JFat is by Junc 2013, Tnese preforence shasss aave noovelir g rights.

FAIFE VALUE RESERVE

Tna reserva reprasaniz the fair value adjusimant relating to available-ci-sake imvestams in sacuritiss {Mota 3.

Salance at Jaruary 1
Nl gain floss) o neclass heabon of held-lo-
mater by financial aszels o svaikable for sale
Nl (loss) an avising on revaluation of
Fvai able-for-sle Anarcial azsels
Meld gain =ckoss fize 1o 2urplus cn sale
of nveet~enms
Cefierred wax adjusmants an
avai able-for-gala Ananclal aesate (Mabs 17}

dalance at Lacamoer 37

| e L5 oo 1B Czmmpesn y
Decemaer 2%,  December 31, Jaruary 1, Jecerrber 31, December 37.
201E 2017 2411 2012 |
Fodo 000 00 Fond F000
Tafe 943 G455 2345
1,080
10.237) 00 1,848 (9272} 178
| 2 I ) - [ by [ i3
2413 (2562 8T ufln} o] (2085
(S EEE) 2,028 143 (6,152 2111
3 . Lges 5406

Jaruary 1,
201

000

[ 257

F TR

Tne faic vaus reserse moresenls the sumeladve cans ane lesses anzing on the revalialion of avaiable-for-sale firancizl assels that Fave been
racacnizad in ather compratensiva incoma. nat of amounte reclaselfiad to preft or loss waen 1hess assats vave baan dispesad of or ara datermicad e ba

impsairac
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1
(&3]

REVEWUE RESERVE

Feleeted i the hnznoal slalzoresils of e,

Cecember 31, Decembar 37, Janasry 1,

2012 2011 011

$ LU0 §Lan 0L
Faren company 255 205 276,352 253,595
SubsidiEries Er.187 21,42 R
112 46 7 Ban 264075

18 LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Thesez include loans from the Mational Commercial Bank Jamaica

Limitad:
The Group and the Company
Deocember 31, December 31, January 1.
212 2011 2011
5000 $000 $'000
Loan 1(see (a) below) 1,837 2487 5037
Loan 2 US$270.0100 (see (b) below) 18,526 23,383 :
21 453 26,870 5037
Fraleisnca shares (Mole 14) BE 000 BE.000 88.000
a7 461 bz BT AT
Less: Current portion {included in current liabilities) (73.129) {_B.746) (_1.550)
14,334 BE124 55,487
(a) Loan 1:

The lnan from Mational Commercial Bank is repayable by April 2014 by 47 equal monthly installments of
%129 167 plus one final payment of $129 151 is charged at a fixed interest rate of 12% per annum on the
reducing balance over Lhe life of he loan. The lvan is zecured by unslamped Bill of Sale over Information
Technalogy equipment valued at $6.2 millicn held unstamped and lien over credit balances held
unsiamped and hypothecation of $10 milion held at NGB Carital Markets.

[1+1] Loan 2

This loan for US%300,000 from MNational Commercial Bank Jamaica Limited is repayable in 80 equal
monthly installments of US$E5.000 plus interest at a fixed interest rate of B.25% by May 2016, The loan is
sacured by the hypathecation of $10 millian held at NCE Capital Markets.
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7 DEFERRED TaAxX

This camear ses

The Group The Carpany
Decerker 51 Cecember 31 Jenuary 1 December a7, Decemaer 31 January 1
20714 ZL11 2011 2012 dL11 L g
2003 50 060 50N 5NoG 700
Defemrad {ax aszets 1.121 14,524 G403 G5 14,220 3,972
Dzfemae 1ax ok ftes 138 £59) (38.T05) 131,946% [28 453 {29.854) 281310
Ml pasailar sl L 2 ol 2o e [37 £38) (24, 181) 25, 543) 128 £38) £15,764) 121,139
Tha movemant ic Iha raf celarred tax pocfion was as folows:
The Group The Company
Nacarhber 31 Macamber 31 Neremner 2 Tecember 31,
2014 2071 il s 2011
S'00d $000 T Foan
Al Jenuary 1 24 181)] 125,543 [15,7€4; 121.155)
Charged e inceme for the yoar
(Mg 23] [1¥ 17 4,025 g8 T.450
Creditec Charged to fai- value
resewe fon e yean (Mo 14) 5413 (2665 203 {2,085
A Decemter 31 1L SE 124,151 [P-Re0- i18, )

The folow ngy ane the dofered tae asscts and deforod e lablifies reocgn sed by the Grous dudag 19 yoa s

Deferred Tax Assels

Thi Group Thr Gompany
Acorued Tan AGrLed Tax
Wacation Loss Total Wacation Loss Toial
SN0 000 000 000 5'000 000
Al January 1, 2011 T4T 7,656 a.40% 08 3544 3472
Credited {Charged) o
income for tha year w7 T.754 a2 T2 10,046 10,118

At December 31, 2077 1,114 13,410 14,524 il 13,410 14,090

Crediled {Chargesd) L

income far the wear i (13.41a) (1.3,405) 85 (13.410) 13,325
At Dacambar 31, 2012 1,121 - 1,121 TES - s

98



“Providing A Fair, Effident and

hovzest i ¢1anged an the pagatles b a1oa. The compary Fas linancizl risk manageritt poficies Lo ersure that 2 | pavas s .2 pa dwilhinbe se-cpread crecit ez

1% OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Regional conferance

Other

20 STAFF COSTS

Salaries and other smploysse banalils
Statutory contributicns

JAMAICA N I
« mf STOCK Trangarent Stook M arket” REPO le:lgo )
EXCHANGE
NWOTES TO THE CONSQOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2012
1¢ URFERRED [AK(Contr)
Defarrad Tax Liahilities
“Fe Gz e Corran
Caprzl Lnr2al sed Capitz Unreglise:
A Tance Garsn Al rweres e
i 2e2ss of It [nyzstrenl Rirzmenl ir encess of Therzgl Itz Rztirered
Coaamesgoon  Fzesinzke 18zeriies BensilAsses  Tolal  Dexeesbon Reeenatls  nlsouies  Beesilisssh To
] £l LA O g sace golo 022 00 ] 000
88 Janian 1, 2041 GEET) LER [ L% Y s R v TSR < R " i20 ey [251F
Charzed I incaTe <o the
il 2.3 N k] - I 1,180 ;4033 i1.3% S - ] [ IfEE:
Chaged o firvals reszns e - [ 253 - L 2E63) e L2055 [ AL
M Cemrte ¥ 201 629y C1ED {37 I25 330 5103 1€, ) [ 323 20618 (246541
‘Creryed) Sreciled o rooms
fir e y2r L , 1EED) . LT . 5 L] Bl . i 1374 [ 363
Cradie b [air value “eserve i - J442 - 3413 iy - 313 - o
ffCexerte 3 212 .247) 4220 B AN LY AT 2 122,187 (28430)
1E PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
Tha Group Ths Corvam,
Iecarherdd, Demarbss i deraanvl,  Camerserd December 3 Jardan
2012 2011 2 i 2 2011
S0 £ il S $000 ¥im
Fayatles ans acarucls o i et 41438 G213 Hid )

Retirement benefit (crodit) charge

The Group The Company
2012 2011 201z 2011
000 000 Foco 000
9421 11128 9421 11.128
2B 095 22405 35010 23423
45818 43 535 a4 451 44,851
The Group The Cormpany
2012 2011 2012 011
F000 000 F0oco 000
136 470 116,852 B 540 HE, 004
10,862 2,189 T.ez0 B 583
{ 103) 1.645 i 2611 1,300
1 29 14T AT 1069 7E 24,087
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21 INVESTMENT INCOME
The Sroup The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
000 SHO00 5000 SHO00
211 Inwastmeant incoma includeas:
Inberasl incoms 28320 25,043 22942 19,841
Foreign exchange gain (oss) @834 [ 1.154) BT (1,411}
Gain an disposal of available-for-sale
invastments & 4 2 12
38,166 24 5635 Z0.720 18,292
The Group The Cormpany
2012 2011 2n1E 2011
F000 2000 5000 S0C0
212 Investmeant income sarnad, analysed by
category of financial asset is as follows:
Loans and receivahblas 1,948 1,850 1.628 1,261
Awailable-for-sale 368 230 23,233 28002 1703
25 OTHER SAINS
The Sroup Tha Company
22 2011 201 2011
F o000 SODD $'000 w000
Professional faes writa-off (Z2011: Nat
prafit from sale of property) 5.931 28477 = 22477
23 FINANCE COST
The Group The Company
20z 2011 2012 2011
000 Fon Fou0 $uo0
[nlerest on prelersnce sharas 4,181 4 841 4 181 4 B4
Intorest an Dorrowings 2.2 1,748 2164 1.639
£.282 66839 G245 f.dal
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24 FROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
Profil belure laxaiion is slaled sfler laking aceount of the Tellewing:
The Group The Comipany
2012 2011 2012 2071
faon 500 Fonn S00c
Incoma:
Irterest 283350 26,045 22,0432 19,891
Expenzes:
Diractars fane B HAD 8IFT B R0 FEld
Avdit fees 2,780 3 850 2 Bhi 2425
Creprecation of properly and egquipmenl 2618 B BAT T 223 8,263
Amortisaticn of inkangible nsssts 807 2,551 & 707 1,433
Irterast an long-term fdabilities
{preferance snares) 4 181 4 841 4 181 4,841
[nlerast on bormessings 2,20 1,708 2184 1,239
25 TAXATION
251 Recognised in statement of comprehensive income
{ The charge for the year reprezants:
The Group The Company
2012 2011 2ME 2011
000 F0o0 F000 g'000
Cumenl lax 29,765 7,704 27,881
Dreferred tax (Mote 17) 17170 i4.025) 16.016 (7450}
26,935 4879 43 807 (L4560}
{ii The charge for the year is reconciled to the profit s per the statement of comprehensive
income as fellows:
The Group The Company
2012 2011 202 2011
000 $'000 000 3000
Profit before taxaticn 186,640 37,5498 136, 78T 5,205
Tax at the domestic income
Lax rale of 33.4% 81,880 12,533 45 596 1,735
Taw effecl al ilerns that are
deductible in determining
taxable proft 380 BG5S 344 Bakd
Prior year over provision v 287 5 - -
Tax affact of items not allowad
For tax purposes i 5.428) (10,830) { 2428) (10, 850]
Cthar 257 1171 285 721
26,839 4,673 43 597 (L850
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252 Recognised in other comprehensive income

The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
000 000 oo $000
Fair value adjustments 4,413 {2, 063 20892 (LOEE)
26 MET PROFIT OF THE GROUF FOR THE YEAR
Reflected in the financial staterments of the:
2012 2011
000 $'000
Parant company az,990 12,655
Subsidiary 35,815 21,264
128 705 238148

27 EARMNINGS PER SHARE

Basic eamings per share is calculated by divicing the profit, by the weaightad average number of crdinary shares in

553,
2012 2011
Profit {5000} 128,703 33919
Wiainhled sverage nomber af onrdinary shares 28,050,000 28,050,000
Baslc earmings per share £4.50 £1.21
28 SEGMENT REPORTING
The Group's operalions are organised inle five main business ssgmenls as Tollows:
2} Exchange operations - The operation and regulation of the Steck Exchange.
b} Depository - Services in connection with transfaming and holding of securiies, shares, stocks, bonds and
debentures.
iz Investments - Income derived from investing activiies of tha Group.
{d) Trusiee, custodianship, cormpany managemsant and other activities.
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28 SEGMENT REPORTING (Cont'd)
The Group's operations are lecatad solely in Jamaica.
2012
Ex hanrge Deposilory Invesbnents Trusless
Ciperalinns Services Criher Services Elirminatinns Grou
S'gan F00a 2004 3'0an 0037 =00G
Extemal
PEVE LS 375,779 105,253 25,126 26,470 (_1.2d5% 248 295
Total revanue 370,779 105 253 33 186 BR 4T 1225 548,258
Result
Segment result 113,412 11,748 36, 16R 9,951 [ 7.228) 192 022
Finance cost (6382
Profit before
Legsealicn 185,840
Taxation [ 96,555
Prafit far the
yEar 128,705
Othor
infarmation
Cepreciation and
amor ligalion 12,630 5803 - ki - 18,526
Assate
Segrient asssts 707,534 150,253 - 23828 (92243 18237
Liabilil
Segment
liabililies 183,267 46,547 - 7.572 (20812} 207,874

Revenua from two brokers of the exchange operations represents $191 million and $56 million of the Group’s total

renenue.
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28 SEGMENT REPORTING [Cont'd)

011
Excharge Depository Invesiments Trustees
Oparaticns Services Other Senvcas Eliminalinngs GEraup
B0 F 000 000 F 000 Fo00 5000

External

revenue 166512 78 753 53.340 164407 1134} 309 628
Total revenue 180512 78,703 &3 340 16,1567 (1.134) 308 628
Result
Sagment resut 1 3%,084) 148,168 BG40 2,544 [ 1.154) 44,257
Finance cost [ B.EIE
Proft hefore

laxalinn A7 596
Taxatian [ 367H)
Froft for the

WS RN
Cther

int f
Cepreciation and

amaortization 7,757 343 - - - 11.188
ABEBIS
Segment asses 598,010 141,296 - 13,469 99 435) 554 438
Liabilitise
Gegment

liakilitiss 147,21 A1 s = 2,903 [36,%03) 180,582

Fevenue from ane broker of the axchange operations reprasents S17.3 millian of the Group's total revenues.
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8 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES

28.1 During the yaar the Group and the Company had the folloewing transactions with related party in the
normal course of business.

The Greup The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
s000 3000 $ooo0 Fono
Subsidiary
Jamaica Central Securities Depository
Limiled
Rental income - - 1,225 1,134

29.2 Amount owad by related party at reporting date

Tha Company

2012 2011 2010
000 000 $000

Jamaica Central Securitics
Depositary Limitad 26,302 3R.EGZ 64,648
JCSD Trustee Services Limited 278z 1.068 57
28174 o8, 781 64,705

28.3 Compensaticn of key managament personnel

The remunaration of directars and cther members of key management during the year were as follows;

The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
5000 5000 $000 5000
Shaort-term benefits 34,183 22,120 23,638 20,002
Past amployment benefits Z.047 1,925 1,271 1.186
268133 24.045 24,920 21158
2594 Loans to related parties
The Sraup The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Fooc Foan S T 000
Loans ta key managemant poersonng 2.217 2,488 2117 2588
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30

H

COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments

Capital commitments as at Decamber 31. 2012, amounted o SNil (2011; $2.8 million in relation to office
eduiprmeant).

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

X B

a1.2

Capital risk managemeni

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable o the shareholders of the parent
company comprising issued capital. reserves, retained earnings and cash and cash equivalents.

The Group's abjectives when managing its capital structure, which is a broader coneept than the equity
on the face of the statement of financial position are:

i} Te saleguard lhe Group's abilily o conlinue 85 a going concsm o thalil can continue 1o
provide returns for stockholders and benefits for other stakeholders: and

i Maintain a strong capital base to support the business development.

The Group's overall stratagy remains unchanged from 2011,

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratic at end of the reparting perinod was as follows:

The &Sroup Tho Company
December 31 Deoemoer 24, Janusny 1 Cecember 31 Deoernber 21, Januay 1,

2012 201 1 2071 2012 2m1 2071

000 000 3000 3000 £000 £000
Dietat (21 a7 463 82,870 1,037 a7 483 QEEM 1,037
Equity {ii} nH1 498 474 BAT 444 300 L34 15T 401 B 4349314
Dabt to aquily ratic 1804 % 19.6%: 168.5% 18 7% 285 16.5%
(id Debt is defined as leng- and short-torm borrowings as described at Nalke 18,
fil} Equity includes all capital and resenes of the Group that are managed as capital.

Significant accounting policies

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted. including the criteria for recognition,
the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of
each class of financial asset, financial liakility and equity instruments are disclosed in Note 3 to the
financial statements.
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M FINANCIAL INSTRUMEMTS (Cont'd)

3.3

pt)
o

Calegoriaa of fingacfal inatrimanie

The Srsug The Corpdny
Dacambsar ¥, Dacemizar i Jaruary |, Desambar 31 Dasarrbas 11 January
2 21 201 2012 2017 20
F0aC Faca S0 F0 Al 330
FinAarrial arasis
Availabbs-tar-sa e firancial assate a0a,2c4 2E6.218 285 435 232,191 =01.734 213,345
Lovars ane cocrakhes (o oading
~apn and Garh aou LalAns] 271,830 1BLME GBS 505 2401 5 1341 G5E ‘an 2sT
0, 4 4050444 352130 4B, 525 2350580 415,800
Friaraal wbilihic:
Other finae cial liak it =5 o1 amctised cost T oL o054 Wik o . 19219 1608 553 J7res

Financial risk management chjechives

The Sroup's Investmznt Sormdes s respansible for czcemmeanding tothe Board of Dinectoes th-oug- the St anc Fina e Comimitt2e, i ifan
investment derircns policies ard proredusea T e speaific duties of the Invesment Ma-agerent Commites are o rece ve and review dama on nuwent
market coneitiong end ecooamic cullook; review waricus ik capons subites including fair value, nteresl catz sk, liqueity g currency rigk, and
ravierss mond-by rapat an partfalics and eslzblish cuaredy nvasimaet patfalin slracegas The Grous doee not anser inba or frads Srancal i=uesiments
nslusing derrealnee Bnancal nsbiurmerns oo speoldlve porpose:,

Market Hsk

The Grup & inveament arturies edpnde i pimarily o tm=2 fnancial rsks of chasges: in faeion cocrersy 2yveranne ratea inereal mAes &ne priee
movaments e Motes 318 gmd 20,7 The Groop maneces ig nizk throuch zxtensive -esewsh ane monifors the risk exposuras on trz2 oozl and
Infematinnal markate.

Theee hias baen no change Lo e neneer oovibe e Caoup rmesages aed cesures this s sk

Foreign currency risk manegement

The Sroup uncarakes sdain inwesb-ent bar sadlinne dennmirated nooomene 28 ofher tham -halamaican dollar Fan-arge rabe aeosires are mar aged
wrthir approved palicy caramsds -2 ard mainksinmg 3 managast a oala~es r he typea of invea:mands.

T followwing Balances held noJnied RBatee dold ars are includad in thase f nansisl staternancs:

Tha & raug The Ce~pany
Lspenber 21, Decetnomr 51 ey 1, Deusimbe 27, Uwcermosr 51, Jarary 1,

2z 2011 2011 261 =011 2011

JE'TOD JF 00 B ALK JROCT E JECD
Iz merld i secantes 171 00E 24H 744 bt LR e 128,b26 S AR ALt
Cagnand Lash agqu v kens 147 158 3 M T2 132,501 g = 15
| ian lit =p ; nank bnremvinga) + 1R 525 | AR - [ 19,535) [ AR RAN -
Mat Bspocura ZAng7s 222,501 285,018 L, 5 L 4] ZME0]
3161 Foregns surrscey saneHudty asalys e

[ Gcua's mvcsloonl polioho s cepeoe b Uz Uraed 8 oles do k. The Sicop's sonsibealy o 1% e acase o 0% decrcass e e

Jamaizan Acllar against the Lnisas Stales da laris the e e fivity e gad whan separting fare on o maney g inemaly 1o the key matagerant
perae-nel and represents managems-l 3 a3sessmant of the reaacrakly possitle change in forsign exchance ratea.

T=e sensitivity of the 1% noeasa or 1005 densease in the Jamaicas dellas agaises the United Sates dellsr exprss e woule B2 an increazs in net
prefit of she Sroup by JE2939 —illion or $29.27 milan decrzase; company JE24 milicn noresse or $)923 € milion decreaas (2017 5%
incresseloecrease J511.34 mlion. compoany J311.32 milliaq].

Tre fareign surreresy senziivities have nel s anificantly vz asnat exsosure i~ Freicn <2nensy has dacieszed raginglly,
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5y FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {Cont'd)

3T

Jla

Interest rate risk management

The Group's exposurs to interest rates on financial assets and financial liabilitizs are detailed in the
liguidity risk management saction of this note.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

Interest rate sensitivity has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for the Company's
investment in securitizs at the end of reporting pericd as these are substantially the interest sensitive
instrument impacting fimancial results. For finating rate financial assets and financial liahilities. the
analysis assumes lhe amounl culslanding al year end was vulstanding lor he whole vear. A 400 basis
points increased100 basis points decrease for local cumency and 230 basis points increase/sl basis
points decrsase for United States currency represents managemsant's assessment of the reasonable
possible change in interest rates.  In 2001, 50 basis points increasaldecrease for investments
denaminated in local and United States cumency applied.

MNet effect on profit if market interest rates had besn 400 or 100 basis points highsr or lower for
imvestment dencmimated in local currency and 250 or 50 basis paints higher or lower for investments
denominated in United States currency and all other variables weare held constant is as follows:

The Sroup The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
3000 5000 000 F 000
Effecl an nal profil increassiiecreass
S0 basis points 2 1,190 2 Ba0
Effoct on net profit increase 200
basis points Ak 3,225 - 2,724 -
Eflacl an nel prodil decrease 100
breagis points JF) a06 - B51 -
Effect an net profit increase 230
basis points (U35) 3,675 5 3,285 -
Elfecl an nel profil decrease S0
basis points (LISS) 735 - g7 -

The Group's and the Company's sensitivity to interest rates has increasad during the current year as tha
Group had a increase in the number of variable rate financial instruments.

Credit sk managemerti

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual cbligations resulting in
financial loss to the Group. The Group is guided by the investment policies and procedures of the Stock
Exchange. In ralaticn to bank acccunts and investments securities. the Group. as a policy, deals with
credit warthy countérparties. to minimise credit risk éxposurss. In addition, limits are assigned to various
countergarties by the Group.

Trads receivablas consist of broker membars of the Group and accordingly mitigates againet cradit risk
in relation o such receivables. In the case of other recsivables. ongoing credit evaluation is performed
on the financial conditions of those receivables.

The carrying amounl of inancial azsals recorded in the inancial stalements (g disclosed in Nate 31.3),
which iz net ol impaimmenl [psses, represents Lhe Group's maximum exposore o credil risk,
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319 Liquidity risk msanagement

Ultimats responsinility far lquidity risk management rasts with the Board of Directars, which has built an
apprapriale liquidily risk manasgemenl amewark for the management of the Group's shord, mediuom and

leng-term funding and liquidity managament requirements.

The Group manages liguidity risk Dy

maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities, by continuoausly monitoring forecasts and actual cash
Novees and rmalshing the malurily profiles of inancial assals and lighililiss,

31.91  Liguidity and intenest rate tables

The following table delails the Group's and the Company's contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial azsets and financial liabilitizs. The takles below have bean drawn up basad
on undiscaunled contraclual malurities of financial assels ncluding inlergsl thal will be sarmed
on those except where the Group and the Company anticipates that the cash fiows will occur in
a different penod, and inthe casa of financial iahiliies, based on the carliest date onowhich the

Group and the Company can be reguirsd to pay.

Tha Garoup

Waighted
average
afleclive Legy
interest than 1103 3 months 1te 5 COvar
rate 1 month Manths  to 1 wear Years & years
% 000 Fou U0 $o00 $ou0
2012
Financial assets
Mon-interest bearing 43,325 - 10,958 - -
Varinble intarest rate
inslrumenls 2.8 180.370 1,031 3,148 28 242 40,200
Fixed interest rate
instruments 11.02 17.339 as174 21,892 200,735 £2 599
226.024 7209 36,8999 228977 122,799
Financial liabilities
Mon-interest bearing 101,212 - 7,123 - -
Interest bearing lnan 10.13 540 1,586 G, 354 17412 -
Fedesmabls
preference shares G5 e 1,088 a8 116 - -
101,802 2,644 21,545 17412 -
011
Financial asscis
MNon-interest baaring 51,961 - 7.612 - -
Yariable interest rate
instruments G.8E 46,022 1,184 3230 40,051 41,131
Fixed intersst rate
instruments 1247 1.645 7,784 15599 168,073 75 GOE
§a.528 3951 27 087 208 529 118,738
Financial habilities
Mor-interest bearing 74,845 - 3,741 - -
Interest bearing Inan 10 560 1,GA{] 5,039 10,466
Hedeemahls
prefarence shares 7.1 - 1,155 3486 59,324 -
75.405 =835 12 246 a7 750 -

Toital
SU00

ab 284
232.89

558 743
651.018

108,337
20,942

69.174

203 4563

58574
151,923
272,824
464 . 321

8,586
26.TdE

178278
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31891 Liquidity and interest rate tables (Confd)
The Company
Weighted
sverage
elfeclive Less
imterast than 13 3 manths 1i0 & Cruer
rate 1 month MManths to 1 vear Years a Years Tatal
% S000 FO0na 000 EONa 000 F000
2012
Financlal assets
Murr-inleresl bearing 44,795 - 44,795
Warable nlerssl rale
instruments 2486 150,370 772 2,358 17,8449 35,003 218,352
Fined inlenasl rale
instruments 12.44 - 12 382 15568 176,813 H3.503 265 28
205 155 13,155 17957 1384 BE2 g8 508 Led 445
Financial liabilities
MNon-interast hearing G G20 G520
Interest bearing loan 1013 S8 1,586 5,354 17,412 - 25,942
Fedeemanle
praference shares B.5 - 1.058 53,116 - - 532174
85,5170 2 544 74470 17,412 - 160,035
2011
Financial assets
Maor-intaresl bearing 45379 - o d * 45,378
Variable inberest rate
instrumenls 12.47 45,022 Q08 2768 28,077 A4 757 113,630
Fixed interazt rate
instrumenls 4.52 - 1,262 11,774 126 862 58,374 201.375
1.4 > 169 14 542 156039 94 133 360284
Financial liabilities
MNon-inleresl bearing 20,057 - - - - 20,057
Interest bearing loan 10.13 560 1,680 5,039 19 456 - 2B 745
Redeamable
prefarence shares 7.1 - 1158 3455 GE 224 - F2O45
20617 2035 2505 27 790 - 119,747

I
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311

Fair value of financial instroments

Fair valua is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability seitied betwean
knowledgeable. willing parlies inan arm's lenglh ransaciion. & markel price, where an aclive markel
{zuch as a recognised stock exchange) exisis, is the best svidence of the fair value of & financial
instrument, Whers market prices ars not available for some of the financial asssts and liabilities of the
group, the fair valuss in the financial statamants have been pressnted Using various estimation
lechniques based on markst condibions existing at the end of the reporting year. Generally, judgemesant is
necessarily required in irterpreting market data 1o develop estimates of fair value.  Accordingly, the
estimates presented in these financial statements are net necessarily indicative of the amounts that the
Group would realise in a cument market exchange.

The following methods and assumptions have been used:

(i) Financial assets classified as available-for-sale are measured at fair valug by reference o
guoted rrarket prices and or dealerbroker price quotations whers available. If quotad markst
pricas are not available trese fair values are estimated on the baszis of pricing models or
recognised valuation techniques.

{ii) The fair value of fixed rate financial instruments iz sstimated using presant valus or other
estimation tschniques based on market conditions cn similar instruments at reporting date.

(i} The carrying amaount of liquid assets and other assets maturing within one year is assumed ©
approximata their fair valua. This assumption is applied to liguid assets and the athar short-
term elements of all other financial assets and financial liabilities.

Mansgement considers that the camying amounts of financial assets and financial liskilitizs in the financial
statements approximate their fair valuas.

Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of financiat position

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent 10 initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 10 3 based on the degres to which the fair valus is
observable:

. Level 1 fair value measurements are those derved from gueted prices [unadjusted)] in active
markets far identical assets or labilities.

" Level 2 fair valug measurements are those derved from inputs other than quoted grices includad
within Level 1 tat ars chservable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indiractly {i.9. dernvad from prices); and

. Level 3 fair value measuremeants are those derived from valuation technigues that include inputs
for the asset cor liability that are not based on observable market data {unobservable inpuis).
There ware no Level 3 fair value investments.

il
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3111 Fair value neasuremenis recognised fn the statement of financial position [Cant’d)
The Group
2012
Lavel 1 Level & Level 3 Total
Fauae F 000 b SO0
Avallable-for-sale financlal Instruments
Cither
Debt securties - a08.204 - 208 204
= 408 204 o 208 204
The Group
2011
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$000 %000 $'000 000
Avallable-far-sale financlal Instrumants
Ciher
D=ht securities - 266,518 - 266,518
- 26EB 518 - 266 518
The Comopany
2012
Lavel 1 Level & Level 3 Total
F000 F 000 FOn0 =000
Available-far-aale finaneial instruments
Cilher
Dbt secunties - 238 181 - 2349 191
e 258181 ——— 229191
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a1 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS [Cont'd)

3111 Fair value measuremenis recognised fn the stalement of financial position (Cont'd)

The Company

2011
Lavel 1 Level 7 Level 3 Total
F000 Fo0a Foca S000
Available-for-sale financial instruments
Oither
Deht securtics - 201,734 3 201.734
i 201,734 x 201 734

32 DIVIDEND

On April 30, 2012, a dividend of 51 cents per share {total dividend $14.2385 million) was paid to stockholders of
fully paid ordinary shares.

A dividend declared by the Directors an January 17, 2013 of 3.14 dollars per share was paid to shareholders on
February 6. 2013. The tolal dividend paid is 88 millian. The payment of this dividend will not have any tax
consequence on the Group,

33 COMPENSATION FUND
331 Compensation fund financial position
{a) Compensation fund receipts

Thess are cantributions by members' dealers of the Stock Exchange, basad an a percentage of
the volume of business done by them through the Exchange, for maintaining the Contingency
Reserve Fund., Howewser, during lhe year lhere were o caonlribulions by ke member dealers
as the Board was of the view that the reserve was adequate for the specific purpose.

=3 Contingensy rasemve

This fund is created out of surpluses for the purpose of providing some protection 1o the
investing public should they suffer pacuniary loss as a rasult of defalcatian or fraudulant misuse
of securities or docurments of titles to secunties. Provisions in respect of the fund are in
accordance with Sections 27 to 35 of The Securities Act.
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33 COMPENSATION FUND {Cont'd)

331 Compensation fund financial position (Cont’d)

Decamber 21, December 31, January 1,
2012 2011 2011
Notes o0 5000 000
ASSET
Mon-current assets
Investment in securities 23.3 502,866 408,978 295,122
Current assets
Income tax recoverable 4.809 813 111
Other receivables 10,823 4. 260 3,480
Investment in securities 3.3 a7 G649 161,742 76,039
Caszsh and cash squivalants 34 10.572 15.459 954638
113.853 182 274 1759598
Total assets 216 719 HEQ 252 271,120
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Conlingency resemnve 335 &0d 296 570.617 559818
Mon-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilties A3 6 6,356 4916 4 246
Current liakilities
Payable and accruals 6.067 5719 7056
Total equity and liahilities 616,719 SB9. 257 271120
932 Compensation fund - comprehensive
Income
2012 20011 2010
MNoles 000 S'000 EOO0
INMCOME
Investment ncome 51.321 43126 5B,872
Gain (loss] in value of imvestments 2,706 =) 15,028
81,027 47 225 53,0435
EXPENSES
Administrative expenses 337 [25.722) (22, 336 21,8967
Met Income 25,205 24 880 322768
Taxation 33.8 [ 8.517) [_8.488] i 53,608
NET PROFIT 26 708 16.291 2B6RT
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Met fair value (lo3s) gain an
revalualion of availabla-for-sala
financial assets during the yvear [_1.1409) 2403 955
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR 25679 18,7899 20622

1%
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] COMPENSATION FUND {Cont'd)
333 Investments in securities
Deacamber 31, December 31, January 1,
2012 2011 2011
000 000 oo
Held-to-maturity - at amortisod cost
Govemment of Jarmaica Secunties
MWW Variable rate bond 8 375% (2011, §.315%) 24,363 20,491 30,928
GOJ Benchmark iimestment Motes
Fixed Rabe Motes 11.3% {2011, 12.63%} 224,316 163,136 131,602
Variable Rate Motes 8.2% (2011: 7.66%) 156,385 150,070 151,498
Frargign Currency Invesimsnts
G0 Fixed Eate USE Global Bonds; 10.8258%,
2017 (nominal value LISS350,000) 3B, 7TEE 31,244 30,938
Government ¢f Belize guarantesed mortgage
Mates, 2020 (nominal value USESS,200: 4.25%) 4,824 4,213 4,350
GOJ USE B% Global Bond 2019 (nominal valuz
US5185,000) 13,927 13,018 13,583
Z0J Fixed Rate US$ Benchmark investmant
Mate §.75% ta 7%, 2013 - 2074 {(nominal
value US5144 000) 13,632 12,747 12,618
GO FR LIS BMI Mole 7.25%, 2016
inominal valug US$442,283) 42378
216,976 406,541 o290, 12
Available-for-sale - Al fair valus
Investment in Unit Trusts (See balaw) 15548 17211 12.588
Loans and regeivables - AL amorized cost
Repurchase agreements: 5369
(2011 3.79% - 7.5%) BA2¢ 1h 667 11,524
Repurchase agresment (nominal value
US5571,98%; 2.0% - 4.6% (20171; nominal valus
USS816,827; 2% - 4.6%) 51,964 _62.862 21416
_95,391 144,529 62,940
290,515 568,721 471,661
Less; Current portion (47640 (161.742) ( _FHE.538)
202,868 406,879 395122
The movement lor lhe year in available-Tor-sale
financial assats is as follows:
Balancs at January 1 17.211 13,599 12,166
Movement in fair value [ 1,663 __ 36812 __ 1433
Balance at December 31 [see above) 15,545 17211 13,598
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33 COMPENSATION FUND (Cont'd)}
33.4 Cash and ¢ash equivalente
Decernber 31, December 31, January 1,
2012 2011 2011
F000 2’000 5000
Cash an hand and in banks 2,338 1,662 Ge9
Monsy market investrments 52ad 13,797 o4 759
10,572 15,449 o5 4464
a5 Contingency reserve
Decermber 37, Decamber 31, January 1,
2012 2011 2011
5000 F000 000
Cpaning conlingency resars 578,617 550,818 530,196
Met tair value loss after deferred tax {1,109 2408 9cs
Met profit 28,788 18,301 28 687
Cleaging eonlingsroy reserve G4, 286 S5TR.G17 59 R18
236 Deferred tax liahilities
Fair walue
an Available-
[riterexst for-Sale
Recaivable Instrunnent Total
5000 FO00 F000
January 1, 2011 £4,280) 34 {4,246)
Credited to income for the year E24 : 524
Charged o conlingency reserve & (1.204) (1,204)
December 51, 2011 (3,746) (1,170} (4,918)
Charged to income for the year {1.884) - {1,884
Crediled 1o contingency reserve P _oad _ 934
December 31, 2012 (5.740) (_E16) (£.556)
337 Administrative expenses include management charges by The Jamaica Stock Exchange for administration

of the Fund.
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33 COMPENSATION FUND ({Cont'd)
33.8 Income tax
This comgrises:
2012 2011
F000 3000
Income tax B.522 o032
Ceferred tax 1.954 [ &34)
_B517 5,498
The charge Tor lhe year is reconciled 0 he nel
incame as follows:
Mat profit bafore taxation 35,305 24 BBG
Tax at 321205 11,768 3,298
Tax effect of items not (chargable} deductale in
detarmining taxable profits {_3.251) 202
_B517 _B.408

34 PRIOR YEAR RESTATEMENT

The Compensation Fund was set up for the purpose of providing protection to the investing public in accordance
wilh the Becurilies acl {ses Nole 33). The conlingsney reserve which is buill up rom assels comprising the fund
i nod parl of the Gronp's distribotable resaerves.

During lhe financial year lhe dirsclors look lhe decision Lo clearly separale the assels and liabililes of the
Compensation Fund from the Group's consclidated positicn,  The effect of the restatement on the Group's
financial position and statement of comprehensive inccme are as detailed below. The operations of the
compensation fund are separately dizclesad in Mote 33.
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34 PRIOR YEAR RESTATEMENT (Cont'd)

3411
De=cember 31, 20711
Previously
Rroported Adiustments Restated
5 5 5
Consolidated statament of flnancial Qﬁﬂlllﬂl‘l
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Fraperny and aquipmeant 3,08y - 03087
Intangible assets 24 610 - 24 610
Post ernployment banefits 78,601 - T4.E01
Investment in scouritios;
Compensation Fund 406,975 (40E,978) -
Other 262 10 - 2682 102
Lang-lerm reaivabiles 7524 - 7 524
Tetal nan-current assets A7 3 90 (408 578 486 574
Current assets
Income tax recoverable 45,731 (  2.845] 25,846
Trades and other receivables 69,544 - BE H44
Investment in securitizs:
Compensation Fund 175,742 {175,742} A
Other 19,164 - 19,164
Cash and cash equivalents 540629 - B4 BZ9
Total current assets 464,070 {185 587 178485
Total assets 1,257 973 (992 565} G458 407
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and Reserves
Share capital 165,550 - 168,590
Fair value resarve f27e - 72Te
Revenus reserve 297 985 - 287,995
473 857 . 473 BST
Cortingshcy resere S¥8.617 (978.617} -
Total equity 1.052 474 (578 617 473 BhT
Non-current liabilities
Long-term liabilities 34,124 - 86,124
Deterrad tax liabilities 58,129 (_13.048) 24181
Tetal non-current liakilities 124,252 (13,943, 110,205
Current liabilities
FPayahles and accruals H4.,404 : 54 499
Current portion of leng-term liabilitics 744 - &.746
Total current liabilities 61,245 - 1,245
Total equity and liabilities 1,257 873 (82 BES) B4E 407
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24 FRIOR YEAR RESTATEMENT {Cont'd)

3412

YVear Ended December 31, 2011

Censolidated statement of comprehensive Income

Inecarme
Expanses

Investrment incoms

Other gains

Compensation Fund income {nat)
Fimance cosls

PROFIT BEFCRE TAXATION
Taxation
MET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Met fair value gain on available-for-sale financial
assete during the year - contingency reserve
Met fair value gain on available-for-sale financial
assets during the year

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

Fraviously
Eeporled Addjuslmenls Reslalad
3 3 £
256.288 ZE/.288
265,391 B o 265,391
{ 9.103) ( 9.103}
24,263 24 863
28477 - 28477
24,8389 24,833 -
5.633) - {__6.639]
62 487 [24,884) 37.598
{12177] 2 488 [ 3679
20,310 (16,3231) 33919
2408 [ 2,408) -
5.329 5.328
7.8a7 {_2.408) 5,329
2,047 (12.794) 287243
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3421
January 1, 2011
Freviously
Eeporied Adjustments Bestated
E E 3
Consolidated statement of financial position
ASSETS
Hon-current assets
Property and equipmeant By GBhtE - HY b5sb
Intangiblc asscts 12.977 - 12,977
Pasl emplaymient banesfits Te1B3 TE.163
Investment in securities:
Compensation Fund 383,122 (3E3.122) -
ther 286,455 - 286,435
Long-tarm receivablas .35 - 6 4935
Total non-current assets BE5. 167 (395122 470,065
Current assets
Income tax recoverable 37787 111 37 RO8
Trade and other receivables 28 983 26962
Imvestrient in gecurities:
Campansation Fund 169,053 T1BS.053) -
Cash and cash aquivalends 98,729 - G723
Total current assets 270,528 188942 101,584
Total assets 1,135 713 (ot (64) 571,849
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and Reserves
Share capital 165,590 - 168,590
Fairvalua rasenve 1,243 - 1,843
Revenua raserve 2684076 - 264.078
434,609 - 434,608
Caontingancy raserve _H5H.818 (DEY.B1E) g 2
Tetal equity 994 437 (559 418 434 804
Mon-current liabilities
Long-term labilitizs 689,487 - g99.4867
Deferred tax liabilities 28,784 [ 4.248) 28,543
Total non-current liabllities 99276 (4248 95 030
Current liahilities
Payables and accruals 40 461 - 40,460
Courrent portion af long-term liakilitios 1.850) - 1.550
Total current liabilities 42,010 - A2.010
Total equity and liabilities 1,135 712 (oEL OR4) £71.644

20
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34 PRIOR YEAR RESTATEMENT {Cont’d)

J4.2.2

Year Endsd December 31, 2010

Conseolidated statement of comprehensive income

Income
Expenses

Investrment income
Compensation Fund ingome [net)
Finance costs

FPROFIT BEFQORE TAXATION
Taxation
MET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Met fair value gain on avaiable-for-sale financial
aszels during he year - conlingency resere

Met fair value gain on available-for-sale financial
assels during the year

Met gain arising on held-te-rnaturity financial asssts
reclassified 1o availlable-for-sale during the year

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
TOTAL COMPREHEMSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

Freviously
Reporlan Adiusimenls Raalalad
3 § 5
1H9,375 - 199,378
216430 - 216433
{ 17.061) z { 17,081)
33,150 - 33,150
32,276 (¥, 278) =
(_13.800) = (_15,800)
34,574 (32,276} 2,298
2,825 { 4.809) { 781)
a7.40z [35.8685) 14817

955 [ 858)

875 - ars
1.065 - 1,065
2,898 [___955) 1.943

40,300 (36,840) — 3460

1
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34 PRIOR YEAR RESTATEMENT {Cont'd)
3431
Dacembar 31, 2011
Previously
Reported Adjustrmants Restated
bt 5 s
The company statement of financlal position
ASSETS
HNaon-current assels
Property and equipmant 85,806 - BE 808
Intangitle assets 11,095 - 11.085
Investment in subsidiary &1, 000 = 61,000
Post emeloyment benefits g2.438 - 62,438
Investments in sccuritios
Companzation Fund 406,978 406,978 -
Other 201,734 - 20,734
Long-term receivable P - T111
Total non-current azsels 2361685 408 G78) 420 185
Current asseta
Income 1ax recoverable 44,330 [ 9.845) 34 485
Trade and other receivables 33,026 - 38,028
Investmants in sacurities
Companszation Fund 175,742 (175,742 -
Qlnher 10,825 - 10,825
Due frorm related party 36,805 - a6 805
Cash and cash equivalents 40.652 - 40 657
Total current assets 246,380 185.587) 160,792
Total assets 1,182 545 582, 565} 585,578
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Sharsholdars’ Equity
Share capital 168,590 - 168 540
Fair value reserve 5,456 - &40
Reverus reserve 276 653 - 278 BR2
451,609 - 451 B9
Cortingency resemne 57T8.E17 B7Ta.E17) -
Total shareholders’ equity 1030316 (578.517) 451 B99
MNan-current liabilities
Long-term liakilities 8G.124 - BE,124
Defarrad tax liahilities 29712 13 048) 15 TR
Total non-current liabilities 115,836 13 848 101 888
Current liabilities
Fayahles and accruais 28,645 - 29,645
Current portion of leng-term liabilitizs 4,746 - 2,744
Total current liabilities 36,291 = o6, 391
Total equity and liakilities 1,182 543 1597 555) SH99TR

©r2
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

3 PRIOR YEAR RESTATEMENT {Cont'd)
G132
Year Ended Decernber 51, 2011
Praviously
Reporiad Adjustments Restated
5 3 &
The Company statement of comprehensive income
Incearme 159 512 - 159, 512
Expenses 194,506 : 144,596
[ 25.084) - 35,084
Invastmeant incoms 18,292 - 18.292
Orther gains 28477 - 28,477
Compeansation Fund income (het) 24,809 [24,852) -
Finance cosls (__B.4H0) - (__6.480)
FRCFIT BEFORE TAXATION 30,044 [24.889) 5205
Taxation (  1.048) 2498 7.4480
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 29,045 [16,331) 12,653
Met fair value gain on available-for-zale financial
assets during the year - contingency ressrve 2408 [ 2,408)
Mat fair value gain on available-for-sale investmeant
assels during the year 4111 - 4.111
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 6319 {_2.408) 4111

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 35 HF5 (12.7489) 15 766
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

34 PRIOR YEAR RESTATEMENT {Cont'd)
441
January 1, 2011
Prewviously
Fepored Adiustmants Restated
¥ 5 &
Tho company statement of financial position
ASSETS
Mon-current assets
Propsrty and equipment 79,582 - 78 582
Intangible azsets 919z - 9192
Investment in subsidiary 56,000 - 53,000
Post employment benefits 60,131 - 60,131
Investments in securities
Compensation Fungd w5 122 (388 122) -
Other 215643 - 215,643
Long-term recaivable 537 - o,771
Total nen-current assets 821,441 (385.122) 426 310
Current assets
Income lax recoveratle I 142 111 31 253
Trade and other receivablos 16,051 - 16.051
Investments in secunties
Compensation Fund 169,053 (169,053) -
Due from related party 64,705 - B4, 705
Cash and cash eguivalents 16,610 S 18,610
Total current assets _ 297 561 (168.242) 120.619
Total assets 1,118,002 (564.064) 554,938
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ Equity
=hare capital 168,590 - 168,540
Fairvalue reserve 2,345 = 2,345
Ravenue rezarve 263,998 - 263,998
434,933 - 434 933
Contingenacy rescrye B84 818 (S50 818) -
Total shareholders’ equity 284,791 (958.814) 434 933
Non-current Liabilities
Long-lerm lizbililies €0.487 - 89457
Deferred tax iakilities 245,405 A 246} 21,159
Total non-current lHabllites 44 592 (4 .246) L0646
Currant liabilities
Payables and accruals 27804 - 21804
Current portion of long-term liabilitiss 1.550 - 1,550
Teotal curreant liahilitiss 29350 - 209 350

Teotal equity and liabilities 1,115,002 (584 0645 554 938
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

34 PRICR YEAR RESTATEMENT (Cont'd}

4.4 %
Year Ended December 31, 2010
Prewvicusly
Reparted Adjustments Festated
5 5 k1
The Company statemont of cemprehensive income
Income 145,258 - 145 258
Expunseas 184 5&C = 1684 550
[ 19.282) - L 18.202)
Investment incoms 27.87¢ - 27 679
Cormpensation Fund income {nat) 32.27¢ (32,278} -
Finance costs (_13.80C) - 13,800}
PROFIT {LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 26,882 {32.278) [ 5413)
Taxation 4,434 3,609 B25
NET PROFIT (LOSS} FOR THE YEAR 31,297 {28,887} [ 4.5858)
Met fair value gain on svailable-for-salza financial
assats during the year - contingency ressrve B5E { BES) -
Met fair value gain on svailable-for-sals investmeants
during the ycar 2512 - 2612
MNet gain on held-to-maturity financial assets
reclassified to availabla-for-sale during the year i 267 - I 287}
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 3.30C {__ 955) 2345
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 34 587 (28.622) —2.243
35 SUESEQUENT EVENT

On February 12, 2013 the Sovarnmeant of Jamaica (GO0J) inviled haldzers of certain domestic debt instrumeants to
voluntarily parlicipate in the Nzlional Dabl Exchange (NDX) programms. The slated ojeclives of the programme
are to reduce the inteest expenze, as wall a3 lengthen the maturity profile, of GOJ's damestic debt portfolio.
Under the NDX, 5O intends to retire certain existing debt instumentsz (*Benchmark Investmert Motes") and iszue
new debt instruments "Mew Benchmark Investment Notes™) of longer duration with coupon rates that are lower
than the rates of the existing debt instruments.

At Deczmber 31, 2012 holdincs of the relevant debt instruments were as follows:

hominal Yalua Inzlusive of
Fooy UssS000
The Group 153,708 250
Tha Company 117,983 109
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

35 SUESERQUENT EVENT (Contd)

The Company accepled the invitation to participate in the NDX. The Campany's portfolio of Old Nates has been
replaced wilth a porlloha of New Males anoa “par foe par” basis such bal (he principal amounls hal would have
been received at maturily from the Old Motes are equal to lhe comesponding amounts ke be recaived fram the
Mew Maotes. Any gain or loss on derscognition of the Old Notes, will be recognised in the statement of
comprehenzive income for year ending December 31, 2013, Concerning the defined henefit pensiaon plan for
employzes of the Group and the Comgany. the NDX may alsc have an impast on the defined benefit obligations
gaing forward. At Decembear 371, 2012 post employment banefit asset of $85 208 millicn and $686.562 milion were
included in the statament of financial position of the Group and the Company respectivaly.
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Products Offered by JSE

Remote Observer

The Real Time Market Watch / Remote Observer is another exciting feature of the Jamaica Stock Exchange which allows
investors to view real time trading activities at their convenience. This product has endless possibilities for those who take the
stock market seriously, and abounds with the following features:

It allows the client to be on the cutting edge of technology.

Clients will be able to monitor daily activities of the market in real time giving them a distinct competitive
advantage.

Clients will have ready access to market information and will therefore be able to make informed decisions.
Clients watching the activities can negotiate sale and purchase fees of securities, thus lowering their transaction
cost.

Clients can know if their brokers are executing their requests.

YV VYV VV

This product is proven to provide significant benefits to the client and is a viable source of revenue for the Stock Exchange,
especially when the market is bullish.

The Remote Observer is the only product on the market that offers real time information on trading on the Jamaican stock
market and attracts customers both locally and internationally.

This product is designed to meet the needs of:

i. Companies involved in pension funds management: (The contact will be established with Chief Executive Officers,
Managing Directors and the Pension Funds Managers).
ii. Companies thatinvestin securities.
iii. Middle-to-upper income professionals who invest in the Stock Market as the means to create a solid retirement plan.
iv. Chief Executive Officers, especially those of listed companies, who have an avid interest in the stock market.
v. Chief Executive Officers of potential listed companies
vi. Broker members

Banner Ad

The Stock Exchange's revamped website www.jamstockex.com has a totally new look and feel and has become an exciting
vehicle for companies to keep in touch with their upwardly mobile clientele.

The Jamaica Stock Exchange's website receives on average over 1723 visits per day from many local and international visitors
who use our site repeatedly to check the daily trade sheets, as well as other information. This product offers an excellent
opportunity for companies and institutions to connect with their target market. It is a well-known fact that advertising works
best when targeted to a specific audience. Hence the JSE's banner ad is that medium of choice which provides product exposure
to existing and potential investors.

Online Statements

Twice yearly, the JCSD sends out statements showing clients’ transactions and the trading activity of their invested
securities. In response to the demands of clients to supply more current and ready information on their accounts, the
JCSD now offers clients the ability to access their statements on-line. This facility gives clients access to their statements
whenever they want it!

What will the on-line statement show?

¢ Account holders who access this statement on-line will be able to see transactions conducted for the last six
months.
e Clients will see a quick look-up of their holdings as at the current date.

e Clients will have access to all their active accounts in the JCSD.

*  Whether or not clients choose to print their statement or view it on-line, the information will appear
in the same format.
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Products Offered by JSE (contd)

Ticker
The JSE produces its Website Ticker.

Website Ticker

This ticker is appealing to companies, web administrators and media houses. It is the ideal product to attract both local and
international investors to the client's site. Investors are always seeking information on the performance of the market and once
they are aware of a particular site which supplies this information they will make frequent visits to that site. A “Website
Ticker” site will also attract visits from new customers seeking market report information.

JSE's e-Learning Campus

JSE's e-Learning Campus is a web based e-learning system that will allow students to attend courses online. Lessons are
interactive with video and audio clips of lecturers. Students are able to read content, view or print e-books, do tests and other
exercises relating to a specific course. Additionally, students are able to bookmark position in each course and resume their
course at anytime. The system tracks usage, scores from tests, issue certificates, and allow students to interact with lecturers.
Students will also get a chance to meet with lecturers and tutors face-to-face.

Our e-Campus offers the JSE's Post-Graduate Diploma in Financial Securities Management. This programme is a continuing

professional education course for participants operating in the capital markets, dealing in investment products and for
professionals in the financial services sector.

Publications

PocketBook

This annual publication is a compendium of facts, figures, charts and other illustrations showing the performance of the
Jamaican stock market for the previous year. It contains invaluable research material for potential investors locally and abroad
as well as for financial planners and managers.

The Pocketbook is distributed to our subscribers, both locally and internationally and is posted on the JSE's website which

averages at least 51,684 visits per month. This has opened for advertisers, a new window of opportunity to enter the overseas
market and in particular to reach Jamaicans living abroad.

Stock Market Review

This magazine is the perfect advertising vehicle for reaching existing and potential clients who invest in the stock market. The
publication is timely and contains indicators of market performance as well as pertinent news on market development.

The magazine is published quarterly and circulated free of cost to subscribers and other interested clients in Jamaica and
abroad. It also appears on the Jamaica Stock Exchange's website which enjoys thousands of visitors daily.

(Cont’d on next page)
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Year Book

This annual publication is a sought after collection of information showing the performance of the Jamaican stock market for
the previous year. The distinguishing features of the Year Book are:

A snapshot of the financials of the Listed Companies

Comparative figures on companies’ financials

Comparative figure for market statistics such as Market Capitalization, Volume, Top Ten Companies by Value and
Volumes

AN

This publication is invaluable research material for potential investors locally and abroad as well as for financial planners and
managers.

The Year Book is distributed to our subscribers, both locally and internationally and is posted on the JSE's website which
averages some 51,684 visits per month.
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Brokerages & Contact Information

BARITA INVESTMENTS LTD.
15 St. Lucia Way,

Kingston 5.

Phone: 926-2681-2 / 926-2686
Fax: 929-8432

e-mail: barita@cwjamaica.com

SCOTIA INVESTMENTS JAMAICALTD .

7 Holborn Road,

Kingston 10.

Phone: 960-6699 / 968-3365
Fax: 960-3984

e-mail: info@mydbg.com

JMMB SECURITIES LTD.

11 Knutsford Boulevard,
Kingston 5.

Phone: 920-5039 / 920-4720
Fax: 960-8106

e-mail: info@jmmbsecurities.com

FIRST GLOBAL FINANCIAL
SERVICES LTD.

2 St. Lucia Avenue,

Kingston 5.

Phone: 926-1275

Fax: 926-1279 / 929-6436
e-mail: fgfs @gkco.com

MAYBERRY INVESTMENTS LTD.
1 % Oxford Road,

Kingston 5.

Phone: 929-1908-9

Fax: 929-1501 / 920-2103

e-mail: feedback @mayberryinv.com

SAGICOR INVESTMENTS LTD.
60 Knutsford Boulevard,
Kingston 5.

Phone: 929-5583/4

Fax: 926-0555

e-mail: options @sagicor.com

M/VL STOCKBROKERS LTD.
2-6 Grenada Crescent,
Kingston 5.

Phone: 960-1570 / 926-4319
Fax: 960-1571

e-mail: mvi@wtjam.net

NCB CAPITAL MARKETS LTD.

32 Trafalgar Road, 3rd Floor,
Kingston 10.

Phone: 960-7108 Fax: 960-7649
TOLL FREE: 1-888-4-WEALTH
e-mail: info@ncbcapitaimarkets.com

STOCKS AND SECURITIES LTD.

33 %2 Hope Road,

Kingston 10.

Phone: 929-3261 / 929-3400

Fax: 929-4825

e-mail: info @gostocksandsecurities.com

VICTORIA MUTUAL WEALTH
MANAGEMENT LTD.

52 - 60 Grenada Crescent,
Kingston 5.

Phone: 960-5000 - 3

Fax: 960-4972

e-mail: spaimer@vmbs.com

PROVEN WEALTH LTD.

26 Belmont Road,

Kingston 5.

Tel: 908-3800

Fax: 754-3802

e-mail: info@weareproven.com
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Jamaica Stock Exchange
(J
Yearly Trading Summary (1976-2012)

YEAR-END YEAR-END

MARKET NO. VOLUME VALUE YEAR-END YEAR-END YEAR-END YEAR-END YEAR-END NO. COMBINED

CAPITAL OF LISTED TRADED TRADED BE ALLA BE CROSS COMBINED OF NO. MKT CAP
YEAR JA$(000) COMPANIES (000) JAS$(000) INDEX COMPOSITE SELECT LISTED INDEX TRANS. BROKERS JA$(000)
1976 106,426 43 5,650 2,827 55.72 1,170 4
1977 89,776 43 2,185 1,293 46.99 459 6
1978 93,494 40 13,818 10,093 49.28 583 6
1979 109,600 39 4,833 2,217 59.28 420 5
1980 124,149 aH 7,390 5,101 69.83 502 5
1981 225,761 33 4,198 3:332) 152.23 799 5
1982 315,964 32 5,542 10,156 211.16 1,375 5
1983 359,199 32 5,185 9,820 240.38 1,566 )
1984 697,729 32 9,744 26,017 461.10 2,117 )
1985 1,456,590 33 37,640 117,146 941.50 3,049 6
1986 3,085,766 36 59,252 374,617 1,499.87 6,691 8
1987 3,468,661 a1 71,877 399,971 1,515.09 11,187 8
1988 4,290,291 44 43,522 136,739 1,439.22 6,446 8
1989 6,228,384 44 95,202 516,456 2,075.85 13,892 8
1990 7,321,285 44 57,960 230,782 2,539.36 8,691 9
1991 22,214,715 44 144,258 1,156,609 7,681.50 24,072 9
1992 76,974,281 48 395,606 4,687,337 25,745.88 49,791 9
1993 41,879,310 48 567,454 8,346,770 13,099.68 55,519 9
1994 58,018,064 50 741,754 5,155,463 16,676.74 43,144 10
1995 50,755,753 51 3,565,607 11,560,485 14,266.99 42,600 10
1996 66,116,257 50 560,528 4,629,395 16,615.99 23,189 8
1997 79,619,594 49 905,387 4,594,108 19,846.66 18,623 8
1998 79,038,726 47 604,545 2,064,243 20,593.33 13,748 8+
1999 104,041,538 44 520,531 2,218,714 21,892.58 9,256 6
2000 160,135,746 44 694,897 3,441,081 | 28,893.24 | 26,894.76 883.67 21,066 6
2001 222,006,166 42 2,845,199 5,948,358 33,835.59 32,508.99 1,015.26 20,979 10
2002 292,297,900 40 1,604,591 7,636,877 45,396.21 46,142.81 1,450.34 26,999 10
2003 512,884,380 a1 4,290,433 24,237,330 67,586.72 55,629.64 1,697.87
2004 879,297,296 40 5,194,558 35,994,853 112,655.51 | 116,218.38 3,176.62
2005 839,852,762 a1 2,498,028 40,746,681 104,510.38 | 104,941.62 2,859.62 75,001 11
2006 822,862,351 44 5,639,412 37,040,992 100,678.00 | 107,213.42 2,942.88 41,921 11
2007 876,690,610 44 2,433,488 29,047,425 107,968.00 | 106,782.82 2,928.98 38,621 11
2008 597,277,036 45 2,953,011 67,026,871 80,152.03 73,994.96 1,984.74 30,323 11
2009 544,882,559 44 1,764,894 12,189,895 83,321.96 70,995.77 1,896.05 962.92 16,099 11
2010 564,720,705 43 3,571,199 20,828,652 85,220.82 80,793.80 2,192.19 863.01 18,359 11
2011 619,444,770 40 1,819,302 20,993,976 95,297.20 | 102,178.79 2,874.01 794.55 97,134.00 23,319 11
2012 590,637,443 36 2,581,249 61,109,565 92,101.22 91,161.60 2,489.67 873.93 93,503.79 19,515 11 612,739,023

Six (6) active Brokers 3.64%19,838,146.00
The All Jamaican Composite started on May 1, 2000 at 31,931.32 points
JSE Select started on June 1, 2000 at 1,000 points
JSE Cross Listed Index started on March 2, 2009 at 1,000 points

JSE Combined Listed Index started on April 1, 2011 at 86,897.43 points
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Jamaica Stock Exchange
Yearly Trading Summary Junior Market (2009-2012)

YEAR-END

MARKET NO. OF YEAR-END

CAPITAL LISTED VOLUME VALUE NO. OF NO. SENR
YEAR JA$(Million) COMPANIES TRADED TRADED TRANS. BROKERS | MARKET INDEX
2009 755.17 1 62,248 1,531,915 14 11 150.01
2010 8,466.81 8 50,331,871 206,559,980 1,192 11 379.92
2011 23,595.00 12 306,220,533 1,247,948,069 7,883 11 748.86
2012 22,101.58 16 569,866,235 5,185,299,007 5,047 11 647.78

< :orporate Information

Registered Office:

Bankers

Attorneys-at-law

Auditors

Website Address

E-Mail Address

The Jamaica Stock Exchange,
Jamaica Central Securities Depository &
JCSD Trustee Services

40 Harbour Street

P.O. Box 1084

Kingston.

Telephone: (876) 967-3271-2

Fax: (876) 967 -3277
National Commercial Bank
Cnr. Duke & Barry Streets
Kingston.

Livingston, Alexander & Levy
72 Harbour Street, Kingston

Deloitte & Touche
7 West Avenue
Kingston 4.

www.jamstockex.com

jse -info@jamstockex.com
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Jamaica Stock Exchange Statement of
Corporate Governance Principles & Practices

PREAMBLE

The Jamaica Stock Exchange recognizes that as a national self-regulatory organization with a mission to ensure and promote a
fair and efficient stock market, it must embrace and practice sound corporate governance. These principles and the attendant
structures should serve the best interest of all stakeholders and emphasize the highest standards of transparency, oversight and
independence.

The intent is to protect the investing public while advancing the interests of shareholders and member/dealers. Confidence in the
stock market will be enhanced by the clear demarcation of regulatory and normal operational functions.

These practices are consistent with world best practices and adhere to the relevant legal and regulatory framework. The corporate
governance core practices of the JSE are rooted in the acceptance of the following principles:

1. Corporate Governance should establish a clear foundation for Management and Board oversight. The role and
responsibilities of Board and Management should therefore be clearly outlined to facilitate accountability.

2. The Board of Directors should be structured and selected to ensure effectiveness, independence and protection of
the public's interests through appropriate selection and operating processes.

3. Ethical standards and responsible decision-making should be promoted.

4. Governance should ensure that there is accurate, timely and full financial and governance reporting with strong
internal controls and risk management.

5. Material information regarding the company's operations should be disclosed in a timely manner to the public and
regulatory entities.

6. There should be regular reviews of Board and Management performance to enhance effectiveness. Such review
should include the performance of the alternates.

7. Remuneration should be fair to attract and retain competent skills, and reward consistent with performance
objectives.

8. The interests of stakeholders should be carefully balanced, protected and promoted.

ISSUES DESCRIPTION/PRINCIPLES

Board Issues

Accountability to
shareholders/stakeholders

The JSE is a public company with public responsibility. It must balance the interest of
all stakeholders to foster a fair, efficient and transparent market.

Mission and Responsibility

The Board members have the responsibility to attend meetings and familiarize
themselves with, and make decisions on issues within their purview.

Elections

The provisions for elections of directors are set outin the Articles of Incorporation of
the JSE and stipulate election of directors on an annual basis. Interest groups
identified by the Board will propose independent directors to the Corporate
Governance and Nomination Committee. Where an interest group fails to make a
nomination, the Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee will propose
directors for election.

Orientation and Training

Training is made available to directors upon appointment to the Board. The
Exchange will organize orientation and training for any director within three (3)
months of appointment to the Board. The Board will pursue a programme of
continuous training and development, with emphasis placed on members chairing
committees.

Access to Information

The Board considers the provision of good quality, timely and accurate information
is a significant priority in company procedures. Management has a responsibility to
provide the Board with any information that will allow members to properly carry out
its responsibilities.

Disclosure of Directors’
Biographical Information

Sufficient biographical data with the names of all directors, nominated or elected, will
be presented to shareholders and directors. This allows for the proper selection of
members to specific committees.

Composition

Board members will be drawn from different interest groups and from member-
dealers. Representation should reflect the diversity of stakeholders and the needs
of the Company. The Board shall be comprise of member dealers, independent
directors and a non executive chairman.

Multiple Board Seats

Members must declare appointments to other companies. They must, at the
beginning of the year, and as many times as their positions change, give a written
declaration to the Board of the Exchange with pertinent information about the other
Boards on which they serve.
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Jamaica Stock Exchange Statement of
Corporate Governance Principles & Practices

ISSUES DESCRIPTION/PRINCIPLES

Chairman & CEO The JSE will have a separate Chairman and CEO.

Independent Directors Independent Directors must meet the criteria set out in the Appendix attached.
Committees Composition

There are both mandatory and non-mandatory committees of the Board. The
mandatory committees of the Board are comprise of the Regulatory & Market
Oversight Committee, the Audit & Finance Committee, the Compensation
Committee and the Listing Committee. These are referred to in the JSE's Rules.

Each Committee has a written charter outlining its purpose and responsibilities and
reporting format. Committees must meet at least twice annually.

Review Process

The Board of the JSE conducts regular reviews of the performance of the
Committees. Chairmen of Committees are required to develop and present their key
performance indicators the month prior to the beginning of each year.

Audit Committee The Audit Committee assists the Board with oversight responsibilities in regards to
the integrity of the company's financial statements. It also serves as the
communication link between the Board, the management team and the auditors.
The Audit Committee ensures that the Company complies with legal and regulatory
requirements.

Member Dealers Admissions The Member Dealers Admission Committee is responsible for processing and

Committee recording applications of Member Dealers for access of Member Dealers, attorneys/
traders, to conduct business on the floor of the Exchange and their use of these
facilities.

Regulatory & Market Oversight The Regulatory and Market Oversight Committee (hereinafter called the “RMOC”) is

Committee (RMOC) the Committee of the Board of Directors of the Exchange comprising the

independent directors who are not the nominees or connected to any
Member/Dealer of the Exchange. The Board of Directors of the Exchange has
delegated responsibility to the RMOC for reviewing and ensuring compliance with
and enforcement of the Laws, any Rules including Business Rules, contractual
obligations and appropriate standards of conduct governing the Member/Dealers,
their clients and participants on the Exchange. The RMOC is the disciplinary
committee of the Exchange which has the power to impose any of the penalties
specified in Rule 228 upon a Member/Dealer in respect of whom disciplinary action
is taken and which results in a finding of misconduct.

Corporate Governance and The Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee is responsible to develop,
Nomination Committee recommend and review Corporate Governance Principles, applicable to the Board,
Management and listed companies. In addition the Committee has the responsibility
to oversee the evaluation of the Board's other committees and make
recommendations in respect to the structure of and effectiveness of the Committees.

The Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee is also responsible for the
recommendation of suitable candidates to fill vacancies on the Board and the
suitability of alternate directors.

Compensation Committee The Compensation Committee of the JSE is made up exclusively of non-executive
directors who make recommendations on the company's framework of executive
remuneration. The Committee reviews and approves corporate goals in relation to
the CEQ's compensation, evaluates the CEO's performance in light of the
company's goals and objectives and makes recommendations to the Board with
respect to executive and non-executive compensation.

Listing Committee The Listing Committee ensures the quality and integrity of a listing on the JSE. ltis
responsible to process applications and make recommendations regarding
approval of companies wishing to list on the JSE and review and make
recommendations of standards to be observed for companies to remain listed.

Other Committees These are formed as the Board of Directors see fit.
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Jamaica Stock Exchange Statement of
Corporate Governance Principles & Practices

ISSUES DESCRIPTION/PRINCIPLES

Board Meetings There are formal scheduled meetings of the Board at which matters are specifically
reserved for discussions. Matters must be addressed within a reasonable time in
order to prevent an overrun of pending items.

Procedure at Board Meetings

Inthe interest of promoting and ensuring transparency all directors must:
Excuse himself/ herself from discussions in, and in making decisions on any
matter in which he/she has a personal or business interest or companies on
whose board he/she sits or is connected.
Further, members shall be bound by similar standards as outlined in
Appendix 1- (Part K) of the JSE Rules which addresses 'Acting in Concert'.

General Meetings General Meetings of shareholders are held each year. Communication with
shareholders on decisions concerning material and fundamental corporate
changes are made on a timely basis.

Performance Evaluation Evaluation of Board Members and Senior Executives
The Board recognizes the importance of each director (including his or her alternate)
working to fulfillthe mandate of the company.

The Board recognizes the importance of evaluating the performance of each director,
alternate director, senior executives and the Board as a whole. Their performance is
subject to the review of the Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee.

Term Limits Nominations to the Board of Directors are reviewed by the Corporate Governance
and Nomination Committee.

Committees

Chairman/Deputy Chairman

The Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the Board and Chairmen of Committees
have recommended term limits (from one AGM to another AGM) as follows:

(@) The Chairman can serve for five (5) consecutive terms;

(b) The Deputy Chairman can serve for three (3) consecutive terms;

(c) The Chairmen of Committees can serve for three (3) consecutive
terms, except for the Chairman of the Compensation Committee who
can serve for a maximum of five (5) consecutive terms.

Committee Members

Members can sit for a maximum of five (5) consecutive years with an option to
extend the term limit by two (2) years. These members are eligible to be re-
elected one year after the seven (7) year consecutive stint. Past Board Chairmen
should automatically sit on the Executive Committee for the year after demitting
office as Chairman.

There is no term limit for members of the Regulatory and Market Oversight
Committee and the Member Dealers Admissions Committee.

Age Limits The JSE has no maximum age limit for members sitting on the Board. However
the minimum age limit is eighteen (18) years.

Transparency Directors are required to provide to the Corporate Governance and Nomination
Committee, information as it relates to business dealings, board affiliations and
any other information that would pose a conflict of interest.

Accounting Standards The Jamaica Stock Exchange Board is governed by the accounting standards as
communicated from the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Jamaica.

Ethics The Jamaica Stock Exchange currently maintains ethics and confidentiality
requirements for its directors, which are posted on its Website.

Specially adopted from the PSOJ's Corporate Governance Code

Amended March 18, 2013

Corporate Governance Guideline are available on the
JSE’s Website: www.jamstockex.com
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Guidelines for Determining Independence
of Board Directors

Appendix 1

The Board should determine whether the director is independent in character and judgement and
whether there are relationships or circumstances which are likely to affect, or could appear to affect, the
director's judgement.
The Board should state its reasons if it determines that a director is independent notwithstanding the
existence of relationships or circumstances which may appear relevant to its determination, including if
the director:

« Hasbeenanemployee of the company or group within the last five years;

has, or has had within the last three years, material business relationship with the company
either directly, or as a partner, shareholder, director or senior employee of a body that has such
. arelationship with the company.
has received or receives additional remuneration from that company apart from a director's
fee, participates in that company’s share option plan or a performance-related pay scheme, or
. Iisamember ofthe company pension scheme;
s+ has closefamily ties withany ofthe company's advisors, directors or senior employees;
holds cross-directorship or has significant links with other directors through involvement in
other companies or bodies;
s representsasignificant shareholder; or

has served on the board for more than nine years from the date of their first election.

i
[ oy I |II f .rfq ﬁ -

Frepared: Marler StreetForrest

March 30,2010

Adopted from the PSOJ Code of Corporate Governance (2009)
Approved by the JSE Board on April 21,2010

Corporate Governance Guideline are available on the
JSE’s Website: www.jamstockex.com
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Please affix
PROXY FORM $100 postage
stamp in this
box
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o] T

as my/our proxy, to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the
said company to be held on the20"day of June,2013 and any adjournment thereof.

Signed this........oooiii day of ..o 2013
Signature
NOTES: 1. This Form of Proxy must be received by the Secretary of the Company

not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for the Meeting.

2. If the appointer is a Corporation, this Form of Proxy must be executed under its
Common Seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorized in writing.

3. The proxy form will attract stamp duty of J$100 which may be paid by affixing stamps or
stamp duty impressed by the Stamp Office.







